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COMPTROLLER'S MESSAGE...

SOUTH CAROLINA
TRADITIONS

South Carolina is a place where tradition provides a conspicuous
daily influence on the lives, values, and culture of its people. As one
of the original thirteen colonies, the State traces its settlement back
more than 325 years and treasures the historic role it has played in the
founding and strengthening of the American nation.

In recent years, the faithful management of public moneys and the
rigorous process of financial accountability have become South
Carolina traditions of the highest order. The State treasures its AAA
bond rating as symbolic of that historic fiscal integrity. The pages of
this report offer detailed insight into the financial activities of the
1998-1999 fiscal year.

Interspersed with the financial information are glimpses of another
South Carolina tradition—the fair-minded dispensing of justice
through the court system. Pictures of South Carolina’s courthouses
are thoughtful reminders of the State’s past and living indicators of
how the State is adapting to meet its current and future needs.

Thank you for taking a few minutes to learn about our State, its
traditions, and its financial record for the most recently completed
fiscal year.

Sincerely,

ames A. Lander
Comptroller General




COURTHOUSES, THE ESSENCE
OF A STATE’S PAST

South Carolina’s history is stored in many places. It is contained on
bookshelves and battlefields, and it resides in school buildings and
quiet country churches.

It also occupies the chambers and corridors of the State’s remarkably
eclectic collection of county courthouses, the structures whose grace
has symbolized the solemnity with which South Carolinians treat
their judicial activities. =~ Courthouses are the places where
democracies dispense justice. They are the places where the fragile
balance between the orderliness of society and the unfettered rights of
the individual citizen is constantly being defined and redefined by the
outcomes of adversarial proceedings. In courthouses, Americans
come face to face with the realities of their delicately tooled process
of self-government.

Courthouses have also been meeting places. In the days when South
Carolina was largely a state of rural interests, courthouse squares
were places where farmers gathered on Saturdays, sold crops, bought
provisions, and exchanged the news of the day. The political regulars
of every county became known as “courthouse gangs,” and their
members became identified in an uncomplimentary way with insiders
and the manipulation of influence and favors.

In the days before office buildings and shopping malls dominated the
landscape, courthouses were places of architectural nobility and
community pride. No less a figure than Robert Mills, the nineteenth
century South Carolinian who designed the Washington Monument
and the United States Treasury Building in Washington, drew up
plans for as many as seventeen county courthouses in South Carolina,
as well as many other public buildings in the State.

X



%

Courthouses designed by Mills were built between 1821 and 1828 at a time
when there were twenty-nine counties, known as “districts.” Their
construction was authorized and funded by the State’s Public Works
Commission. The State’s second major courthouse construction era came
between 1878 and 1919, when the General Assembly authorized the
formation of fourteen counties.

Most of South Carolina’s older courthouses survive today, and some are
still used for their original purpose. The buildings, many bearing
characteristics of Greek Revival or Georgian Revival styles, have
undergone renovation and modernization to meet the growing and changing
needs of an expanding state. In other counties—Richland, Dorchester,
Kershaw, Florence, Greenwood, and Pickens among them—courthouses
have been erected in the latter half of the twentieth century, and some of
them reflect more contemporary design styles and features.

Whatever their age or design, South Carolina’s courthouses represent an
important link between the State’s traditional past and its restless present.
As South Carolina enters the new millennium, its values—like its
courthouses—reflect both a reverence for its storied past and energy for its
ambitious future.

Throughout the pages of this report, you will see photographs of South
Carolina’s county courthouses. Descriptions and histories of these
courthouses are found beginning on page 181.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

®ffice of Qomptroller General

JAMES A. LANDER 305 WADE HAMPTON OFFICE BUILDING

COMPTROLLER GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX Il228
COLUMBIA, S.C. 29211
TELEPHONE!: (803) 734-2121
FAX: (803) 734-2064

December 2, 1999

To the Citizens, Governor and
Members of the South
Carolina General Assembly

It is my pleasure to present to the citizens of South Carolina this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the State of South Carolina for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1999. The report provides financial information about the State's
operations during the year and describes its financial position at the end of the year.

The report includes information for the use of all parties who are interested in
the State's finances. This includes the State’s taxpayers, members of the General
Assembly, and directors of State agencies as well as the State’s investors and
creditors.

Management is responsible for the accuracy of the data in this report as well
as the completeness and fairness of the presentation. To the best of our knowledge
and belief, this information is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of operations of the
various funds, account groups, and component units of the State of South Carolina.
The report includes all disclosures that readers need to gain an understanding of the
State of South Carolina’s activities.

For the convenience of users, we have divided the report into three sections as
follows:

e The Introductory Section, containing this letter of transmittal, the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for
the June 30, 1998 report, a list of State officials, and an organizational
chart of State government.

e The Financial Section, consisting of the general purpose financial
statements (combined statements, component unit combining

]
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statements, and notes), required supplementary information, other
combining financial statements, and schedules.

e The Statistical Section, presenting comparative financial data and other
non-financial data.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Legislative Initiatives

The South Carolina General Assembly made two major down payments on the
new millennium during its 1998-1999 session: it increased annual funding of the
State’s public school system by more than $180.000 million, and it authorized
$1.000 billion in general obligation bonds, most of which will be allocated to
educational needs.

Two major educational initiatives received priority attention. One of them,
known as the First Steps to School Readiness program, provided first-year funding of
$20.000 million to support—through statewide grants for early childhood
education—efforts to strengthen children’s readiness for first grade. The initiative
creates county partnerships to provide support to local communities.

Education-related legislation also targeted alternative school programs.
Additional funds amounting to $5.600 million were designated to support programs
that will offer separate instruction for students whose behavior disrupts the learning of
others or who, for other reasons, need attention and assistance beyond the traditional
classroom experience.

In its capital bond legislation, the General Assembly provided that
$750.000 million ($250.000 million in 1999-2000) in general obligation State school
facilities bonds be issued for permanent school facilities and school equipment.
Additionally, $250.000 million in general obligation capital improvement bonds was
authorized primarily to fund projects at State universities and other educational
institutions and to pay for school buses and maintenance vehicles.

The legislature continued its efforts to provide tax relief, increasing the senior
citizen income tax exemption from $11,500 to $15,000 and offering voters the
opportunity to approve through referendum a phased-in reduction of the assessment
rate on automobiles and other vehicles from 10.5% to 6.0% over a six-year period.

In other actions, the General Assembly increased Interstate highway speed
limits to 70 miles per hour, established uniformity in the manner by which
municipalities charge telecommunications companies for use of public rights-of-way,
and set limitations on business licenses that municipalities impose on
telecommunications companies.

The General Assembly also approved a November 2000 vote to determine
whether the State should be permitted to establish a lottery to generate revenue for
public education purposes. A public vote scheduled for November 1999 to decide the

-
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fate of video poker cash payouts was ruled unconstitutional by the South Carolina
Supreme Court in a decision which also banned video poker gambling in the State as
of July 1, 2000.

Projects to Implement New Accounting and Financial Reporting
Requirements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, in
December 1998 and Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements—and Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, in June 1999. To
comply with generally accepted accounting principles for governments, the State of
South Carolina must implement Statement 33, except for the accrual-basis revenue
recognition provisions of that Statement, beginning July 1,2000. Beginning
July 1, 2001, the State must implement the accrual-basis revenue recognition
provisions of Statement 33 as well as Statement 34, except for the provisions of
Statement 34 that relate to retroactive reporting of major general infrastructure assets.
Beginning July 1, 2005, the State must implement the provisions of Statement 34 that
relate to retroactive reporting of major general infrastructure assets. Management
intends to implement these statements no later than the dates specified by the GASB.

Management anticipates that compliance with GASB Statements 33 and 34
will significantly affect the content and format of the State of South Carolina’s
Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFRs) for fiscal years ending after the
implementation dates described above. However, the State’s management has not yet
determined the extent of those effects on specific account balances, financial
statements, notes to the financial statements, or other presentations within the CAFR.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Over the last three decades, the economy of South Carolina has grown faster
than that of the rest of the country. Businesses have migrated here from all over the
world to take advantage of the State’s skilled labor force, competitive wages, lower-
priced land, excellent port facilities, accessibility to markets, and in recent years,
substantial tax incentives. Since 1970, industry has made $65 billion of investments
in plants within the State.

The State’s recreation and retirement industries have also been rapidly
growing economic sectors over the last three decades. Each year more retirees move
here to take advantage of the area’s mild climate, lower cost of living, and special tax
incentives for people over 65 years of age. The number of individuals receiving
Social Security retirement pay has grown at a rapid average annual rate of 4.2% since
1970. The annual income from retirement now exceeds an estimated $7 billion.

The State’s coastal areas have emerged as one of the leading recreation centers
on the east coast, providing even more stimulus to South Carolina’s growing
economy. Personal income in Horry County, which includes the Myrtle Beach area,

Lttt |
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has grown at an extraordinary 10.2% per year over the last two decades and exceeds
$3.5 billion.

Since 1970, over 500,000 people have migrated to the State to take advantage
of a growing economy and to retire here. Total personal income of South Carolina
has grown over ten-fold, one-fifth faster than growth in personal income in the United
States. During the high inflationary 1970’s, personal income grew at an average
annual compound rate of 11.8% compared to a much lower 10.7% nationwide. Even
in the lower inflationary 1980’s, personal income in South Carolina grew a healthy
8.5% per year, compared to a lesser 7.6% nationwide. Employment in South Carolina
over the last two decades has grown one-fifth faster than in the United States as a
whole.

Although South Carolina has been one of the poorer states in the nation since
the War Between the States, the State is closing the gap in wealth between it and the
rest of the country. In 1970, per capita income of South Carolina was only 74% of
the national average, but has since increased to 8§1% of the national average.

The State’s economy has begun fiscal year 1999-2000 on a positive footing.
Funds are available to help prevent budgetary reductions in the event of an economic
slowdown during the fiscal year. Employment in the State was up by 300,000 in
September 1999 versus its level during the recession of 1991. Although statistics for
the fiscal year were not yet available from the Department of Commerce, the State’s
Board of Economic Advisors estimated that personal income growth was in the
healthy range of 5% to 6%.

In recent years, the State passed economic development legislation to further
enhance the attractiveness of businesses to locate in rural sections of the State by
substantially increasing the tax incentives that companies may be eligible to take.
Through September 1999, over 500 companies have taken advantage of the tax
incentive package offered by the State. Global companies such as BMW, Honda of
America, Bridgestone/Firestone, Michelin, and Hoffman-LaRoche have located
corporate headquarters or have constructed multi-million-dollar manufacturing
facilities within the State. In addition to these projects, there have been other
announcements of new plants or additions to existing plants in the State which will
contribute to the State’s continued growth.

The State’s Board of Economic Advisors (BEA) met on November 10, 1999,
and reported that the State’s Budgetary General Fund revenue collections at the end
of the first four months of fiscal year 1999-2000 were greater than anticipated. As a
result, the BEA raised the General Fund revenue estimate for fiscal year 1999-2000,
anticipating a revenue excess of $233 million in fiscal year 1999-2000 over the
estimated revenue amounts included in the Appropriation Act. The Income Tax and
Sales Tax, the State’s two leading sources of revenues, were both healthy, indicating
that the State’s economy was not showing signs of an economic slowdown.
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FINANCIAL CONTROLS
Internal Controls

The Statewide Accounting and Reporting System (STARS) is the State's
budgetary-basis operating accounting system. This double-entry system, installed in
1981-1982, processes cash and budgetary transactions and maintains records for all
budgeted funds and some unbudgeted funds. The State's higher education institutions
and most of the enterprise entities maintain separate accrual-basis accounting
systems.

The Comptroller General's Office maintains an automated annual financial
reporting system as well as an automated interface between STARS and that system.
The Comptroller General’s Office uses these automated systems to prepare this report
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). State agencies
that use STARS prepare year-end forms to report amounts needed to adjust their
budgetary-basis balances to conform with GAAP. The Comptroller General's Office
then enters into its GAAP financial reporting system the data from these forms as
well as data from audited financial statements for the higher education institutions,
component units, and most State enterprise entities.

The State's internal controls, designed by the management of the State,
provide reasonable assurance that the following objectives are achieved:

e Reliability of financial reporting,
o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control
should not exceed the resulting benefits.

The Comptroller General’s Office has completed the remediation and testing
work needed to allow all statewide accounting and financial reporting systems under
its supervision to operate properly after January 1, 2000.

Budgetary Controls

South Carolina's annual Appropriation Act includes legally adopted budgets
for the Budgetary General Fund and for aggregated Other Budgeted Funds. Except
for the Retail Sales Tax and selected other taxes estimated on a modified accrual
basis, the State estimates revenues on a cash receipts basis. Appropriations for
1998-1999 covered all expenditures deemed applicable to that year and paid on or
before July 20, 1999. Agencies may carry forward up to 10.0% of unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations to the next year. Any remaining unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse unless the Appropriation Act
specifically authorizes agencies to carry them forward to the next fiscal year.
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State law does not require encumbrance accounting. Accordingly, the State
(except for some higher education institutions) does not record encumbrances. The
State currently maintains budgetary control for expenditures at the level of summary
object category within each program of each organizational unit. Except for accounts
of higher education institutions, STARS verifies that an account has sufficient
remaining appropriations before it will charge an expenditure to that account.
Organizational units may request transfers of appropriations among object categories
and/or among programs within the same budgetary fund. The Budget and Control
Board has authority to approve these appropriation transfers within certain limits.

The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriation Act. The Budget and
Control Board reduces the Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during the year if
it anticipates a year-end operating deficit. Likewise, the State Board of Economic
Advisors (BEA) may approve revisions of estimated revenues of the Budgetary
General Fund during the year. The BEA approved such upward revisions on
November 10, 1998, and June 18, 1999.

During 1997-1998, the General Assembly approved a Supplemental
Appropriation Act that added $86.158 million of additional appropriations to the
Budgetary General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. Of this amount,
$7.270 million was used to fund the General Reserve, and the remaining
$78.888 million was appropriated to various state agencies on September 1, 1998.
Late in 1998-1999, the General Assembly approved $82.122 million of additional
supplemental appropriations. Of this amount, $16.000 million was expended during
1998-1999, and the remaining $66.122 million was appropriated and reserved as
Appropriations to be Carried Forward to 1999-2000.

State law specifies procedures for processing requested budget changes in
Other Budgeted Funds and for permanent improvement projects.

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The State's reporting entity includes all of the funds and account groups that
make up the primary government of the State of South Carolina as well as its
component units. The funds and account groups of the primary government are under
the oversight of the State's General Assembly and the Budget and Control Board. The
primary government consists of agencies, departments, funds, and institutions that are
not legally separate from the State.

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State and its
elected officials are financially accountable. Criteria to determine financial
accountability include the ability of State officials to appoint a voting majority of the
entity's governing body, the ability of the State to impose its will on the entity, and
the potential for the entity to provide a financial benefit to the State or impose a
financial burden upon the State. The State's discretely presented component units are:
the South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper); South Carolina State
Ports Authority; Connector 2000 Association, Inc.; and the Savannah Lakes Regional

L ______________________________________________ ]
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Loan Fund. Note la in the Notes to the Financial Statements provides a more
complete description of the State's reporting entity.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The following sections detail revenues and expenditures of the State's General
and Special Revenue Funds. In addition, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999,
other financing uses exceeded other financing sources for these funds by
$304.207 million.

Revenues

The State's most significant sources of revenue are its 5.0% retail sales tax, its
individual income tax (2.5% to 7.0% tax rates), and Federal grants. The following
schedule summarizes revenues of the General and Special Revenue Funds for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 (expressed in thousands) and the amounts (expressed
in thousands) and percentages of increases (decreases) in relation to prior year

revenues.
Increase Percentage
1998-1999 Percent of (Decrease) Increase

Revenues Amount Total from 1997-98 (Decrease)
Individual income tax...........ccccovrvrvnnnen. $ 2,282,509 21.1% $ 178,710 8.5%
Retail sales and use tax...............cc....... 2,521,264 23.3% 217,260 9.4%
Othertaxes...........ccccoovvvinnicniiecninceenn. 1,274,366 11.8% 83,761 7.0%
Licenses, fees, and permits.................. 290,530 2.7% 9,288 3.3%
Interest and other investment incorre.... 122,002 1.1% (8,153) (6.3%)
Federal........ccooovieieic e 3,445,858 31.9% 232,854 7.2%
Departmental services.............ccooeecenernne 539,863 5.0% (184) 0.0%
Contributions............ccceceeievcnirecenecee e 192,852 1.8% 37,715 24.3%
69,862 0.6% 8,118 13.1%
80,220 0.7% (847) (1.0%)

Totals $ 10,819,326 100.0% $ 758,522 7.5%
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REVENUES 1998-99

Individual income tax
21.1%

Other
4.2%

Departmental
services

5.0%
Federal
31.9%
Retail sales
and use tax
23.3%

Licenses, fees,
and permits Other taxes
2.7% 11.8%

Revenue in the Contributions category increased as a result of the activities of
the South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank. The amount of Contributions
revenue that the Bank received during 1998-1999 increased in response to an increase
in the Bank’s road-building activities.

The increase in Fines and Penalties revenue primarily resulted from a situation
whereby several companies agreed to provide more than $8.000 million to the State
for environmental clean-up.

Expenditures

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 (expressed in
thousands), and the amounts (expressed in thousands) and percentages of increases
(decreases) in relation to prior year expenditures:
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Increase Percentage
1998-1999 Percent of (Decrease) Increase
Expenditures Amount Total from 1997-1998  (Decrease)
Current:
General government...................coco..oe.. $ 355558 3.7% $ 3,493 1.0%
Education............ccccoeviereennn. 355,927 3.7% 37,369 11.7%
Health and environment 3,443,809 35.3% 321,922 10.3%
Social Services..........ccceceeieiveccrnnnnn, 648,689 6.6% (14,223) (2.1%)
Administration of justice....................... 632,872 6.5% 40,316 6.8%
Resources and economic development 159,546 1.6% (696) (0.4%)
Transportation..............ccoeeevreinccennne 303,824 3.1% 22,803 8.1%
Capital outlay............ccovcvecneniriirenae 453,708 4.6% 56,907 14.3%
Debt service:
Principal retirement..........c...ccoccccennee 90,786 0.9% (19,290) (17.5%)
Interest and fiscal charges................... 55,193 0.6% 4,061 7.9%
Intergovernmental......................... 3,262,640 33.4% 230,622 7.6%
Totals $ 9,762,552 100.0% $ 683,284 7.5%
General government
3.7%
Social services
0,
Intergovernmental 6.6%
33.4% Education
3. 7%
Other
3.1%
Health and
Capital outlay environment
4.6% 35.3%
Transportation
3.1% Administration
of justice
6.5%
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Expenditures in the Education category increased as a result of the the State’s
commitment to improving education through State-supported scholarship programs
and aid to school districts to reduce class size.

The increase in the Health and Environment category resulted primarily from
increases in the quantity of pharmaceuticals used by Medicaid clients and increases in
the cost of such pharmaceuticals.

An increase in State road and bridge construction projects led to an increase in
expenditures for Capital Outlay.

Debt service expenditures for retirement of principal decreased during the
1998-1999 fiscal year because the State paid off an unusually large amount of bonds
during the preceding fiscal year.

Status of Fund Balances

GAAP-basis fund balances for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds
at June 30 (expressed in thousands) for the last five years were:

1999 1998 1997 1996 1995
General Fund
RESErVed............oceveumivceiinee e $ 335,038 $ 286,945 $ 450,686 $ 545,796 $ 461,303
Unreserved, Designated 31,360 — — — —
Unreserved, Undesignated..................... — (109,468) (294,233) (261,065) (202,981)
Total General Fund...........eovecvurerinnn $ 366,398 $ 177,477 $ 156,453 $ 284,731 $ 258,322
Special Revenue Funds
Reserved $ 350,722 $ 204,427 $ 205,377 $ 202,628 $ 172,487
Unreserved, designated..............cccc..... 336,826 165,328 128,840 112,144 73,946
Unreserved, undesignated..................... 1,015,125 775,557 541,769 386,726 383,955
Total Special Revenue Funds.......... $ 1,702,673 $ 1,145,312 $ 875,786 $ 701,498 $ 630,388

The reserved component of fund balance represents amounts legally required
to be segregated and amounts that cannot be appropriated for future expenditure. The
unreserved component of fund balance is computed as total fund balance less reserved
amounts.

The designated portion of unreserved fund balance reflects tentative plans for
future use of available financial resources. At June 30, 1999, the State had tentative
plans to use $91.766 million of the fund balance in its Budgetary General Fund to pay
for selected recurring and nonrecurring items. Of that amount, only $31.360 million
in net financial resources was available in the General Fund at June 30, 1999, to
finance those tentative plans.

For 1995 through 1998, the General Fund’s reserve requirements exceeded its
total fund balance. This created a negative unreserved component of fund balance in
the General Fund, even though the total fund balance was positive in those years. In
those years, the General Fund did not have an unreserved designated fund balance
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because it had no net financial resources to finance any tentative future spending
plans.

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS

Primary Government

There are several proprietary segments of South Carolina's primary
government. Significant segments among these include the State Housing Finance
and Development Authority, which provides low-cost housing to the State's citizens
by issuing bonds/notes and by administering Federal contracts and grants, and the
Education Assistance Authority, which issues bonds for the purpose of making loans
to eligible students.

Financial highlights of these segments (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1999, are as follows:

Education
Housing Assistance
Authority Authority
Operating revenues.... $ 47,643 $ 45159
Net income................... 15,436 15,698
Total assets................. 664,579 526,384
Total fund equity.......... 177,185 123,141

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State's two largest proprietary operations are discretely presented
component units.

The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) is South Carolina's State-
owned public power resource. The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper)
produces and sells electric power and wholesale water to individuals, businesses,
electric cooperatives, and municipal power departments. The Public Service
Authority (Santee-Cooper) made payments to the State's General Fund of
$7.605 million during its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. The distribution to
the General Fund is based primarily on operating cash flows and mandatory reserve
requirements.

The State Ports Authority develops and maintains State harbors and seaports
and handles the commerce through these ports.

Highlights of segment financial information (expressed in thousands) for
discretely presented component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, follow:

20



State of South Carolina

Public
Service
Authority State
(Santee- Ports
Cooper) Authority
Operating revenues.... $ 775,639 $ 84,801
Net income.................. 31,740 16,072
Total assets................. 3,322,310 520,502
Total fund equity.......... 828,870 322,096

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS

The most significant of the State’s Fiduciary Funds are the four retirement
plans administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Those plans include:
the South Carolina Retirement System, the Police Officers’ Retirement System, the
Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly, and the Retirement
System for Judges and Solicitors. The State has funded all four of these plans in
accordance with recommendations of the consulting actuaries, both in the current
period and in past periods. The State has no pension liability for those plans at
June 30, 1999.

The South Carolina Adjutant General’s Office administers the National Guard
Pension System. The State recorded a $4.202 million pension liability for that plan in
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1999. See Note 7,
“Retirement Plans,” in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more information.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The State finances many of its major capital needs by issuing bonds. Some of
this debt is general obligation debt backed by the full faith, credit and taxing power of
the State. Much of the debt, however, is revenue bonds and notes associated with
specific State agencies and discretely presented component units. Specific revenue
flows of particular agencies and discretely presented component units service revenue
debt.

Moody's Investors Service has rated South Carolina's general obligation bonds
as "Aaa," and Standard & Poor’s and Fitch Investors Service, Inc., rate these bonds as
"AAA," the highest ratings that these services award. The Comptroller General’s
Office annually furnishes the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and
related information to the bond rating firms. This process is critical to ensuring that
the State maintains its current high bond ratings.

During the fiscal year ended June 30,1999, South Carolina issued
$275.000 million and retired $87.765 million in general obligation bonds payable by
governmental funds. Of the bonds issued, $200.000 million were State highway
bonds. The State budgets and pays principal and interest on capital improvement
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bonds from current resources of the Budgetary General Fund. The Department of
Transportation Special Revenue Fund pays the debt service on highway bonds. At
June 30, 1999, the Higher Education Funds reported State institution general
obligation bonds outstanding of $78.305 million.

State law limits annual debt service expenditures rather than directly limiting
the amount of outstanding debt for general obligation bond and notes. The annual
debt service margin at June 30, 1999, was $138.765 million in total for all institution
bonds, $38.325 million for highway bonds and $100.554 million for general
obligation bonds excluding institution and highway bonds.

Net general obligation bonds/notes outstanding per capita (which excludes
general obligation bonds payable from Higher Education Funds) is an indicator of the
State's debt position that citizens, investors, and management may find useful. The
following table shows this amount at June 30 for the last three years:

1999 1998 1997
Net general obligation bonds/notes
outstanding...........ccoocoeriiieennns $1.141 billion $952 million $967 million
Net general obligation bonds/notes
outstanding per capita................ $293 $248 $255

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service Fund, had $38.206 million of
limited obligation lease revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1999.

The primary government's entities had revenue and Infrastructure Bank bonds,
notes, and certificates of participation of $1.566 billion outstanding on June 30, 1999.
Revenue and Infrastructure Bank bonds, notes, and certificates of participation
outstanding (expressed in thousands) by agency were:

South Carolina Housing Authority ..........cccoocvcrnmennncrieeecnenes $ 467,531
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority............cc.ccocoecvverinnne. 385,448
Transportation Infrastructure Bankbonds..........ccccccovevivencnccieeenns 275,000
Various higher education institutions.................ccccoeeniiniiiinene 435,187
Other State agenCies...........ccocoe vt 2,529
Total—primary government $ 1,565,695

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the Education Assistance
Authority advance refunded $43.570 million in revenue bonds to gain flexibilities
provided by the 1993 bond resolution and obtained an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of
$685 thousand. For additional details on this refunding as well as advance refundings
in the Higher Education Funds, see Note 10 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

In addition, discretely presented component units had the following amounts
of bonds and notes outstanding (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1999:
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South Carolina Public Senice Authority (Santee-Cooper)........... $ 1,801,660
South Carolina State Ports Authority........................ 182,434
Connector 2000 Association, INC.................ccccoiiiiiii 204,701

Total—discretely presented component units.................... $ 2,188,795

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998, the Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper) advance refunded $117.378 million in revenue bonds to reduce its
total debt service payments over the next twenty-six years by approximately
$62.548 million and to obtain an economic gain of approximately $16.846 million.
For additional details on this refunding and other discretely presented component unit
debt transactions, see Note 10 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer bank balances.
Agencies and component units may have collateralization policies that differ from
those of the State Treasurer.

Legally authorized investments vary by fund, but generally include
obligations of the United States and certain agencies of the United States, obligations
of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements and certain obligations of United States
corporations. Under State law, the State Retirement Systems Investment Panel may
make limited investments in equity securities for the State’s Pension Trust Funds.
For additional details, see Note 1g in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

As provided by law, the State Treasurer deposits money in a general deposit
account. The State records earnings of the general deposit account as revenue of the
General Fund. The Treasurer deposits other monies into various special deposit
accounts, each of which retains its own earnings.

State agencies that issue their own checks participate in pooled bank accounts.
These agencies issue checks against the pooled bank accounts. Meanwhile, the State
Treasurer invests account balances until the checks clear.

Investment income for the General Fund totaled $68.730 million for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1999. This income includes realized and unrealized gains and
losses.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The State generally does not purchase commercial insurance for the risks of
loss to which it is exposed. Instead, State management believes it is more economical
to manage its risk internally. Accordingly, the State sets aside assets for claim
settlement in its Internal Service Funds—specifically, in the Insurance Reserve Fund
(IRF), the Health and Disability Insurance Fund, and the State Accident Fund.

[
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The IRF services claims for many of the risks of loss to which the State is
exposed, including the following: property insurance on government-owned
buildings, the contents of such buildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile
liability insurance on government-owned vehicles and school buses; tort liability
insurance for government premises and operations; and medical professional liability
for hospitals. The IRF purchases aircraft and ocean marine insurance, areas in which
the IRF has limited expertise. Further, the IRF purchases reinsurance to limit losses
in the areas of property, boiler and machinery, automobile liability, and medical
professional liability. Reinsurance permits partial recovery of losses from reinsurers;
but the IRF, as direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily liable.

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund was established to provide health
and dental insurance coverage for eligible employees and retirees of State agencies
and school districts and group life and long term disability insurance coverage to
eligible active State and public school employees. The State, the predominant
participant, retains the risk of loss. Under the health insurance program, participants
elect coverage through either a health maintenance organization or the State’s self-
insured plan. All dental, group life, and long-term disability coverage is through the
State’s self-insured plan.

Section 42-7-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, established
the State Accident Fund to provide a program of workers' compensation insurance
coverage to State entities. The State assumes the full risk for covered claims. The
Fund purchases reinsurance to reduce its exposure to catastrophic losses on insured
events; however, as direct insurer of the risk, the Fund remains primarily liable.

The State conducts various risk control programs to help minimize losses. For
example, the health insurance program conducts extensive wellness education
programs for covered employees that promote development and maintenance of
healthful lifestyles.

The State also administers the Patients’ Compensation Fund, an insurance
enterprise, which provides medical malpractice insurance to participating licensed
health care providers within the State of South Carolina.

AUDIT

An independent audit of the general purpose financial statements was
performed jointly by the State Auditor and the independent certified public
accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP. This report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, includes an unqualified opinion, the best possible result of the audit
process.

The audit described above is not intended to meet the requirements of the
Federal Single Audit Act as amended. The Single Audit reports for the State are
issued separately.
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the State of South Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. In order to be awarded a Certificate
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized CAFR whose contents conform to rigorous program standards. Such
reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year
only.

The State of South Carolina has received a Certificate of Achievement for the
last eleven consecutive years (1987-1988 through 1997-1998). Again this year, the
State will submit its CAFR to the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting program of the GFOA. I firmly believe that South Carolina's
report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, meets the requirements to receive the
Certificate of Achievement.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Production of this report would not have been possible without the support of
all State agencies and component units that supplied GAAP closing data on a timely
basis. As we strive to produce this report in future years and to improve its quality
and content, continued support of these parties is essential.

We extend special thanks to the staff of the South Carolina Association of
Counties and to the county managers, supervisors, and administrators for providing
photographs and information regarding the county courthouses. We also extend our
appreciation to Dr. William C. Gillespie, Chief Economist of the State of South
Carolina, and to Philip G. Grose, Jr., Director of the State Budget and Control Board's
Executive Institute, for providing invaluable assistance in producing the report.

Sincerely,

o ol

omptroller General
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Principal State Officials

LEGISLATIVE—THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY

Robert L. Peeler, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor
John Drummond, President Pro Tempore of the Senate
David H. Wilkins, Speaker, House of Representatives

EXECUTIVE
STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD
James H. Hodges, Chairman, Governor
James A. Lander, Comptroller General
Grady L. Patterson, State Treasurer
John Drummond, Chairman, Senate Finance Committee
Robert W. Harrell, Jr.,* Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee
James M. Miles, Secretary of State
Charles M. Condon, Attorney General
Inez Tenenbaum, State Superintendent of Education
Major General Stanhope S. Spears, Adjutant General
D. Leslie Tindal, Commissioner of Agriculture

JUDICIAL
Ernest A. Finney, Jr.,** Chief Justice, South Carolina Supreme Court

Term
of Office

1999-2003
1997-2001
1999-2001

1999-2003
1999-2003
1999-2003
1997-2001
1999-2001
1999-2003
1999-2003
1999-2003
1999-2003
1999-2003

1994-2004

All of the legislative and executive officials are elected by the State's citizens in general elections. Members of the Supreme Court

are elected by the General Assembly.

*Representative Robert W. Harrell, Jr., became Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee, in September 1999 after

Representative Henry E. Brown, Jr., stepped down from that position.

**Jean H. Toal, Chief Justice-Elect, South Carolina Supreme Court, will become Chief Justice in March 2000 when the Honorable

Emest A. Finney, Jr., retires from that position.
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®ffice of the State Auditor

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Honorable James H. Hodges, Governor
and

Members of the General Assembly

State of South Carolina

Columbia, South Carolina

We have jointly audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of
South Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1999, as listed in the accompanying table of
contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the State’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial
statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the financial statements of certain blended
component units and agencies of the primary government, which statements reflect the indicated
percent of total assets and other debits and total revenues, respectively, of the Special Revenue
(56% and 18%), Enterprise (99% and 92%), Internal Service (74% and 87%), Pension Trust
(100% and 100%), Investment Trust (100% and 100%), Higher Education (100% and 100%), and
Agency (13% of assets and other debits) Funds, General Fixed Assets Account Group (12% of
assets and other debits), and the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (38% of assets
and other debits). We also did not jointly audit the financial statements of the discretely presented
component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, including the Office
of the State Auditor and Deloitte & Touche LLP acting separately, whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those component
units and agencies, is based solely upon the reports of other auditors. Deloitte & Touche LLP
acting separately has examined 100% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues of the
Investment Trust Fund. The Office of the State Auditor, acting separately, has examined 30% and
34% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues, respectively, of the Higher Education
Funds.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the discretely
presented component units identified in Note 1(a) were not audited in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu
International



In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
State of South Carolina, as of June 30, 1999, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of
its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable trust fund and discretely presented component units
for the year then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The year 2000 supplementary information is not a required part of the basic financial statements,
but is supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and
we did not audit and do not express an opinion on such information. Further, we were unable to
apply to the information certain procedures prescribed by professional standards because of the
unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue and its effects, and the fact that authoritative
measurement criteria regarding the status of remediation efforts have not been established. In
addition, we do not provide assurance that the State of South Carolina is or will become year 2000
compliant, that the State of South Carolina’s year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in
whole or in part, or that parties with which the State of South Carolina does business are or will
become year 2000 compliant.

Our joint audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements taken as a whole. The required supplementary information pertaining to the
National Guard Pension System and the combining financial statements and schedules listed in the
accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements of the State of South Carolina. These
financial statements and schedules are also the responsibility of the management of the State of
South Carolina. Except as described above, such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the joint audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our
opinion, based upon our joint audit and the reports of other auditors, is fairly presented in all
material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report, and
accordingly, express no opinion thereon.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 2, 1999 on our consideration of the State of South Carolina’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering
the results of our audit.

L-Qb(;«ﬂl, ¢ Q?M LLf

Columbia, South Carolina olumbia, South Carolina |

December 2, 1999 December 2, 1999
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Combined Balance Sheet

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
Special Capital Internal Trust and
General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Cash and cash equivalents .....................cc..cco....... $ 730,872 $ 1,334,764 $ 93,577 $ 163,101 $ 291,761 §$ 2,142,341
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents 28,638 — —_ — — 763,293
Investments .........cccceevveveiiecce e 6,168 384 — 4,970 242,871 17,946,870
Invested securities lending collateral....................... 7,160 2,155 286 966 30,509 1,439,254
Receivables, net:

ACCOUNES ...t 51,674 109,542 1,807 18,558 44,157 310,763

TEXES ..o eeeeeee e 375,635 129,173 — - — 42,779

Patient and student ...............c..coeieiii, — — — —_ — —_

Student oans ............ccocccveviviiii e — 15,510 -— 13 -_ —

Loans and notes ...........cccceveveciicniiiie i 182 250,709 —_ 394,130 — 95
Due from Federal government and other grantors .. 6,153 403,356 1,212 499 — 2,161
Due from other funds .............ccocoeiiiinieiiiciie 12,584 33,183 1,147 — 33,214 6,519
Due from component units..............cccccecevvervinnennnn. 4,114 — — —_ — —
Interfund receivables ...............cccccooeeeiiiiii i 4778 1,622 - — 423 —
Advances to otherfunds ....................coeoiiiin. 8,221 4,245 —_ — 16,444 —_
INVeNtOries .......cccoocoevveeieieec e, 13,704 17,584 — 2,214 6,643 —
Prepaid long-term operating lease.......................... — — —_ — — —
Servicing rights, net............cccccveeneiiniiniinenne — — — 1,840 — -
Interest in license agreement..................c..cceeene. — - — — — —
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ..................c.cccuvenne.. — — — 279,871 —_ —

Investments ..............ccccoeoiiiece e - — — 29,173 - —

Loans receivable .................cccc.oooeiiiiiiiie e, — — — 421,575 — —

Other ... - —_ — 8,279 — —
Other assets ............ccoovvvriivceereeee e —_ 1,124 — 809 2,280 —
Deferred charges ..............c.cocceevinecieniviniisens — —_ — 1,059 —_ —
Investment in joint venture................c.ccooeieiininn. — — — — — —
Property, plant, and equipment, net ...................... — — — 26,415 162,280 4,528
Amount to be provided for retirement of long-term

obligations ...........c.ccoeeoiiininie — — — — — —_—

Total assets and other debits .................... $ 1,249,883 $ 2,303,351 $ 98,029 $ 1,353,472 $ 830582 § 22,658,603

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ACCOUNT GROUPS Totals Primary Totals
General General HIGHER Government Reporting Entity
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION (Memorandum  COMPONENT (Memorandum

Assets Obligations FUNDS Only) UNITS Only)

$ - $ — $ 453,898 $ 5,210,314 76,011 $ 5,286,325
- - - 791,931 — 791,931

- - 108,785 18,310,048 192,864 18,502,912

- - 2,981 1,483,311 — 1,483,311

- - 14,023 550,524 103,856 654,380

— - - 547,587 - 547,587

— — 118,200 118,200 — 118,200

- - 47,434 62,957 — 62,957

_ - 52,573 697,689 — 697,689
—_ — 53,835 467,216 — 467,216

- - 17,221 103,868 — 103,868

— — - 4114 — 4,114

- - - 6,823 - 6,823

- - —_ 28,910 — 28,910

- — 24,949 65,094 96,107 161,201

— - 16,314 16,314 - 16,314

- —_ - 1,840 - 1,840
—_— — - —_ 34,678 34,678

- - - 279,871 270,329 550,200

- - - 29,173 218,185 247,358

- - - 421,575 - 421,575

- - — 8,279 — 8,279

- - 34,383 38,596 3,027 41,623

- - - 1,059 438,680 439,739
— — 3,936 3,936 6,328 10,264
2,406,819 - 3,113,667 5,713,709 2,614,531 8,328,240
— 1,644,608 — 1,644,608 — 1,644,608

$ 2406819 $ 1,644,608 $ 4,062,199 $ 36,607,546 4,054,596 $ 40,662,142

Continued on Next Page

#
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Combined Balance Sheet

ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

(Continued)
June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)
GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES
Special Capital Internal Trust and
General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency
LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY, AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............. $ 212291 $§ 371480 § 3968 $ 44070 §$§ 171,047 $ 62,598
Retainages payable...........c.c.ccccocciiiniieiiiiinann. — 16,253 949 - 344 —
Tax refunds payable ...........cccocooeveencvninrecininne 378,152 556 - — — 3,182
Intergovernmental payables ..........c...c....c.oeeenn. 66,100 120,769 — — — 243
Insurance claims incurred but not reported .......... — —_ - 9,440 171,489 —
Due to other funds ............cccoceviiiiiinii e 19,007 21,643 1,269 1,798 866 52,195
Interfund payables ............cccoco e 1,603 3,227 — 200 1,555 —
Advances from other funds ..................... 3,573 102 —_ 16,639 6,830 -
Deferred revenues and deferred credits ............... 181,888 63,671 50 6,663 52,542 656
DePOSItS .......ooirireeiecercr e - _— —_ 1,564 — 728
Amounts held in custody for others ... — — — — — "489,232
Securities lending collateral...................cc.occeoee. 7,160 2,155 286 966 30,509 1,439,254
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .............. — — —_ 70,746 — —
Notes payable ........cc.ccccovveviierviiice e — — —_ 230 1,514 —
General obligation bonds payable — — — —_ —_ —_
Infrastructure bank bonds payable — — — — — —_
Revenue bonds payable .................c.c.ccoeeiennnn. — — —_ 852,979 — —
Limited obligation bonds payable......................... — — —_ — 38,206 —
Certificates of participation payable ..................... — —_ —_ —_ — —_
Capital lease and instaliment debt obligations
payable ... — —_— — —_ 3,111 —
Commercial paper notes — — — — — —
Compensated absences payable ......................... — — —_ 1,204 5,030 —
Other liabilities ............ccceneruirireneesrrr e, 13,711 822 — 1,123 768 —
Total liabilities .........cccooevnrnnnes 883,485 600,678 6,522 1,007,622 483,911 2,048,088
Fund equity and other credits:
Contributed capital ..............cccooovviini e, —_ — — 20,310 81,961 —
Investment in fixed assets — — — — — —_
Retained earnings:
RESEIVEd......cc.ooiiiiieieieeee e — —_ — 257,925 —_ —
Unreserved, accumulated deficit—
development stage ..............ccccoveiiiiiine — — — — — —
unreserved ............oeeii e — — — 67,615 264,710 —
Fund balances:
RESEIVE ......coiiiiii e 335,038 350,722 — — — 20,487,098
Unreserved, Designated..............c.cccooeeiiceninne 31,360 336,826 91,507 — —_ —
Unreserved, Undesignated................................. —_ 1,015,125 —_ — — 123,417
Total fund equity and other credits.............. 366,398 1,702,673 91,507 345,850 346,671 20,610,515
Total liabilities, fund equity, and
other credits ..........cccervmiiiiicmnnneneans $ 1249883 $ 2,303,351 $ 98,029 $ 1,353472 $ 830,582 $_ 22658603

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ACCOUNT GROUPS Totals Primary Totals
General General HIGHER Government Reporting Entity
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION (Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum

Assets Obligations FUNDS Only) UNITS Only)
$ — $ 1392 $ 98,765 $ 965611 § 107,773  $ 1,073,384
— — 6,734 24,280 3,877 28,157
— - — 381,890 — 381,890
— 7,430 — 194,542 — 194,542
—_ 3,056 — 183,985 — 183,985
— — 7,090 103,868 — 103,868
— — 238 6,823 — 6,823
— — 1,866 29,110 — 29,110
— — 41,428 346,898 60,987 407,885
— — 3675 5,967 — 5,967
- — 4,089 493,301 — 493,301
— - 2,981 1,483,311 — 1,483,311
— - - 70,746 — 70,746
— 785 166,782 169,311 — 169,311
— 1,139,782 78,305 1,218,087 — 1,218,087
— 275,000 — 275,000 — 275,000
— — 247,707 1,100,686 2,188,795 3,289,481
— — — 38,206 — 38,206
— — 20,698 20,698 — 20,698
— 12,482 33,201 48,794 35,692 84,486
— - - — 456,100 456,100
- 180,637 91,828 278,699 12,735 201,434
— 24,044 6,731 47,199 37,342 84,541
— 1,644,608 812,098 7,487,012 2,903,301 10,390,313
— — — 102,271 211,797 314,068
2,406,819 — 2,612,636 5,019,455 — 5,019,455
— - — 257,925 — 257,925
— — — - (127) (127)
— — — 332,325 939,625 1,271,950
— — 326,096 21,498,954 - 21,498,954
— — 124,430 584,123 — 584,123
— — 186,939 1,325,481 — 1,325,481
2,406,819 - 3,250,101 29,120,534 1,151,295 30,271,829
$ 2406819 $ 1644608 $ 4062199 $ 36,607,546 $ 4,054,596 $ 40,662,142
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:
Individual income.............cccoooeiieiiinn

Licenses, fees, and permits..............c..cc........
Interest and other investment income............

Departmental services
Contributions.....................

Expenditures:
Current:
General government...............ccocceeiiiienn.
Education
Health and environment
Social services...........coccceenieriene
Administration of justice
Resources and economic development.......
Transportation..........ccccoooveriivcriorenicrcnns
Capital outlay..............cocoeicriniiriiiiieeeeen.
Debt service:
Principal retirement.............c.cccoeeniiiinnns
Interest and fiscal charges
Intergovernmental.............cccocoeeiiiiiininenn,

Total expenditures............ccccceeecrriiinnenn,
Revenues over (under) expenditures...........

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from bonds and notes...................
Lease and instaliment debt proceeds.....
Operating transfers in......................
Transfers from component units......
Operating transfers out...........................
Transfers to component units......................

Total other financing sources (uses).....

Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses......................
Fund balances at beginning of year.............
Decreases in reserve for inventories
Residual equity transfers out.......................

Fund balances at end of year...............c0eeueee

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
$ 2,282,249 $ 260 $ —
1,864,756 656,508 —
750,710 523,656 —_
178,634 111,896 —_
68,730 53,272 312
84,630 3,361,228 24,210
323,330 216,533 1
374 192,478 7,534
16,581 53,281 6,650
20,674 59,546 466
5,590,668 5,228,658 39,173
246,506 109,052 —
210,486 145,441 —
1,111,940 2,331,869 —
108,964 539,725 —_
548,978 83,894 —_
71,223 88,323 —

- 303,824 —

—_ 453,708 51,106
85,622 5,164 —
42,065 13,128 —

2,106,860 1,155,780 —

4,532,644 5,229,908 51,106

1,058,024 (1,250) (11,933)
419 484,076 76,332

7,412 36 —
15,215 78,900 13,325

7,886 — —

(881,661) (490) (47,294)

(16,000) — (3,182)
(866,729) 562,522 39,181
191,295 561,272 27,248
177,477 1,145,312 64,290

(1,038) (3,911) -

(1,336) —_— (31)

$ 366,398 $ 1,702,673 $ 91,507
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55—

FUND TYPE

FIDUCIARY

Expendable
Trust

$ —_—

$

171,854
487
56,166
7,467

8,710

1,547
246,231

195,887

141
7
11

4
196,050
50,181

1

(12—,714)
(12,713)

37,468
886,708

924,176

Totals
(Memorandum

Only)

$ 2,282,509
2,521,264
1,446,220

291,017
178,480
3,477,535
539,864
209,096
76,512
82,233

11,104,730

651,445
355,927
3,443,950
648,696
632,883
159,546
303,824
504,814

90,786
55,193
3,262,644

10,009,708
1,095,022

560,827
7,448
107,441
7.886

(277,739)

817,283

2,273,787
(4,949)
(1,367)

S 3084754
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State of South Carolina

E

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
Revenues:

AdMISSIONS 1AX.....ceee i, 3 7,500 $ 6,469 $ (1,031)
Aircraft tax..............cooooiii 3,434 3,064 (370)
Alcoholic liquors tax...........cccoceeeeeiiviiii i, 47,677 47,170 (507)
Bank taX........ccooovviioiiiice e 10,879 13,062 2,183
Beerand winetax............ccooeeeiiiiiiic i 84,574 84,834 260
Business license tax...............oocveie i 30,754 30,151 (603)
Coin-operated device taX.............c.cccocevereiiieeviniennn, 45,000 63,093 18,093
Commercial nuclear wastetax................................... — — —_
Contractors’ license tax.............cccceeveeveeiiiiiivec e — — —
Corporation income tax............oooevveeieoieeeeecee e, 208,050 215,275 7.225
Corporation license taX...........cc.cccoeveivieeiiiiieee e, 40,897 38,111 (2,786)
Department of Agriculture..............cccoooeiiiicvinincne — — —
Departmental revenue (primarily grant revenues

and fees for ServiCes).......c..cooovevvvvniiiiciie e 49,043 63,930 14,887
Documentary tax............c.cocoeeviiiioii e 30,166 30,272 106
Earned oninvestments..............cccccoeeeveveieenee e, 70,000 73,062 3,062
Education Improvement Act-1% sales tax................. — — —
Education Improvement Act—investment earnings..... — — _—
Education Improvement Act—other............................. — — —
Electric power tax..............cccooiiiiiioi e, 21,261 20,856 (405)
Estate tax.........ccooveiveiiiii 52,000 57,077 5,077
Excise tax—casual sales.................ccccceovvviir i 14,202 16,089 1,887
Fertilizer inspection tax..............cooooeeveiiei e 205 232 27
Gt EAX. e —_ 113 113
individual income tax.............ccoooeeeeiiiiiic i 1,937,928 1,986,165 48,237
INSUFANCE taX.......eeveviviiiie e 98,621 99,100 479
Miscellaneous SOUICES................ccoeeeiieiiiiiiceee 78,775 78,916 141
Motor transport fees............c.cccceeeinieiiniiii 6 10 4
Motor vehicle licenses.............cccccoevieiieeiciiccee, 88,458 83,142 (5,316)
Petroleum inspection tax................cc..ooooieiiinn, 7,559 7,554 (5)
Private carlinestax..............cc..cccooviiiiii i 2,447 2,451 4
Public service assessment..................c...cceeeveei — 50 50
Public Service Authority.............ccocoooviieiiiiiiiie 7,794 7,886 92
Retail sales tax (4%).........ccceeoviiviieiiiiiiicce e, 1,861,021 1,873,526 12,505
Retailers' license tax..............ccocoovviieiiiiiiiiiieee 1,042 1,103 61
Savings and loan association tax...................ccoceeee. 4,024 3,484 (540)
Softdrinks tax........cccooviviiiii 14,695 15,508 813
Workers' compensation insurance tax....................... 8,272 8,792 520

Total revenuUes........ccccvieniniemnicrcrrereeesseseresscressaneras 4,826,284 4,930,547 104,263

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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0 —

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS
Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable

Budget Actual {(Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 28,295 3 28,621 $ 326 35,795 35,090 $ (705)
— — —_ 3,434 3,064 (370)
— — —_ 47 677 47,170 (507)
— — — 10,879 13,062 2,183
—_ — — 84,574 84,834 260
— —_ — 30,754 30,151 (603)
—_ 7,262 7,262 45,000 70,355 25,355
26,604 51,841 25,237 26,604 51,841 25,237
1,677 2,554 877 1,677 2,554 877

— —_ — 208,050 215,275 7,225
—_ — — 40,897 38,111 (2,786)
3,310 2,620 (690) 3,310 2,620 (690)
7,185,072 6,907,030 (278,042) 7,234,115 6,970,960 (263,155)
407 216 (191) 30,573 30,488 (85)
63,303 52,131 (11,172) 133,303 125,193 (8,110)
468,806 472,220 3,414 468,806 472,220 3,414
2,500 2,572 72 2,500 2,572 72
6,266 623 (5,643) 6,266 623 (5,643)
— — — 21,261 20,856 (405)
—_ —_ — 52,000 57,077 5,077
— —_ — 14,202 16,089 1,887
— — — 205 232 27
—_ — — — 113 113
—_ 260 260 1,937,928 1,986,425 48,497
3,455 608 (2,847) 102,076 99,708 (2,368)
173,283 74,381 (98,902) 252,058 153,297 (98,761)
— 2,608 2,608 6 2,618 2,612
26,273 31,943 5,670 114,731 115,085 354
— — — 7,559 7,554 (5)
—_ —_ — 2,447 2,451 4
5,830 5,509 (321) 5,830 5,559 (271)

—_ — — 7,794 7,886 92
600 640 40 1,861,621 1,874,166 12,545

—_ — — 1,042 1,103 61
— — — 4,024 3,484 (540)

— —_ —_ 14,695 15,508 813

— —_ — 8,272 8,792 520
7,995,681 7,643,639 (352,042) 12,821,965 12,574,186 (247,779)

Continued on Next Page
—
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State of South Carolina
—

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands) BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
Variance
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Expenditures:
Legislative..........cccoovviiiiiii e $ 33,657 $ 29,823 $ 3,834
JUAiCial........ooreee e 44 434 39,532 4,902
Executive and administrative.....................c.cccoeee i, 175,550 140,334 35,216
Educational..............c.ooooiiiiii 2,412,228 2,371,366 40,862
Health........c.cooiii e, 880,106 846,468 33,638
Social rehabilitation services..............c.ccccoooeeevvienei. 132,676 124,930 7,746
Correctional and public safety..............c.cc.cccoci 543,014 510,513 32,501
Conservation, natural resources, and development... 137,623 121,143 16,380
Regulatory.........ccooiiiiiice e, 58,763 56,245 2,518
Transportation............coccooceeiiiviiicic e 579 571 8
Debt service.........cccooiviiiiii e 152,392 147,283 5,109
Miscellan@ous. ...............oooivviiieee e, 233,204 233,004 200
Enterprise agencies............cccococvvienieceie e 16,000 16,000 -
Total expenditures.............criiicciriicerniiienseneresnree 4,820,126 4,637,212 182,914
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures....... 6,158 293,335 287,177

Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in..............cccooeeeeiiciiii e — —_
Operating transfers out..............cccocooeiiiiiiiien, (86,920) (86,920) —

Total financing sources (Uses)...........ccerrereercnerane (86,920) {(86,920) —
Excess of revenues and other sources over
(under) expenditures and other uses.........ccccoearune. (80,762) 206,415 287177
Budgetary fund balance at beginning of year......... 516,462 516,462 —
Budgetary fund balance at end of year.................... $ 435,700 $ 722,877 $ 287,177

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS
Variance Variance
Final Favorable Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 1,660 $ 1,258 $ 402 $ 35,317 $ 31,081 3 4,236
875 306 569 45,309 39,838 5,471
400,039 289,634 110,405 575,589 429,968 145,621
2,669,643 2,507,705 161,938 5,081,871 4,879,071 202,800
2,990,630 2,912,150 78,480 3,870,736 3,758,618 112,118
638,079 585,196 52,883 770,755 710,126 60,629
211,945 167,905 44,040 754,959 678,418 76,541
213,802 165,655 48,147 351,325 286,798 64,527
179,050 158,218 20,832 237,813 214,463 23,350
1,025,604 906,162 119,442 1,026,183 906,733 119,450
- —_ —_ 152,392 147,283 5,109
— — — 233,204 233,004 200
19,182 7,282 11,900 35,182 23,282 11,900
8,350,509 7,701,471 649,038 13,170,635 12,338,683 831,952
(354,828) (57,832) 296,996 (348,670) 235,503 584,173

86,920 86,920 — 86,920 86,920 —_

— — —_ (86,920) (86,920) —_

86,920 86,920 —_ —_— —_ —_
(267,908) 29,088 296,996 (348,670) 235,503 584,173

1,136,332 1,136,332 —_ 1,652,794 1,652,794 —_
$ 868,424 $ 1,165,420 $ 296,996 $ 1,304,124 $ 1,888,297 $ 584,173
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND DISCRETELY

PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands) FIDUCIARY
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
Internal Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Trust
Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES...........cuuiiieiiiee e e s $ 76,296 $ 936,418 $ —
Contributions...........ccccceviiiiiecc e e — 2,974 —_
Interest and other investment income....................cooocei i, 52,880 26,326 (22)
Licenses, fees, and permits.............cc.oooeiiviiiiiiiii e — 1 99
Total operating revenues.............ccccierriiiniveeerisinireneresssmssssesessssss 129,176 965,719 77
Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.....................cccoooeiiiiiciiiie e 43,714 284,935 2
Benefits and claims...........cc.coconieniiiii . 11,972 700,880 —
Interest.........ccoveeeiiiii e 49,608 — —_
Depreciation and amortization 1,402 14,785 —
Other operating eXpPeNnSes. ............ccccveriiiiiiicerceeee et 3,195 4,022 —
Total operating @XPenses.........c...cccvrverereerinerrereseressrsraressssssssessnessaneane 109,891 1,004,622 2

Operating income ([0SS)........cccvrererrenrenerniscsirestenmenrseseraesessevessnesesens 19,285 (38,903) 75
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest iNCOME.... ... 2,061 4,933 —
Federal revenue..............c..coooiviviviiiie e 23,776 —_ —
Costs to be recovered from future revenues — — —
Interest expense.............ccoovviiiiiiie e (1,248) (4,908) —
Other nonoperating eXpenses.................c...coveeevvveeeevneenne.. (16,574) (1,556) —
Total nonoperating revenues (eXpenses)...........c.ocvieemsscismseieserserenee 8,015 (1,531) —_
Income (loss) before operating transfers and
extraordinary items............ccvcnminrenninn . 27,300 (40,434) 75

Operating transfers iN.............ccooviviciencen e 478 425 -
Transfers from primary government — — —
Operating transfers out.................ccocoeieiiiiiiii, —_ (5,025) —
Transfers to primary government.............c.oocoovviiiieiicccc e — — —

Income (loss) before extraordinary items........cccccocccerccrerenirencrieneenen. 27,778 (45,034) 75
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt......................c.oeieei (748) — —

Net income (I0SS)........coociiiiircrrer st r e e e 27,030 (45,034) 75
Retained earnings/fund balances at beginning of year........................... 298,510 309,744 1,649
Retained earnings/fund balances at end of year..........c.ccceccecerievnnnenenne 325,540 264,710 1,724
Contributed capital at beginning of year............ccccvevererecerrrnrcsnereninieenns 20,279 78,272 —_
Additions to contributed capital................ 31 6,561 _—
Deductions from contributed capital — (2,872) —_
Fund equity at end of year............ccoccviinnninnninicnnnnnnrnnencsersernenesenessenene $ 345,850 $ 346,671 $ 1,724

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Totals Primary Totals
Government Reporting Entity
{(Memorandum COMPONENT {(Memorandum
Only) UNITS Only)
$ 1,012,714 $ 860,455 $ 1,873,169
2,974 — 2,974
79,184 — 79.184
100 — 100
1,094,972 860,455 1,955,427
328,651 488,542 817,193
712,852 —_ 712,852
49,608 — 49,608
16,187 133,255 149,442
7,217 2,134 9,351
1,114,515 623,931 1,738,446
(19,543) 236,524 216,981
6,994 22,181 29,175
23,776 — 23,776
— (46,216) (46,216)
(6.156) (159,530) (165,686)
(18,130) (16,826) (34,956)
6,484 (200,391) (193,907)
(13,059) 36,133 23,074
903 - 903
— 19,182 19,182
(5,025) - (5,025)
— (7,605) (7,605)
{17,181) 47,710 30,529
(748) — (748)
(17,929) 47,710 29,781
609,903 891,788 1,501,691
691,974 939,498 1,531,472
98,551 209,524 308,075
6,592 2,273 8,865
(2,872) — (2,872)
$ 694,245 $ 1,151,295 $ 1,845,540

State of South Carolina
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999 PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY
(Expressed in Thousands) FUND TYPES FUND TYPE
Internal Nonexpendable
Enterprise Service Trust

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (JOSS) ......ccocvviiviiiieiie ettt $ 19,285 $ (38,903) $ 75
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ..................ccoeee i 1,402 14,785 —
Change in the fair value of investments..... 1,516 5,325 -
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts — 247 —
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback......... - (163) —
Issuance of loans and notes.............ccceoeeiieiieiincin e (161,688) — —
Collection of loans and notes.... . 158,857 — —
Interest payments ..., . 49,468 — —
Interest on investments and interfund foans............................... (20,675) (25,943) 22
Amounts received for payment of claims...........c.......cocoeevvennnnns 55,994 — —
Payment of claims................... (58,359) — —
Deferred coal contract buy-out Costs.............ocococeiriinncncn. — — —
Impact of transactions involving joint venture...................cc........ — — —
Other nonoperating revenUESs................ccvevvvivreciesinernesenesnens 710 165 —_
Other nonoperating eXpenses................c.cocoieviiiinccc e s —_ (12) —
OFRBL.....ceee ettt (232) (72) (30)
Change in assets—decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net.................c.coocin, 83 3,361 1
Due from Federal government and other grantors..................... (341) — —
Due from other funds.............cocooeieiiiiiiiii s 3 (8,967) —_
INVENEOMIES. ... (333) (199) —
Other current @ssets. ... (59) 121 —
Deferred charges..........c.cocoveriiiciiiiienice e — — —
Change in liabilities—increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................cccoccvvvienenns 5,590 6,524 —
Insurance claims incurred but not reported..................ccceeeene. 189 11,914 —
Due to other funds...... (186) 866 —
Deferred revenues .. . 1,828 (5,899) —
DEPOSIES. .....c.eiiimitiiiiiiie et 966 - —
Liabilities payable from restricted assets ..............cccocceeeveenernn.. (619) — —
Compensated absences payable .............c.coccevevicieccicieennnns 62 455 —
Other current liabilities....................c.oooii (15) 180 —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities............ 53,446 (36,215) 68
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Proceeds from loans made by other funds...........c.c.cocoeeeiinnn. 2,424 — —
Principal payments received from other funds.......................... — 20,564 —
Principal payments made to other funds.............c....ccocviernnene (201) (11,174) —
Receipt of interest from other funds...........c..ccccoceivivriiiiiinennne — 4,327 —
Interest payments made to other funds ..............cccoeoevirvnnnne — (2,337) —
Loans made to other funds..............ccccoeeiviiiiicnninnie — (2,423) —
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ..............cccocoeveviriennnnen. 26 — —
Principal payments on notes payable ... (26) — —
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds..................ccoiins 242,335 — —
Principal payments on revenue bonds...............cccceeivecinencennne (224,420) — —
Interest payments .........cc.c.ooiiiiiii (52,266) — —
Payment of bond issuance Costs.............cocevciiiiiiiicciecee (2,399) — —
Federal reVENUE .............cccoocveriiiiiiiciee et et 23,776 — —
Payments from Federal grants............c.ccccccrvrinicriciccrinncnnnne (21,397) — —
Operating transfers in ... 478 425 —
Operating transfers out ... —_ (5,025) —
Transfers from primary government ............cccocececeninirennccneen. — — —
Transfers to primary government ..........ccoccocviiciinrenicniennnn. — — —
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities............c.ccocrvrvisvnreierieanens (31,670) 4,357 —_

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
. __________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ |
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Totals Primary
Government

(Memorandum
Only)

$ (19,543)

16,187
6,841
247
(163)
(161,688)
158,857
49,468
(46,596)
55,994
(58,359)

875
{12)
(334)

3,445

2,424
20,564
(11,375)
4,327
(2,337)
(2,423)
26
(26)
242,335
(224,420)
(52.266)
(2,399)
23,776
(21,397)
903
(5,025)

(27,313)

COMPONENT
UNITS

Totals
Reporting Entity
(Memorandum
Only)

$ 236,524

133,255

6,300
(2,268)
218

(19,215)
128

(17,105)

$ 216,981

149,442
6,841
247
(163)
(161,688)
158,857
49,468
(46,596)
55,994
(58,359)
6,300
(2,268)
1,093
(19,227)
(206)

(13,660)
(341)
(8,964)
(7.088)
2,114
(5,049)

22,170

12,103
680

(4,071)

12,761

350,936

368,235

2,424
20,564

(11.375)
4,327

(2.337)

(2,423)
26

(26)
242,335
(224.420)
(52.266)
(2,399)
23,776
(21,397)
903
(5,025)
19,182
(7.605)

(15,736)

State of South Carolina

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

PROPRIETARY
FUND TYPES
Internal
Enterprise Service
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment ..................cc..o... $ (1,694) $ (26,006)
Principal payments on notes payable ...............ccecei — (751)
Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds.... — —_—
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds............... —_— —
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds...............cc......... — 4,789
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds.......................... — (2,170)
Interest payments ..........ccoccoooiciiiriiiiii e —_ (2,553)
Payment of bond issuance costs......... — —
Increase in commercial paper notes........... — —
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets................cccccocoiiines 7 12
Principal payments on capital leases and installment
debt obligations payable ............c.c.ccooiiii —_ (6,792)
Contributions of capital .........c..ccccoovriei i — —
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities...........c.ccooeviriiciniininiiniccnnenas (1,687) (33,471)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for interest in license agreement......................ccoeeeee $ — $ —
Proceeds from sale of investments ... 41,781 67,764
Purchase of investments ... (9,086) (111,405)
Interest on investments................c.coo 26,337 26,599
ISSUANCE OF I0ANS ......ovvviviiicicreni i (2,354) —
Collection of 10aNS ..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiie 214 —
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities.... 56,892 (17,042)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............... . 76,981 (82,371)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...............ceeeeue 365,991 374,132
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.........cccccccenennnnne $ 442972 $ 291,761
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance
sheet:
Cash and cash equivalents for Fiduciary Funds.......................
Less: Cash and cash equivalents for Expendable Trust
Funds, Pension Trust Funds, Investment Trust
Fund, and Agency Funds.............ccc.ccocccviniiiinininiinnn
Cash and cash equivalents Nonexpendable Trust Fund............
Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Equity losses related to interest in joint venture........................ $ — $ —
Acquisition of property and equipment through:
Accrual of liabilities...........cccoeiiiiii e — —
Transfers from other funds.................ooveeiieieicicr e — 2,168
Long-term interfund loan payments forgiven............................ — 1,336
Total noncash capital, investing,
and financing activitios..........ccuverrrnec s $ —_ $ 3,504

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FIDUCIARY
FUND TYPE
Nonexpendable
Trust
$ —
$ —
8
8
76
1,626
$ 1,702
$ 2,142,341
(2,140,639)
$ 1,702
$ —
$ -_—




Totals Primary
Government
{Memorandum
Only)

$ (27,700)
(751)

4,789
(2,170)
(2,553)

19

(6,792)

(35,158)

$ —_
109,545
(120,491)
52,944
(2,354)
214

39,858
(5,314)

741,749

$ 736,435

2,168
1,336

$ 3,504

Totals
Reporting Entity
COMPONENT (Memorandum
UNITS Only)
$ (103,460) $ (131,160)
— (751)
476,899 476,899
(468,436) (468,436)
— 4,789
_ (2,170)
(151,262) (153,815)
(9,487) (9,487)
214,450 214,450
— 19
(3,655) (10,447)
2,273 2,273
(42,678) (77,836)
$ (28,041) $ (28,041)
58,193 167,738
(275,287) (395,778)
24,030 76,974
— (2,354)
— 214
(221,105) (181,247)
98,730 93,416
247,610 989,359
$ 346,340 $ 1,082,775
$ 171 $ 171
223 223
— 2,168
—_ 1,336
$ 394 $ 3,898

State of South Carolina

e e e — - -
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands)

Additions:
Retirement contributions:
EMPIOYEL......ooereeeiire it
EmPpIOYEE.......ooviiviericceciis i
Transfers from other retirement systems....................

Total retirement contributions

Deposits, poo! participants.............ccccecmvivviieccenennene

Investment iNCOME.............oooiiiiiiiie it
Investment expense............c.cccevceeriiiiei e,

Net income from investing activities................

Securities lending income...........c..o.coccconiinenn
Securities lending expenses:
Borrower rebates...............cccceiveiiiinn
Management fees..........c.ccovvvvrveniiececee s

Total securities lending expenses ......................
Net income from securities lending activities...
Total net investment income.........................

Operating transfers in (for supplemental
retirement benefits)............cccocvviree i

Total additions.........ccoccciiniiiiincennrirannenein.

Deductions:
Regular retirement benefits..................c.ccc
Supplemental retirement benefits....................c.........
Refunds of retirement contributions to members.........
Group life insurance claims............ccooviciiniiiiinns
Accidental death benefits........... e
Withdrawals, pool participants....... [
Distributions to pool participants................cccccocinines
Depreciation.............coceeeiiiiiiiiic s
Administrative @eXpense.............c..cccceeeriieiiiieiiieenines
Transfers to other retirement systems........................

Total deductions.........ccccceeecirrricicnrssnnensennennane

Net increase in plan and pool
net assets.............cccevvvieniirinnnene

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits and
pool participants:
Beginning of year...........c.cccocviirimrnnnnnerinnsesscenans
End of Year.........ccocrvimimrnnmincnnneiisiesnnnsssssssnssnsans

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PENSION
South Police General
Carolina Officers’ Assembly
Retirement Retirement Retirement
System System System
$ 419,918 $ 69,541 $ 2,768
353,119 45,146 772
- . 3 1
773,037 116,408 3,551
391,954 52,990 1,178
816 134 1
391,138 52,856 1,177
70,232 8,278 125
67,514 7,830 122
67,514 7,830 122
2,718 448 3
393,856 53,304 1,180
435 12 —
1,171,249 169,836 4,731
715,878 77,654 3,941
4,356 124 —_
84,536 10,940 49
7,873 644 9
— 699 —
107 11 —
11,746 1,321 28
1,806 — 37
826,302 91,393 4,064
344,947 78,443 667
16,391,596 1,843,156 39,214
$ 16,736,543 $ 1,921,599 $ 39,881



State of South Carolina

#

INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST
Judges'
and National
Solicitors’ Guard Local Government
Retirement Pension Investment
System System Eliminations Totals Pool
$ 5,485 $ 2,499 $ — $ 500,211 $ —
1,253 — — 400,290 —
111 — (1,843) — —
6,849 2,499 (1,843) 900,501 —
—_ — — — 2,978,389
2,344 253 — 448,719 43,583
3 — — 954 —
2,341 253 - 447,765 43,583
316 — —_ 78,951 37
305 — —_ 75,771 33
— — — — 1
305 — — 75,771 34
11 — —_ 3,180 3
2,352 253 — 450,945 43,586
— — - 4,480 —
9,201 2,752 (1,843) 1,355,926 3,021,975
6,813 1,858 — 806,144 —
- — — 4,480 -
51 — —_ 95,576 —
6 —_ — 8,532 —
- — - 699 —
— —_ —_ —_ 2,856,969
— - — — 42,944
1 1 —_ 120 —_
59 —_ — 13,154 112
— (1,843) — —
6,930 1,859 (1,843) 928,705 2,900,025
2,271 893 — 427,221 121,950
82,215 6,600 —_ 18,362,781 772,663
$ 84,486 $ 7,493 $ —_— $ 18,790,002 $ 894,613
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State of South Carolina

“
Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

CURRENT FUNDS
LOAN
Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS
Revenues and other additions:
Unrestricted Current Fund revenues........ . $ 1,293,104 $ — $ —
Restricted student tuition and fees........... . —_ — —
Federal grants and contracts~restricted.................. — 329,374 775
State and local grants—restricted............................ — 7,759 73
Private gifts, grants, and contracts--restricted — 80,526 —
Investment income—restricted...................c.cooonn. — 6,094 267
Realized investment gains—restricted... —_ — —
Interest earned............coeoeeeeiiiiiieieee — — 1,119
Expended for plant facilities (including $64,256
charged to current funds expenditures,.................. — — —
Retirement of indebtedness (including $2,615
charged to current funds expenditures).................. — —_ —
Retirement of indebtedness—defeased bonds.......... — — -
Proceeds of refunding bonds — — —
Capitalization of interest cost...... — —_ —
Sale of Property........ccccoveeeieecveeiecce e — —_ —
Foundations and institutes..............ccccocooveeennnnnn. — —_ —
— 1,061 229
Total revenues and other additions................. 1,293,104 424,814 2,463
Expenditures and other deductions:
Educational and general...........cccocoovuiiiiicie 1,410,298 442,242 —
Auxiliary enterprises 194,461 2,962 —
Hospital..............ccccoeinnne 399,187 - —
Foundations and institutes... — — _
Indirect costs recovered — 34,711 —
Loan cancellation and bad debt write-offs — — 1,191
Administration and collection costs — 97 252
Expended for plant facilities (including
noncapitalized expenditures of $22,865)................ — — —
Retirement of indebtedness...................cooooveeno, — — —
Interest on indebtedness...... . — — —_
Disposal of plant facilities.................c.....occooeeveneine — — —
Refunding bonds issued......................o.ocoviviennnnn, — — —
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.. — — —
Refunds to grantors...............cccoooevvrennnine — 434 24
Other expenditures and deductions.......................... 2,283 33 67
Total expenditures and other deductions....... 2,006,229 480,479 1,534
Transfers in (out):
Transfers among Higher Education Funds:
Mandatory transfers for:
Principal and interest..............ccccooooeeceiiiniennnn. (39,011) — —
Renewals and replacements.................c.ccc........ - — —_
Loan fund matching grants (344) — 344
Other........covevviiciicne (58) 4 —
Nonmandatory transfers...............c..coovevveeeerennnn.. (59,029) (4,280) 68
Operating transfers in..............c.ocoovoeeeveiieeeene. 770,546 56,331 207
Operating transfers out.....................ccccoovvveveiririnnnn. (39,581) (81) —
Total transfers in (out) 632,523 52,011 619
Net increase (decrease) in fund balances............. (80,602) (3,654) 1,548
Fund balances at beginning of year (restated)..... 283,296 56,854 52,117
Fund balances at end of year........cccccccerreeerrnvuenns $ 202,694 $ 53,200 $ 53,665

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ENDOWMENT
AND SIMILAR

FUNDS

$ —

2,348
3,322
74

26

26

17
2,093

2,110

7,838
101,109

$ 108,947



_
PLANT FUNDS
Retirement
of Investment
Unexpended Indebtedness in Plant
$ — $ — $ —
5,070 20,777 —

13,385 270 —

— — 15
7,836 40 7,493
4,631 2,006 -

— — 225,918

585 —_ 31,375

— — 15,575

— 15,959 —

149 — 1,389
33 — —
995 791 293
32,694 39,843 282,058
184,527 — —_

— 29,355 —

— 20,177 —

— — 44178

— — 16,060

—_ 16,579 —_

187 228 1,854
184,714 66,339 62,092
102 38,909 —

30 (30) —
92,319 (10,488) (17,927)
47 282 —_ —_

(344) — —
139,389 28,391 (17,927)
(12,631) 1,895 202,039
164,648 33,476 2,410,597
$ 152,017 $ 35,371 $ 2,612,636

Foundations
and
Institutes

State of South Carolina

Totals

252,314

252,314

260,186

260,186

(_2,756)

(2,756)
(10,628)
42,199
3 357

$ 1,293,104
25,847

343,804

7,847

98,243

16,320

74

1,119

225918

31,970
15,575
15,959
1,538

33
252,314
3,379
2,333,044

1,852,540
197,423
399,187
260,186

34,711
1,191
349

184,527
29,355
20,177
44,178
16,060
16,579

484
4,652
3,061,599

874,366
(40,006)

834,360

105,805

3,144,296
33280101
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State of South Carolina
—

Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues,
Expenditures, and Other Changes

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Unrestricted Restricted Totals
Revenues:
Tuition and fees............cccccuemrmrinneiceeieeece e $ 449,064 $ 3,427 3 452,491
Federal grants and contracts 40,570 292,707 333,277
State grants and contracts..... —_ 10,558 10,558
Local grants and contracts................cccoeueuiiieeciccic e 33,216 2,664 35,880
Private gifts, grants, and contracts...................ccooeevecveverens 29,138 74,341 103,479
Endowment income..........c.cccoovnvrirnninninniennnnn. 631 2,187 2,818
Sales and services of educational departments........................ 33,091 — 33,091
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises.................cccceun. 213,782 — 213,782
Sales and services of hospitals 442,099 — 442,099
Oher......c.coiiiciii e 51,513 3,029 54,542
Total current revenues 1,293,104 388,913 1,682,017
Expenditures, mandatory and operating transfers:
Educational and general:
INSLIUCHION........c.oeiiiee et 674,899 26,343 701,242
RESEAICH......cc.ciiiictiieeee et 83,359 137,067 220,426
Public service......... 86,824 55,682 142,506
AcademiC SUPPOR............cooivvieiieeerceeetcee st 159,251 5,803 165,054
Student SEIVICES..........cviriirimrrnrres s 88,139 10,326 98,465
Institutional support............ccocvevreenne 153,714 4,073 157,787
Operation and maintenance of plant... 122,697 3,537 126,234
Scholarships and fellowships..........c..cccccceienininiiiciiie, 41,415 199,411 240,826
Educational and general expenditures.................c..cc........... 1,410,298 442,242 1,852,540
Mandatory transfers for:
Principal and interest................cccocooiiiicici 2,502 — 2,502
Loan fund matching grants............cc.cccoveevneieicincncen, 344 — 344
Other ...ttt et been 58 (41) 17
Total educational and general..............cccoeeecevvicinecierennene, 1,413,202 442,201 1,855,403
Auxiliary enterprises:
Expenditures...............cccoooi it 194,461 2,962 197,423
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest......................... 23,731 — 23,731
Total auxiliary enterprises............c.coovvvmeeeerecivrvercenrieens 218,192 2,962 221,154
Hospitals:
EXpenditures.............coecveeiieieeenicce e 399,187 — 399,187
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest........................ 12,778 — 12,778
Total hospitals............ccooceriiccicnnirnnirecer e 411,965 — 411,965
Operating transfers in.............cccoceevivenecinieeeccecece e, (770,546) (56,331) (826,877)
Operating transfers out..............cococoeveennniinciecreee e, 39,581 81 38,662
Total expenditures, mandatory and operating )
transfers. 1,312,394 388,913 1,701,307
Other additions (deductions):
Excess of restricted receipts over transfers to revenues........... —_ 1,180 1,190
Refunds to grantors —_ (434) (434)
Other deductions..............ccouevvvevrereinecerese e (61,312) (4,410) (65,722)
Total net deductions (61,312) (3,654) (64,966)
Net decrease in fund balances. $ (80,602) $ (3,654) $ (84,256)

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

e e

Combining Balance Sheet

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Connector Savannah
Public State 2000 Lakes
Service Ports Association, Regional
Authority Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 53,398 $ 22,284 $ 7 $ 322 $ 76,011
Investments............cocceeeee e 49,689 —_ 143,035 140 192,864
Accounts receivable, net .................ccccievinnnn 90,476 13,380 — — 103,856
INVENOTIES.......oovvve e ceiir e 94,568 1,539 - — 96,107
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............................ 128,827 —_ 635 —_ 129,462
IVESIMENES.... ..o —_— —_ 27,866 — 27,866
Other current assets..............ocooeiiiiieen 671 2,356 — — 3,027
Total current assets...........ccoccveereeeccericnnnnns 417,629 39,559 171,543 462 629,193
Long-term assets:
Interest in license agreement........................... —_ — 34,678 —_ 34,678
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............ccccoue.e. 34,925 105,942 - —_ 140,867
INVESIMENTS........ooviiiieeeeeere e 183,692 6,627 — —_ 190,319
Deferred charges...........ccccovvvniiniiieininenn, 430,917 2,662 5,101 —_ 438,680
Investment in joint venture..................ocoooieens 6,328 —_ — —_ 6,328
Total long-term assets...................ocoeeineennes 655,862 115,231 39,779 — 810,872
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements........................oe — 250,793 — — 250,793
Buildings and improvements............................ —_ 207,183 _ — 207,183
Utility plant.... 3,398,897 - — - 3,398,897
Machinery, equipment, and other.................... 1,893 47,832 — — 49,725
Construction in progress...............ccoeeeevvieeiieees 51,411 54,125 — _ 105,536
Less: accumulated depreciation....................... (1,203,382) (194,221) — — (1,397,603)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net...... 2,248,819 365,712 — - 2,614,531
Total assets $ 3,322,310 $ 520,502 $ 211,322 $ 462 $ 4,054,596
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. Continued on Next Page
#
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State of South Carolina
E

Combining Balance Sheet

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Connector Savannah
Public State 2000 Lakes
Service Ports Association, Regional
Authority Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 90,577 $ 11,703 $ 5,487 $ 6 $ 107,773
Retainages payable............cccoevveierrcciinennn, — 2,616 1,261 — 3,877
Revenue bonds payable................................. 81,910 1,459 — —_ 83,369
Capital lease and installment debt
obligations payable.................cccccerrererrninnnn. 3,322 60 - — 3,382
Commercial paper notes...................cccoeueee... 456,100 — — — 456,100
Compensated absences payable.................... — 1,536 — - 1,536
Other current liabilities.....................c.ccccoevnnnn.. 19,289 - — — 19,289
Total current liabilities.....................c.cccccee.. 651,198 17,374 6,748 ] 675,326
Long-term liabilities:
Deferred revenues and deferred credits.......... 60,987 — — — 60,987
Revenue bonds payable 1,719,750 180,975 204,701 — 2,105,426
Capital lease and instaliment debt
obligations payable............... 32,253 57 —_ —_ 32,310
Compensated absences payable.................... 11,199 — —_ - 11,199
Other long-term liabilities.......................c........ 18,053 — — — 18,053
Total long-term liabilities....................c..cce.u... 1,842,242 181,032 204,701 — 2,227,975
Total liabilities 2,493,440 198,406 211,449 6 2,903,301
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital..............cccceeevveviricrrieriene 34,438 176,339 _— 1,020 211,797
Retained earnings (deficit):
Unreserved, accumulated deficit—
development stage..........cc...cccovevrennnnne. — - (127) — (127)
Unreserved............ccoovveeeiiiiiiieeee 794 432 145,757 — (564) 939,625
Total fund equity (deficit) 828,870 322,096 (127) 456 1,151,295
Total liabilities and fund equity.............. $ 3,322,310 $ 520,502 $ 211,322 $ 462 $ 4,054,596

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Fund Equity

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICeS............ccoovrmiininie e

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
General operations and administration.............................
Depreciation and amortization...................c.cevninnnns
Other operating EXpenses.................ccoovvieeiiecece e

Total operating exp

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest iNCOMEe..........cocvvereenrecrceeinn,
Costs to be recovered from future revenues..
Interest expense................ocoeeeeienne
Other nonoperating revenues (EXpenses)..............c..........

Total nonoperating revenues (eXpenses)...................
Income (loss) before operating transfers.................

Transfers from primary government..............ccocooeniinninnn,
Transfers to primary government.............cccooeeeinenennn

Net income (loss)

Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year............
Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year.......................

Contributed capital at beginning of year..........cccccouvvnne
Additions to contributed capital

Fund equity (deficit) at end of year.......ccceevcecveceecrninns

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Savannah
Connector Lakes
Public State 2000 Regional
Service Ports Association, Loan
Authority Authority Inc. Fund Totals

775,639 $ 84,801 $ — $ 15 $ 860,455
775,639 84,801 — 15 860,455
436,574 51,958 — 10 488,542
116,665 16,590 — —_ 133,255
2,134 — — — 2,134
555,373 68,548 -— 10 623,931
220,266 16,253 - 5 236,524
19,948 2,213 — 20 22,181
(46,216) — — — (46,216)
(157,088) (2,442) — — (159,530)
2,435 (19,134) (127) —_ (16,826)
(180,921) (19,363) (127) 20 (200,391)
39,345 (3,110) (127) 25 36,133

- 19,182 — — 19,182
(7,605) —_ — — (7,605)
31,740 16,072 (127) 25 47,710
762,692 129,685 — (589) 891,788
794,432 145,757 (127) (564) 939,498
34,438 174,066 - 1,020 209,524

— 2,273 —_ —_ 2,273
828,870 $ 322,096 $ (127) $ 456 $ 1,151,295
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State of South Carolina
“

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Connector Savannah
Public State 2000 Lakes
Service Ports Association, Regional
Authority Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals

Cash flows from operating actlvities:
Operating iNCOME ..........ccooeerieiiierieerever et $ 220,266 $ 16,253 $ _ $ 5 $ 236,524
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ...............cocoocvininniecnns 116,665 16,590 - —_ 133,255
Deferred coal contract buy-out costs ...................cccococcnnn 6,300 _— — —_ 6,300
Impact of transactions involving joint venture........................ (2,268) —_ - — (2,268)
Other nonoperating revenues.................cccoovurrenencenecerncennens — 218 - _ 218
Other nonoperating XPenses.............covvvvvevecevcererecieeeenenenens (33) (19,182) — - (19,215)
ORI ... s —_ 128 — — 128

Change in assets—decreases (increases):

Accounts receivable, net ... (15,217) (1,888) — — (17.105)

Inventories........... (6,405) (151) - — (6.556)

Other current @ssets.............ooovoorrcrmriniei e 1,032 1,020 - —_ 2,052

Deferred Charges............cccccooviiiiiie e (5,049) — — — (5,049)

Change in liabilities—Increases:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................c.c..c.c.... 9403 652 — 1 10,056

Other current liabilities.................cocovveiiiiin s 12,596 — — — 12,596

Net cash provided by operating activities..................cccee. 337,290 13,640 — 6 350,936
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfers from primary government...............ccccooeeneivernenenns - 19,182 — — 19,182

Transfers to primary government (7.605) —_ —_ —_ (7,605)

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
financing activities (7,605) 19,182 —_— —_— 11,577

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. Continued on Next Page
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Combining Statement of Cash Flows
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:

Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment.......................
Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds...........
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds...........
Interest payments ............cccccoeeieiiiii s
Payment of bond issuance costs
Increase in commercial paper notes ...
Principal payments on capital leases and installment

debt obligations payable ..o
Contributions of capital ...........ccceccviviimiines

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
related financing actlvities

Cash flows from Investing activities:
Payment for interest in license agreement..........................
Proceeds from sale of investments.............ccccoeicnninn
Purchase of investments ................ccocoiviiiin,
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by (used In)
Investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.....................

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year................ccccccnaeea.

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities:
Equity losses related to interest in joint venture......................

Acquisition of property plant and equipment through
accrual of i@bilities..............ccoooiriii e

Total noncash capital, investing,
and financing activities

State of South Carolina

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Connector Savannah
Public State 2000 Lakes
Service Ports Association, Regional
Authority Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals

(68,043) $ (35417) § — $ - $ (103,460)

131,083 151,105 194,711 — 476,899
(442,308) (26,130) — — (468,436)
(142,567) (7,223) (1,472) — (151,262)
(5,020) (2,109) (2,358) — (9,487)

214,450 — —_ —_ 214,450
(3,610) (45) — — (3,655)

— 2,273 — — 2,273
{316,013) 82,454 190,881 — (42,678)
— — (28,041) — (28,041)

— 32,687 25,226 280 58,193
(51,381) (35,234) (188,392) (280) (275,287)
16,680 6,362 968 20 24,030
(34,701) 3,815 (190,239) 20 (221,105)
{21,029) 119,091 642 26 98,730
238,179 9,135 = 296 247,610
217,150 $ 128,226 $ 642 $ 322 $ 346,340
171 $ — $ — 3 - $ 171

— 223 —_ — 223

171 $ 223 $ —_ $ - $ 394
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI-
CANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a. Scope of Reporting Entity

The State of South Carolina is %overned by the
South Carolina General Assembly, an elected
legislative body, and severa] elecfed executives.

ese general purpose financial statements present
the State and its component units—entities for which
the State and its elected officials are considered to be
financially accountable. )

Blended component units, although legally
separate entities, are, in substance, part of the State's
operations. Accordingly, data from these component
units are combined Wwith data of the primary
government. Each discretely presented component
unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate
column_in the combined financial statements to
emphasize that it is legally sertl)arate from the State.

. As explained more’ fully below, the State's
primary government and its component units include
various State funds, account groups, agencies,
departments, institutions, authorities, and other
organizations.

Primary Government

Al] constitutional offices, departments, agencies,
commissions, and authorities have been included in
the State's reporting entity as part of the primary
govemment unless otherwise noted. Most of these

ave executives or boards appointed by the
Governor, the General Assembly, or a combination
thereof. These entities are financially accountable
to, and fiscally dependent on, the State:

Although'they operate somewhat autonomously,
the entities listed below are included in the State's
primary government because they lack full corporate
powers.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1999:
State Housing Finance and Development
Authority ) )
South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority )
Jobs-Economic Development Authority
Patriots Point Development Authority

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1998:
The” Public Railways Division of the
Department of Commerce

The State's five retirement systems are
considered part of the State's primary government,
The State Budget and Control Board, consisting of
five elected officials, serves as trustee of the
s stdems, and the State Treasurer is custodian of the
unds.
. The ten State-supported universities and the
sixteen area technical colleges and their blended and
discrete _component units are reported within the
State's Higher Education Funds as part. of the
primary government. Although the universities and

colleges operate somewhat autonomously, they lack
full corporate powers. In_ addition, the Governor
and/or the General Assembly appoints most of their
1f30a(r1ds and budgets a significant portion of their
unds.

Note lu provides further information concerning
component units of the universities and colleges.
The component units of the universities and colleges
are:

Blended Component Units:
The Citadel Trust
IPTAY Scholarship Fund
The Faculty House of Carolina, Inc.

Blended Component Units Discretely Presented:
Clemson Research Facilities Corporation
Lander Foundation ) o
Lander University Alumni Association
Umversxéy of South Carolina School of

. Medicine Educational Trust

Clinical Faculty Practice Plan (University
of South Carolina)

Charleston Memorial Hospital

University Medical Associates of the
Medical University of South Carolina
(including  its ~ three  for-profit
subsidiartes) . .

Medical Un_1ver51]§:y Facilities Corporation

Pharmaceutical Education and Develop-
ment Foundation of the Medical
University of South Carolina .

Medical University of South Carolina
Foundation for Research
Development

Blended Component Units

The State's financial statements include the
Governor's School for the Arts Foundation, Inc., a
blended component unit. The Foundation exists
solely to support the South Carolina Governor's
School for the Arts and Humanities. Complete
financia] statements for the Foundation may be
obtained from its office as follows:

Governor’s School for the Arts

Foundation, Inc.
Post Office Box 2848
Greenville, South Carolina 29602

Discretely Presented Component Units

. The State's financial statements include the
discretely presented component units listed below.

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1999: i
South Carolina State Ports Authority
Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1998: .
South Carolina Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper)

Fiscal ~year ended December 31, 1998,
development stage enterprise:
Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
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The South Carolina Public Service Authority, a
%ubllc utility company, was created by the State
eneral Assembly in 1934. The Authority's primary
purpose is to provide electric power and wholesale
water to the people of South Carolina. The
Governor aIgpomts the Authority's Board of
Directors. By law, the Authority” must annually
transfer to the State General Fund any net earnings
not necessary for prudent business operations,

The South Carolina_State Ports Authority was
created in 1942 by the State General Assembl¥ for
the purposes of developing and improving the State's
harbors and seaports. e State Ports Authority
owns and operates seven ocean terminals that handle
import and export cargo. The Governor apgomts the
members of the Authority's Eover.nmg board.

Connector 2000 ~ Association, Inc. a
development stage enterprise was created in 1996 to
assist the Department of Transportation in the
financing, acquisition, construction, and operation of
turnpikes and other transportation projects, primarily
the project known as the Southern’ Connector in
Greenville County. The Association is considered to
be in the development stage during the construction
of the Southern Connector. The project is e)épected
to be completed and in full operation in 2002. The
Department of Transportation m1t1all){1 set_the_toll
rates for the Southern Connector and 'has the right,
but not the obligation, to revise the rates as long as
they are within 90% to 120% of the optimum toll
ratés as estimated b%/ an independent traffic
consultant retained by the Association. The rates
also must be in compliance with revenue covenants
of the Association's financing agreements. The
Association issued its first financial statements for
its fiscal l%/ear ended December 31, 1998, because it
did not have any financial activity before 1998
Therefore, the Association’s financial statements for
the fiscal year ended _December 31, 1998, also
represent the cumulative amounts from the
enterprise’s inception. .

he Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund was
established in 1990. It maintains a revolving loan
fund to promote economic development in the
State's Savannah Lakes Region. The Fund's Board
of Directors consists of three members from each of
two State agencies, the Department of Commerce
and the Jobs—Economic Development Authorl%.
. ..Complete financial statements for each of these
individual component units may be obtained from
the entity's administrative office as follows:

South Carolina Public Service Authority
(Santee-Cooper)

One Riverwood Drive )

Moncks Corner, South Carolina 29461-2901

South Carolina State Ports Authority
Post Office Box 22287
Charleston, South Carolina 29413-2287

Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
c/o Sinkler & Boyd, P.A.

15 South Main Street, Suite 500
Greenville, South Carolina 29601

Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund
1201 Main Street, Suite 1750
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

These financial statements exclude the related
foundations listed in Note 14 because the State does
not significantly influence operations of the related
foundations nor are the related foundations
accountable to the State for fiscal matters.

Related Organizations

. A related organization is one for which the

rimary government is accountable but not
%nqnczally accountable. The South Carolina
Children's Trust Fund and the Gift of Life Trust
Fund of South Carolina_are related organizations
because the State is not financially accountable for
them despite the fact that the Governor appoints all
of their trustees.  County boards of mental
retardation are related organizations if their members
are appointed by the Governor but are not related
organizations if their members are appointed by their
respective county councils. =~ Entérprise
Development, Inc.,”of South Carolina is a related
organization because the State created the
organization and could abolish it, but the State is not
financially accountable for it.

Jointly Governed Organizations

The Governor, in conjunction with officials of
certain local governments, appoints the board
members of two military faCllltK redevelopment
authorities. The State does not have an ongoing
financial interest in these authorities. The Governor
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appoints one out of seven board members of the

harleston Naval Complex Redevelopment
Authority and three out of nine board members of
the Myrtle Beach Air Force Base Redevelopment
Authority.

Contingent Future Change in Entity

The Medical University of South Carolina
(MUSC), including its Medical Center, are reported
within_the State’s Higher Education Funds. In
June 1999, the South Carolina General Assembly
assed _legislation to establish the Medical

niversity os;lnta_l Authority to operate the Medical
Center. "The legislation would take effect upon
lz{g roval of the Governor or upon adoption by the

SC Board of Trustees of a resolution endorsing
the provisions of the l_e§1slatlon whichever occurs
later. Under the le%lls ation, MUSC’S Board of
Trustees would  be the governing body for the
Medical University Hospital Authority.

b. Basis of Presentation—-Fund Accounting

The State uses fund accounting under which it
segregates its resources and accounts for them in
various individual funds. Each individual fund is an
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts.  Individual funds that have similar
characteristics are combined into fund types.

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds finance most of the State's

ﬁ:)vemmental functions. The measurement focus of

e Governmental Funds is on sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources.

The General Fund is the State's general
operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund
the services South Carolina's State government
tradl.tlonall){)has provided to its citizens, except those
required to be accounted for in another fund. .

Special Revenue Funds account for specific
revenue sources (Ether than_for Capital Projects,
Trust, and Higher Education Funds) that are legally
restricted for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds account for resources to
acqujre mgor anltal facilities for use by the General
Fund and Special Revenue Funds.

Debt Service Funds are not used because the
State does not accumulate resources to pay future
gears' Feneral long-term obligations. Instead, the

tate finances such payments directly from the
current year's resources.
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Proprietary Funds

Proprietary Funds account for activities similar
to those found in the private sector. The Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and _its
predecessor organizations have issued accounting
and reporting standards for activities in the private
sector. The State's Proprietary Funds have elected
not to apply standards issued by those organizations
after November 30, 1989. These funds, however
have applied all applicable pronouncements issued
? A?éeB ; overnmental Accounting Standards Board
. The measurement focus of the Proprietary Funds
is upon determination of net income, financial
position, and cash flows. ) .

_Enterprise Funds account for business-like State
activities that provide goods/services to the public
financed primarily through user charges. )

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services to
other funds, agencies, component units, or
governments on a cost-allocation basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units. Both
principal and earnings ot Expendable Trust Funds
may be used for purposes allowed under the trust
a%reements. Only the eammgs, but not the principal,
of Nonexpendable Trust Funds may be expended.

Expendable Trust Funds 'have ‘the same
measurement focus as Governmental Funds.
Nonexpendable Trust, the Investment Trust Fund,
and Pension Trust Funds have the same
measurement focus as Proprietary Funds. Agency
Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve
measurement of results of operations.

Account Groups

. The General Fixed Assets Account Group
includes all fixed assets of the primary government
other than those accounted for in the Proprietary,
Fiduciary, and ngEer Education Funds.

The General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group accounts for all long-term obligations_of the
Brlmary government_not accounted’ for in the

ropriétary  and ngll)le'r _Education  Funds.

Significant long-term obligations include bonds,
capital leases, compensated absences, and claims
and judgments.
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Discretely Presented Component Units

The State's discretely presented component units
conduct Dbusiness-like” activities that provide
goods/services to the public and are financed
grlmarll through user charges. The measurement
focus of these entities is upon determination of net
income, financial position, and cash flows. The
Public ' Service Authority and the State Ports
Authority have elected” to apply all FASB
ronouncements that are not inconsistent with
ASB pronouncements. The remaining discretely
presented component units have elected not to apgly
standards _ issued by the FASB a
November 30, 1989.

c. Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting determines when the
State recognizes revenues and expenditures/expenses
and related assets and liabilities, regardless of
measurement focus.

Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency
Funds

_ The modified accrual basis of accounting is used
in Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency
Funds. Under the modified accrual basis, reyenues
are recorded when they become susceptible to
accrual Sl.e., both measurable and available). Except
for entitlements, unemployment insurance taxes, and
interest on investments, revenues are  deemed
available at year-end only if received within one
month following year-end, Unemployment
insurance taxes in thé Expendable Trust Funds are
deemed available at year-end only if received within
forty-five days following year-end. Interest on
invéstments_is recorded as earned because it is
deemed available when earned. Deferred revenue is
recorded for receivables that are measurable but not
available at year-end. . )

Individual and corporate income taxes in the
hands of employers or corporations, sales and
similar taxes (including gasoline taxes) in the hands
of merchants or other State collection agents
delinquent taxes, A charges for services an
commodities, and interest income are accrued at
year-end. Fines, forfeitures, licenses and fees, and
other miscellaneous taxes and revenues are recorded
as revenues when received in cash because they are
generally not measurable until actualgl received.

Expenditures generally are recorded when goods
or services are received. ~An exception is that
%rmmpal and interest on obligations reflected in the

eneral Long-Term Obligations Account Group are

recorded as expenditures when due. Additional
exceptions are that expenditures for compensated
absences, claims and judgments, and special
employee termination benefits reflected in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group are
recorded when paid.

Proprietary Funds, Similar Trust Funds, and
iscretely Presented Component Units

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting to
report activity of _the Proprietary Funds,
Nonexpendable” Trust Fund, Pension Trust Funds
Investment Trust Fund, and the discretely presente
component units. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, funds recognize revenues when earned
and expenses when incurred. The Public Service
Authority, a discretely presented component unit, is
a re%ulated utility that uses_ accounting_principles
established by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission. ~ The Connector 2000 Association,
Inc., uses accounting principles established for
development stage enterprises.

Grant/Entitlement Revenues

The State recognizes grants, including non-cash
support, as revenue when the State has incurred
grant costs and has met all related grant
requirements (such as matching requirements). In
contrast, the State recognizes entitlements as
revenue at the beginning of the entitlement period.

Non-cash support in the form of food
commodities totaled $15.821 million for the fiscal
¥ear ended June 30, 1999. The State recognizes the
ace value of food stamp benefits distributed as
revenue and expenditures in the Departmental
General Operating Fund (a Special Revenue Fund)
at the date of distribution to individual recipients,
Food stamp revenues and expenditures for the fiscal

ear ended June 30, 1999, totaled $255.051 million.
n addition, the State has recorded $54 thousand for
food stamp coupons on_hand at June 30, 1999, as
part of Other Assets and Deferred Revenue.

The State normally does not_account for any
grants in its Agency Funds. Pending determination
of which funds are to be financed, however,

rant/entitlement monies to be distributed to_other
tate agencies are accounted for, in Asgency Funds.
At June 30, 1999, assets totalin 09 thousand
were being held in Agency Funds pending such
determination.

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The amounts shown on the Combined Balance
Sheet as Cash and Cash Equivalents reﬁrgesent petty
cash, cash on deposit in banks, and cash invested in
various instruments as a part of the State's cash
management pool, an internal investment pool.
Because the cash management pool operates as a
demand deposit account, amounts invested in the

ool are classified as Cash and Cash Equivalents.
he State Treasurer administers e cash
management pool. The pool includes some long-
term nvestments such as obligations of the United
States and certain agencies of the United States,
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obligations of domestic corporations, certificates of
deposit, and collateralized repurchase agreements.

Most entities in the primary government
participate in the cash management pool. “Significant
exceptions, however, are: retirement plans, the
Local Government investn_lent Pool (an_external
investment_pool), the Housing Authority Fund (an
Enterprise Fund), and certain activities of the Higher
Education Funds. Of the discretely presented
component units, only the State Porfs Authority
?artlclpates in the pool. For actiyities excluded from
he pool, Cash quqwa_lents include investments in
short-term, highly liquid securities having an initial
maturity of three months or less.

e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest

The State's cash management pool consists of a
general deposit account and several special deposit
accounts. The State records each fund's equity
interest in the general deposit account. All earnings
on that account, however, are recorded in the
General Fund.  In contrast, each special deposit
account retains 1ts own earnings.

f. Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents

The Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents in the
Trust, and Agency Funds consists of amounts
associated with the unemgloyment compensation

rogram that are on deposit with the United States

reasury. The amount recorded in the General Fund
represents a state-specific interest-bearing escrow
account connected with the gain from a multi-state
legal settlement with the tobacco industry as
discussed in Note 19b.

g. Investments

. The State Treasurer is authorized by statute to
invest all State funds. The State Treasurer’s
investment obtlectlves are preservation of capital,
maintenance of adequate 11qu1d1r_%, and obtaining the
best yield possible within prescribed parameters. To
meet those objectives, the State Treasurer uses
various resources including an investment advisory
service, = electronic  financial quotation and
information services, various economic reports, and
daily communication with brokers and financial
institution investment officers. =

To insure safety of principal, the State
Treasurer’s policy is to limit liquid investments (i.e.,
those with maturities not exceeding one year) to
cash, repurchase agreements (when collateralized by
United States Treasury, Federal agency or other
Federally guaranteed obligations with a market value
in excess of 100% of funds advanced), United States
Treasury bills, Federal agency discount notes, and
commercial paper. The State Treasurer further
preserves ?rmmpal by investing in only the highest
investment grade securities (i.e., those rated at least
A by two leading national rating services). In order
to a{l.vemfy investment holdings, asset™ allocation
?OIICICS are utilized for investments having more
han one year to maturlt?'. Overall credit exposure is
managed™ by asset allocation policies and by

additional constraints controlling risk exposure to
individual corporate issuers. )

Under State law, the State Retirement Systems
Investment Panel (the Panel) may make [imited
Investments in_equity securities for the State's
Pension Trust Funds.” Each member of the State
Budget and Control Board appoints one member of
the five-member Panel. The Panel’s objective is to
optimize the long-term performance™ of equity
investments consistent with a prudent level of
portfolio risk, considering the liabilities and liquidity
needs of the State’s Pension Trust Funds. Note 4¢,
State  Retirement Systems Investment Panel,
includes specific details related to the Panel’s
investment plan for the current fiscal year.

Substantially all of the State’s investments are

resented at fair value; securities are valued at the
last reported sales price as provided by an
independent pricing service. In contrast, however,
the "State has presented at historical cost the
investment securities and other instruments that the
Chief Insurance Commissioner holds for insurance
companies in lieu of surety bonds. These
instruments are recorded in fhe State’s Agency
Funds and are not held for investment purposes.

The State sponsors the Local Government
Investment Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool
reported in the Fiduciary Funds as a separate
Investment Trust Fund. ~ The LGIP's separate
financial report may be obtained by writing to the

following address:

The State Treasurer's Office

Local Government Investment Pool
Post Office Drawer 11778
Columbia, South Carolina 29201

h. Receivables

Receivables are stated net of allowances for
uncollectible amounts. Uncollectible amounts are
estimated based upon past collection experience.

i. Inventories

Inventories of the Governmental Funds are
valued at cost using re_dommantl}{) the average cost
methodology. Inventories of the Proprietary Funds
and the discretely presented component units are
valued at cost using the average cost methodology.
The Governmental Funds use the purchases method
while the Proprietary Funds and the discretely
pres}?n(tied component units use the consumption
method.

j- Servicing Rights

The Public Railways Division of the Department
of Commerce (reporfed in the Other Enterprise
Funds) entered into a servicin al%reement during its
fiscal year ended December 31, 1995. The Division
reports servicing rights as an intangible asset which
will be amortized to operating expenses over the life
of the agreement. The servicing rights are stated net
of accumulated amortization.
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k. Interestin License Agreement

The Connector 2000 Association, Inc., a
development stage enterprise reported as a discretely
presented component unit, is a paxB' to a License
Agreement with the State’s  Depa )
Transportation (DOT). The Association is financin
and constructing the” Southern Connector toll roa
under the terms of the Agreement. The Agreement
grants to the Associafion _various rights and
obligations pertaining to the financing, acquisition,
construction, and operation of the Southern
Connector. However, DOT retains fee simple title to
the Southern Connector, all real property and
improvements thereon, ~and_  all  rights-of-way
acquired during construction. Following completion
of the Southern Connector’s construction and
commencement of toll road operations, the
Association will be entitled to collect the tolls and
will be required to pay monthly license fees to DOT.

The Association’s _interest in the License
Agreement is an intangible asset that will generate
revenues for the Association upon completion of the
Southern Connector’s construction and
commencement of toll road operations. In order to
account for its interest in the License Agreement, the
Association 1s _capltahzml% all costs of acquisition
and construction of the Southern Connector,
including interest expense attributable to the
construction period. Once the toll road is open to
the public, the Association’s interest in the License
Agreement will be amortized on a straight-line basis
%g% the remaining term of the Agreement through

l. Fixed Assets and Depreciation

_Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or at
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data
are not available. Donated fixed assets are recorded
at fair market value on the donation date.

Governmental Funds

Governmental Funds record @x;l)pnditures when
they acquire fixed assets and capitalize those assets
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The
General Fixed Assets Account Group records neither
depreciation _nor capitalization __ of interest
exgendlturgs during construction. The State does
not record its public domain (infrastructure) assets in
the General Fixed Assets Account Group.

Proprietary Funds, Similar Trust Funds, and
iscretely Presented Component Units

Proprietary Funds, Nonexpendable Trust Funds
Pension Trust Funds, the Investment Trust Fund, an
the discretely Eresented_ component units capitalize
fixed assets ‘when acquired. Net interest costs are
capitalized on _ projects du_rm% the construction

eriod. Depreciation is provided using the straight-

Fine method over the following estimated useful

lives:

partment of

Asset Years
Wando River channel dredging project............... 50
Other land improvements 3-60
Residential buildings ................ 20-30
Office and other buildings 5-50
Naval museum exhibits ..................c.ccoeinin. 10-25
Hydro-electric utility plants ....................c..... 55
Other utility plants ..o 22-37
Automobiles, vans, light trucks........................... 5-8
Heavy trucks and buses....................cccocoeen 8-15
Airplanes and helicopters..........cccocccoviniciiecnes 3-8
Other furnishings and equipment ....................... 2-25

Depreciation on fixed assets acquired from
Contributed Capital is closed to Retained Earnings.

m. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable
from Restricted Assets

Most of the amounts reported as Restricted
Assets in the Enterprise Funds and in the discretely
?resented component units represent assets required
to be held and/or used as specified in bond
indentures and bond resolutions. " In the Enterprise
Funds, Restricted Assets also include amounts
collected by the Second Inju_ri Fund to pay claims
for which the Fund has no'risk. The amounts held
by the Second Injury Fund are offset by Liabilities
Payable from Restricted Assets to demonstrate that
the Fund has not assumed any risk for the payment
of claims. . .

Restricted assets are classified _into four
categories: Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Investments, Loans Receivable, and Other. The
State's restricted assets consist primarily of United
States government securities, repurchase
agreements, and mortgage loans receivable.

n. Deferred Charges

Deferred costs to be recovered from future
revenues of the South Carolina Public  Service
Authorltg (a regulated utility which is a discretely
resented component unit) are recorded as Deferred
harges. The Authority’s rates are based upon debt
service, and operating fund requirements. The
Authority recognizes differences between debt
principal maturifies and straight-line depreciation as
costs to be recovered from future revenue. The
recovery of outstanding amounts associated with
costs to be recovered from future revenue will
coincide with the retirement of the outstanding long-
term debt of the Authority.

Deferred charges also include the cost of a bug-
out option on a coal contract exercised by the
Authority. The cost is being amortized "as a
componeént of fuel costs over the remaining life of
the former contract.
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o. Tax Refunds Payable

Most of the Tax Refunds Payable balance in the
General Fund relates to Individual Income Tax.
During the  calendar year, the State collects
employee withholdings “and _taxspiqyers' payments.
Taxpayers file returns by April 15 for the preceding
calendar_year. At June 30, the State estimates the
amount 1t owes taxpayers for_ overpayments during
the preceding six months. This estimated payable is
recorded as Tax Refunds Payable and a reduction of
Tax Revenues.

p. Long-Term Obligations

The State records long-term debt of
%ovgamr.nental funds in the General Long-Term
bligations Account Group. Other governmental
fund obligations not_expected to be financed with
current available financial resources also are
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. Long-term debt and = other
obligations financed by proprietary funds are
recorded as liabilities in the appropriate funds.

The State’s debt in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group includes capital
a{)prematlor_l deep-discount) bonds that were issued
at_stated _interest rates significantly below the
effective_interest rate, The resulting discount is
systematically reduced and the carrying amount of
the debt is systematically increased ‘over the life of
the bonds, .

For Governmental Fund Types, bond premiums
and discounts, as well as “issuance costs, are
recognized during the current period. _ Bond
proceeds are reported as Other Financing Sources
net of the applicable premium or discount.” Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net
proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

For Proprietary Fund Types and the discretely
presented component units, bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. For current refundings
and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of
debt, the difference between the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the old debt is also
deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the
old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is
shorter. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount and deferred
amount on refunding. Unamortized issuance costs
are reported as deferred charges. = .

A component unit of an institution reported in
the State's Higher Education Funds enters into
interest rate swap agreements to modify interest
rates on outstanding debt. Other than the net interest
expenditures resulfing from_these agreements, no
amounts are recorded in the financial statements.

q. Compensated Absences

. During their first ten years of service, most full-
time permanent State employees annu@llﬁ' earn
15 days of vacation leave and 15 days of sick leave.
After'ten years, most employees earn an additional

1.25 days of vacation leave for each year of service
over ten until they reach the maximum of 30 days
per year. Employees may carry forward up to
45 days of vacation leave and 180 days of sick leave
from " one calendar year to the "next. Upon
termination of employment, the State pays
employees for accumulatéd vacation leave at the pay
rate then in effect. Employees do not receive pay for
accumulated sick leavé when they terminate.
However, at retirement, emplogrees part1c1t%at1ng in
the South Carolina Retirement System and the South
Carolina Police Officers' Retirement System may
receive additional service credit for up to 90 days of
accumulated unused sick leave. .

When employees earn vacation leave, the
Governmental Fund T[\)' yes record a liability in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for
the amount expected to be used or paid in cash. The
General and Special Revenue Funds record
expenditures when employees use leave.

The Proprietary Funds and the discretely
Fresppted component units record an expense and a
iability when employees earn vacation leave. .

The State does not record a liability for unpaid
accumulated sick leave.

r. Accumulated Deficit—Development Stage

The Connector 2000, Association, Inc., is a
development stage enterprise reported as a discretely
presented component unit. Cumulative net losses
are reported as Accumulated Deficit—Development
Stage on the Combined Balance Sheet and on the
Combining Balance Sheet, Discretely Presented
Component Units.

s. Interfund Transactions

. The State accounts for the following types of
interfund transactions:

Interfund loans may occur between two_ State
funds. Short-term interfund loans outstanding at
year-end are recorded as Interfund Receiv-
ables/Payables. Advances To/From Other Funds
repreglent long-term interfund loans receivable and

ayable.

P yRei_mbursements result when one fund makes an
expenditure on behalf of another fund. Reim-
bursement transactions reduce expenditures in the
reimbursed fund and increase expenditures in the
reimbursing fund. . )

Quasi-external transactions involve charges for
oods or services that one fund delivers or provides
o another. These transactions may result in_the

recording of short-term receivables or payables (Due
From or To Other Funds, Primary Government, or
Component Units) at year-end. )
esidual equity ~transfers are nonroutine or
nonrecurring transférs between funds. .

Operating  transfers include all interfund
transactions that are not loans, reimbursements,
quasi-external transactions, or residual equity
transfers. o ] )

The State  eliminates material _intrafund
transactions and interfund transactions that occur
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within a single combined financial statement fund
type.

t. Escheat Property

The State accounts for its escheat property in the
General Fund, the fund to which the property
ultimately escheats. To the extent it is probable that
such property will be reclaimed and paid to
claimants, theé State records a liability and reduces
revenue in the General Fund.

u. Higher Education Funds

Financial _activities of the State’s higher
education institutions are reported in the Higher
Education Funds within the State's primary
government. These funds use generally accepted
accounting principles that apply to colleges and
universities as contained in Audits of Colleges and
Universities ;fpbllshed by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Higher Education
Funds_are gresented in a separate column on the
Combined Balance Sheet. The Combined Statement
of Changes in Fund Balances—Higher Education
Funds presents the followm§ fund types: ]

Current Funds account Tor resources that higher
education institutions may use. for any purpose in
carrying_out their primary objectives. ~Restricted
Curtent Funds include resources that donors or other
outside agencies have restricted for specific current
operating purposes. _ All other current funds are

nrestricted Current Funds. .

Loan Funds account for resources_available for
loans to students, faculty, or staff of higher
education institutions.

Endowment and Similar Funds account for
endowment and _quasi-endowment transactions.
These funds are similar to trust funds. The_ State
must comply with the terms of any applicable
agreements, . . i

Plant Funds account for transactions involving
physical properties of the hl%her education
institutions. = The Unexpended Plant subgroup
accounts for monies that institutions have available
to finance the acquisition, = construction, or
improvement of physical properties. Resources that
institutions have sSet aside for the renewal and
replacement of institutional properties are also
recorded in this subgroup. The Retirement of
Indebtedness subgroup, includes monies to pay debt
service_and to retire indebtedness on institutional
properties,  The Investment in Plant subgroup
accounts for funds that institutions have expended
for (and thus have invested in) their properties and
any related outstanding debt. . )

Agency Funds within the Higher Education
Funds” account for amounts that higher education
1nit1tut10ns hold as custodians or fiscal agents for
others.

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for
certain component units of the State's colle%es and
universities. Most of these component units have
fiscal years ended June 30, but some have fiscal
%Iears énded December 31. _All component units in
he Foundations and Institutes Funds meet the
criteria for blending but are presented in a separate

column because they use a basis of accountin

different from the one followed by the State's
colleges and universities. Most of the component
units of higher education institutions are
governmental entities that follow one of the two
accounting and financial reporting models defined
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s
Statement 29, The Use of Not-for-Profit Accounting
and  Financial ~ Reporting  Principles by
Governmental Entities.” A few of the component
units, however, are non;Fovemmqntal entities that
follow generally accepted accounting principles for
non-profit entifies as prescribed by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board.

The Combined Statement of Current Funds
Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Changes—Higher
Education Funds is a statement of financial activities
related to the current reporting period. It does not
purport to present the results of operations or the net
income or loss for the period as would a statement of
income or a statement of revenues and expenses.
~ Cash transfers between the higher education
institutions and the General Fund and Special
Revenue Funds appear as revenues and expenditures
on the Combined Statement _of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund_Balances—
Budget and Actual udgetary  Basis)—All
Budgeted Funds. On all other combined operating
statements, however, such transfers to (from) the
institutions appear in the Higher Education Funds as
Operating Transfers In (Out), . )

The measurement focus in the Higher Education
Funds is upon determination of resources received
and used. The Higher Education Funds use the
accrual basis, Although certain not-for-profit
comé)onent units in the Foundations and Institutes
Fund record depreciation of fixed assets, other
Higher Education, Funds do not. In addition,
revenues from tuition and student fees of a summer
session are reported totally within the fiscal year in
which the session is predominantly conducted.
Current Funds used to finance plant assets are
accounted for as (1)expenditures for normal
replacement of movable equipment and library
books, (2) mandatory transfers for required

rovisions for debtf amortization/interest, and
3) transfers of a nonmandatory nature for all other
cases.

Higher Education Funds record expenditures
when they acquire fixed assets and capitalize those
assets _within their Plant Funds. ~ These funds
capitalize interest expenditures during construction
but do not record depreciation. .

Unamortized bond discounts are netted against
the related portion of bonds payable in the
Retirement of Indebtedness subgroup. The
discounts are amortized to interest on indebtedness
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line
method. ) . ]

Inventories of the Higher Education Funds_are
valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-
in, first-out method. These . funds _ use the
consumption method of recording inventories.

The State's colleges and universities record an
expenditure and liabifity in the Unrestricted Current
Funds when employees earn credits toward future
compensated absences.

o
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v. Totals (Memorandum Only) Columns

Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Only"
columns for the primary government and for the
reporting entity represent an_aggregation of the
combined financial statement line-items to facilitate
financial analysis. ~ Amounts in the "Totals—
Memorandum Only" columns are not comparable to
a consolidation.

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY ACCOUNT-
ING AND REPORTING

a. Budgetary Funds

South Carolina's Appropriation Act does not
gresent budgets by GAAP fund. Instead, it presents
udgets for;
eneral Funds. These funds are general
operating funds. The resources in _these funds are
primarily taxes. The State expends General Funds to
%rovxde traditional State government services. The
seneral Funds column in_the Appropriation Act
differs somewhat from the GAAP General Fund.
Tota] Funds. The Total Funds column in the
Appropriation Act includes all budgeted resources.
Amounts in this column include General Funds as
well as most Federal and department-generated
resources, Total Funds include certain Proprietary
and Capital Project Fund activities but exclude
Pension Trust Funds and most other Trust and
Agency Fund activities. ) .
e accompanying financial statements include
a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and Actual
gBudgetary Basis)-All Budgeted Funds.  The
udgetary General Fund category on that statement
corresponds to the General Funds column in the
Appropriation Act. The Other Budgeted Funds
category rgpresents the difference between the Total
Funds "and the General Funds columns in the
Appropriation Act.

b. Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Current_ legislation states  that the General
Assembly intends to aptpro riate all monies to
operate State government for the current fiscal year,

Agencies may carry forward up to 10% of

unexpended Budgetary General Fund appropriations
to the next fiscal year. Any remaining unexpended
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse on
July31 unless the degartment or agency is given
specific authorization to carry them forward to the
next fiscal year. Cash-basis ‘accounting for payroll
expenditures is required.

State law does not precisely define the budgetary
basis of accounting., In practice, however, it is the
cash basis with the Tollowing exceptions:

(i) Departments, and_ agencies charge certain
vendor and interfund payments against the

recedin fiscal ear's appropriations
Phrough fuly 20. Y PPIOP

(ii) Certain revenues_collected in advance are
recorded as liabilities (deferred revenues)
rather than as revenues.

(iii) The followini taxes in the Combined
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances—Budget and
Actua SBud etary Basis) are recorded on
the modified accrual basis:  Admissions
Tax, Alcoholic Liquors Tax, Beer and Wine
Tax, Business License Tax, Electric Power
Tax, Gasoline Tax, Sales Taxes (including
the Education Improvement Act—1% Sales
Tax, Excise Tax—Casual Sales, and Retail
Sales Tax—4%{, Soft Drinks Tax, and
Commercial Nuclear Waste Tax.

(iv) All other revenues are recorded only when
the State receives the related cash.

c. Budgetary Policies

State law does not require the use of
encumbrance accounting. Neither the General Fund
nor the Budgetary General Fund, therefore, records
encumbrances or a reserve for encumbrances.
Instead, the General Fund records the authorized
appropriations to be carried forward as a reserve of
fund balance. Lo

The State maintains budgetary control at the
level of summary object category of expenditure
within each program of each department or agency.
All budgeted departments_and agencies except the
higher " education institutions” process  their
disbursement vouchers through a central budgetary
accounting_system maintained by the Compiroller
General's Office. Departments and agencies ma

rocess disbursement vouchers in the State's
udgetary accounting system only if enough cash
and aggroprlatlol_ls_ exist. The = State's
1998-1999 Appropriation _ Act has approximately
2,920 a pro&rlated line items. These line items
constitute e _level of legal control over
expenditures. The level of legal control for all
ggencnes is reported in a Publlc_atlon of the State
omptroller General's Office titled "A Detailed
Report of Appropriations and Expenditures," not
included her¢in. ~ Departments and agencies may
re_c%ugzst transfers of appropriations among programs
within the same budgetary fund. No such transfer
request, however, maly exceed twenty percent of the
Erogram budget. In addition, the Budget and
ontrol Board, composed of five key execufive and
legislative officials, has the authority to restrict
transfers of appropriations between personal service
and other operating accounts.

Each year, the General Assembly enacts an
Appropriation Act that includes initial estimated
revenue and ?ipproprlatlon ﬁgures for the Budgetary
General Fund. The 1998-1999 Appropriation Act
directs the Budget and Control Board to reduce the
Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during the
year if nécessary to prevent a deficit. Likewise, the
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State. Board of Economic Advisors ma& approve
revisions_of estimated revenues for the Budgetary
General Fund during the year.

For Other Budgeted Funds, the annual
Appropriation _Act presents estimated revenue
amounts only for the Education Improvement Act
revenues earmarked for tax relief, and revenues o
the Dei)artment of Transportation. The Budget and
Control Board, however, provides estimated revenue
amounts for the other resources in these funds. The
Appropriation Act includes all appropriation
amounts for these funds._

As operating conditions change, departments
and agencies may request revisions of estimated
revenues and expenditures in Other Budgeted Funds.
Such changes require the Budget and Control
Board's approval, A Departments and agencies also
may request revisions of estimated revenues and
aﬁpro&rlatlons for permanent improvement projects
that the General Assembly did not specifically
authorize. The Budggt and’ Control Board and the
Joint Bond Review Committee must approve and
review these changes. During the current fiscal year,
the State's budget was amended in accordance ‘with
the %ocgdures outlined above.

uring 1997-1998, the General Assembly
approved a Supplemental A(Fg_roprlatlon Act that
added $86.158 million of additional appropriations
to the Budgetara/ General Fund for the fiscal year
ended  June 30, 1999. Of this amount
$7.270 million was used to fund the ‘General
Reserve, and the remaining $78.888 million was
appropriated to  various _ state agencies on
eptember 1, 1998. Late in 1998-1999, the General
Assembly afproved $82.122 million of additional
supplemeéntal ~ appropriations. ~ Of this amount,
$16.000 million was expended during 1998-1999
and the remaining $66.122 million was agpro riate
and reserved as Appropriations to be Carried
Forward to 1999-2000. . .
new law, which became effective on
July 1, 1998, required certain amounts of income
taxes to be considered as resources of the State's
unbudgeted Tax Relief Trust Fund_rather than as
revenues of the Budgeta General Fund.
Conse uengy, both revenues and expenditures of the
Budgetary General Fund were smaller in 1998-1999
than oné might otherwise have expected. In
1997-1998, the Budgetary General Fund recorded all
state income tax revenues and all expenditures for
tax relief. In 1998-1999, the State deducted
$337.728 million of income tax revenues from the
Budgetag/ General Fund and recorded them instead
in unbudgeted funds. Likewise, the State paid
$353.459 million of expenditures for tax relief from
unbudgleted funds rather than from the Budgetary
General Fund. Accordmgllif, amounts_of revenues
and expenditures for the Bud etala' General Fund
and for Total Budgeted Funds for 1998-1999 are not
comparable to those of previous years.

d. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the
Educational function within Other Budgeted Funds
had $16.982 million of expenditures in excess of
appropriations at the level of legal control. These
overexpenditures were associated with the State’s

technical colleges. . The technical colleges maintain
their own accounting systems. The colleges had
sufficient budgetary-basis revenue and cash to
provide for their budgetary-basis expenditures.

e. Excess of Revenues Earmarked for Public
Education Over Expenditures for Public
Education

The 1998-1999 Appropriation Act and the South
Carolina Code of Laws require that certain portions
of selected Budgetary General Fund revenue sources
be expended ‘exclusively to supﬁort specified
education agencies and for other school purposes.
These legal requirements are considered to be
satisfied ~if the Budgetary General Fund’s
exhpendltures for these particular agencies and for
other school purposes exceed the specified revenues.
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999,
expenditures were $23.576 million less than the
required spending level.

f. Legal Limit On Appropriations

State law imposes a ceiling on appropriations for
general, school, and highway purposes. The limit
equals the greater of : (% ) thé limit for the last fiscal
year increased by the average percentage rate of

rowth in State personal income for the previous
ree completed, calendar fyears, or (2) 9.5% of the
total personal income of the State” for the last
com_;lzleted calendar year. o )
he 1998-199 Ai)groprlatlon Act included
appropriations of $5.792 billion for general, school,
and highway purposes—$1.594 billion less than the
legal limit.

g. Legal Limit on Number of State Employees

The State's Constitution and statutes limit the
number of emgloyees that the Budgetary General
Fund may fund. “The number of these eémployees
may not increase faster than the State's population,
On’ June 30, 1999, 38,327 employees were funded
by the State's Bugfgetary General Fund-9,199 fewer
than the legal limit.

h. Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP Reporting
Differences

The Combined Statement _of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)-All Budgeted
Funds presents comparisons of the” State's legally
adopted budget with actual data on the budgetary
basis. of accounting, Budgeta accountin
principles, however, differ significantly from GAA
accounting principles. These different accountin
{grm_mples_ result in_basis, perspective, entity, an:
iming differences in the excess of revenues and
other sources of financial resources over (under)
expenditures and other uses of financial resources.
These differences (expressed in thousands) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, were:

50—
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Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses

Budgetary Balances Classified Into GAAP

Fund Structure

Entity
Budgetary Other Total Differences
General Budgeted Budgeted Timing Basis (Unbudgeted GAAP
GAAP Fund Type Fund Funds Funds Differences Differences Funds) Balances
General Fund........................... $ 206415 $ 2,134 § 208,549 $ — $ (18,498) $ 1,244 3 191,295
Special Revenue Funds............. — 124,236 124,236 — 420,442 16,594 561,272
Capital Projects Fund................ —_ (11,056) (11,056) —_ 7,306 30,998 27,248
Enterprise Funds...................... — 3,793 3,793 — 11,547 11,690 27,030
Intemal Senice Funds............... - (647) (647) - 13,850 (58,237) (45,034)
Expendable Trust Funds............ _ 73 73 —_ (1) 37,396 37,468
Nonexpendable Trust Fund........ — 97 97 — (14) 8) 75
Pension Trust Funds................. — 12 12 — — 427,209 427,221
Investment Trust Fund............... —_ — — — —_ 121,950 121,950
Agency Funds.......................... — (210) (210) — 210 — —
Higher Education Funds............ — (101,244) (101,244) 3,303 (13,082) 216,828 105,805
Component Units..................... —_ 11,900 11,900 — —_ 35,810 47,710
Totals (Memorandum Only).... § 206,415 § 29,088 §$ 235503 § 3,303 § 421,760 $ 841,474 § 1,502,040
NOTE 3: ACCOUNTING AND an aé)é)ro_xi.mately $87.887 million_decrease in the
: $2.498 billion fund balance of the Higher Education
REPORTING CHANGES Investment in Plant Fund as previously reported at

a. Deferred Compensation Plans

Effective July 1, 1998, the State adopted the
Governmental ccounting = Standards Board’s
GASB) Statement 32 entitled Accounting and
inancial Regorting d/or Internal Revenue Code
Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, which
established reporting requirements for IRC
Section 457 plans. As a result of implementing this
statement, the State removed the Deferred
Compensation Plans from_ the Trust and Agency
Funds. . Assets and liabilities of approximately
$1.165 billion each as of June 30, 1998, were
omitted, with no effect on fund equity.

b. Changes in Capitalization Policy

Certain higher education institutions, accounted
for within the State’s Higher Education Funds
increased their cagltallzatxon thresholds for fixed
assets during the fiscal gear ended June 30, 1999.
These changes, recognized retroactively, resulted in
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June 30, 1998. Accordingly, the fund balance of the
Higher Education Investment in Plant Fund was
approximately $2.411 billion at July 1, 1998.

¢. Change in Entity

In the past, the State reportinfg entity included
Enterprise Development, Inc., of South Carolina
EDI) as_a discretely presented component unit.
uring the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999
however, EDI’s relationship with the State changed
in such a way that EDI now is a related organization
(see Note 1a) rather than a component unit. )
EDI was created to provide contractual services
to the State. EDI provided no services to the State
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, and the
State does_not expect to contract with EDI in the
future. EDI currently is affiliated with, and
effectively controlled by, a nonprofit organization
that has no relationship with the State.
. At June 30, 1998, the following balances were
included in the State’s financial statements for EDI:
assets of $1.384 million, liabilities of $823 thousand
and retained earnings of $561 thousand.  All
amounts for EDI have been removed from the
State’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999.
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NOTE 4: DEPOSITS AND INVEST-
MENTS

By law, all deposits and investments are under
the control of the State Treasurer except for those

which by specific authority are under the control of

other agencies or discretely presented component
units, primarily the Public Service Authority. ]
" The following display reconciles the details
included within this footnote to the Combined
Balance Sheet at June 30, 1999 (expressed in
thousands):

Combined Balance Sheet

Cash and cash equivalents.........................ccocoiirin. $ 5,286,325
Cash on aeposit with fiscal agents.......................... 791,934
Less: Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund

deposits with United States Treasury....................ccoco.... (763,293)
INVESEMONES. ... .. oot eeeee et e e e eeni e 18,502,912

Invested securities lending collateral........................... 1,483,311
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 550,200
INVOSIMBNTS. ...t 247,358
Total H 26,098,744
Discl e regarding deposits and i plus
reconciling items
Carrying value of deposits..................cocovviiieiin e $ 120,661
Reported amount of investments 25,977,017
Cashonhand............cocooiiriiiiii e 1,066

Total 3 26,098,744

Amounts on deposit with the United States
Treasury that relate to the Unemployment
Compensation Benefits Fund are not_categorized
because they are neither deposits with financial
institutions nor investments.

a. Deposits

Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on

deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of

deposit. At June 30, 1999, the deposits of the State's
primary government and its discretely presented
%olrlnponent units (expressed in thousands) were as
ollows:

Total
Category Bank Carrying
1 2 3 Balance Amount

Primary

Government.. $ 236948 $ 21534 $ 47,429 § 305911 $ 92,753
Component

1,675 358 25,875 27,908 27,908
$ 238623 $ 21,892 $ 73,304 $ 333819 $ 120,661

Category 1 deposits are those covered by
Federal depository insurance or by collateral held by
a State entity (i.e., primary government or discretely
presented component unit) or by its agent in_the
entity's name, Category 2 deposifs are collateralized
with™ securities held "by the pledging financial
institution's trust department or agent in_a State
entity's  name. Category 3~ deposits  are
uncollateralized. All deposits under the control of
the State Treasurer are fully insured or
collateralized.

b. Investments

Legally authorized investments vary by fund
but generally include obligations of the United
States and certain agencies of the United States
obligations of the State of South Carolina and
certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of
deposit, collateralized repurchase  agreements,
certain corporate bonds, and commercial paper.

Substantially all of the State’s investments are

resented at fair value. Securities are valued at the

last reported sales price as_provided by an
independent pricing service. Investment income
consists of realized and unrealized aggrematlon
(depreciation) in the fair value of investments and
interest income earned.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the
State's grlmary government  and its _discretely
presented component units have classified their
investments into three risk categories. Category 1
includes investments that were insured or registered
or for which the securities were held by a State
entity (i.e, primary government or discretely
presénted component unit) or its agent in the entltP/ ]
name. Category 1 also includes investments for
which a State entity has safekeeping responsibilities
but no equity or ownership interest or control.
Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities were hel b§ the
counterparty's trust department or agent in a State
entity's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregtl)stered investments for which the securities are
held by the counterparty, or by its trust department
or agent but not in a State “entity's name. The
investments of the State's primary government and
its discretely presented component units_by risk
category (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1999,
were:

75



State of South Carolina
—

Notes to the Financial Statements

Category Reported Fair
1 2 3 Amount Value
Primary Government
U.S. government securities.................. $ 8610031 $ 274924 $ 40336 $ 8925291 $ 8,934,304
Corporate bonds...........ccccocevevirrrnnne, 8,652,006 22,153 3,932 8,678,091 8,678,754
Repurchase agreements...................... 1,378,572 2,119 14,851 1,395,542 1,395,542
Collateralized mortgage obiigations...... 776,963 — — 776,963 776,963
Asset-backed securities...................... 150,797 — — 150,797 150,797
Conmercial paper..........cccceveeeeevnnnnenn. 1,207,032 — — 1,207,032 1,207,032
Securities lending program
Investments from cash collateral
Corporate bonds............c..cccveenenen. — —_ 620,714 620,714 620,714
Repurchase agreements.................. —_ — 653,323 653,323 653,323
Commercial paper...........ccoceveveennnne. — — 209,274 209,274 209,274
Other........ccoeiiirieie e, 14,673 30,714 13,068 58,455 59,240
Subtotals.........ccocoeieiie, 22,675,482 22,685,943
Not categorized:
Mutual funds...........cccooerieniniviin, 1,001,825 1,001,825
Securities lending program
U.S. government securities.............. 1,365,231 1,365,231
Corporate bonds..............ccccoeuveneenn. 71,689 71,689
Unsettled investment transactions..... 133,309 133,309
Totals--primary government........ $ 20,790,074 $ 329,910 $ 1,555,498 25,247,536 25,257,997
Discretely Presented
Component Units
U.S. government securities.................. $ 253,798 — $ 107,366 361,164 361,164
Repurchase agreements.................... 197,262 170,900 —_ 368,162 368,162
Subtotals..........ccooeeiie 729,326 729,326
Not categorized:
Investment in primary government's
investment pool.............cc.occecveeiennn, 51 51
Mutual funds..........c.cccoeviininne 104 104
Totals—discretely presented
component UNits.........ccuenvenrinnnes $ 451,060 $ 170,900 $ 107,366 729,481 729,481
Totals--reporting entity................. $ 25977,017 $ 25,987,478

At June 30, 1999, the State held collateralized
mortgage obligations primarily in its Pension Trust
Funds. ~ These securities wer€ purchased to protect
the State’s Pension Trust Funds from é)rm_clpal
prepayment risk during an environment of declining
interest rates and to provide incremental yield above
that available on corporate securities with similar
terms. These securities _also provide diversification
in the Pension Trust Fund investment portfolios
and maintain the high quality of government-
sponsored instruments in_the” portfolios. It is
estimated that these securities will provide future
cash inflows on a time schedule that approximately

matches the outflows associated with Pension Trust
Fund liabilities. These highly marketable securities
are rated AAA by the major rating agencies.

The asset-backed securities held by the State at
June 30, 1999, were held by the State’s Pension
Trust Funds. These securities, with an average life
of one to three years and a legal final maturity of
five to  six years, regresented_ an undivided
ownership interest in a frust consisting of credit-
card, automobile loan, and utility receivables. Most
of these securities were purchased in the current
fiscal year when short-term interest rates were
approximately 5.0% and they could provide
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incremental yields above other securities with
similar maturities without increasing the risk of the
investment portfolios. These asset-backed securities
are rated by the major rating agencies. )

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority,
a discretely “presented component unit, ends
December 31. ~ Included in the Public Service
Authority’s investments, carried at fair value, are
nuclear decommissioning funds of $59.665 million
with  related | .
$13.298 million.. All of the Authority’s investments,
with the exception of decommissioning funds, are
limited to a maturity of ten years or less.

c. State Retirement Systems Investment Panel

State law created the State Retirement Systems
Investment Panel that may make limited investments
in equity securities for ‘the State’s Pension Trust
Funds, The five-member _ investment panel,
established by legislation, is resgpns_lble for
devel_opm%1 investment goals and o i!ectlves and
defining the types of investments that the State’s
Pension Trust Funds can_purchase. By law, a
maximum of 10 percent of assets for each pension
system may be invested in equities annually until a
maximum of 40 percent of assets is invested in
equities. .

The annual investment plan adog)ted by the panel
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, provided for
5 percent of the assets to be invested in a Standard
and Poor’s 500 index fund. This initial investment
is included as mutual funds in the Prima
Government section of the table in subsection
gnvestments)_ above. As of June 30, 1999, the

alance held in mutual funds for the State’s Pension
Trust Funds was $938.460 million.

d. Securities Lending Programs

By law, the State’s primary government may
lend securities from its investment portfolios on a
collateralized basis to third {) ies, primarily
financial institutions, with a simultaneous agreement
to return the collateral for the same securities in the
future. The State may lend United States
Government securities, corporate bonds, and other
securities for collateral in the form of cash or other
securities. The contracts with the State’s custodians
re%ulre them to indemnify the State if the borrowers
fail to return the securities (and if the collateral is
madecklate to replace the securities lent) or fail to
pay the State for income distributions by the
securities’ issuers while the securities are on loan.

The weighted average maturity of the State’s
collateral _investments generally” matched the
maturity of the securities loans during the fiscal year
and at June 30, 1999. At June 30, 1999, the State
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the
amounts the State owed the borrowers exceeded the
amounts the borrowers owed the State. Either the
State or the borrower can terminate all securities
loans on demand. There are no restrictions on the
amount of the loans that can be made. For the fiscal

unrealized holding  gains of

?’ear ended June 30, 1999, the State experienced no
osses on its securities lending transactions because
of borrower defaults. o

The State receives primarily cash as collateral
for its loaned securities. A small portion of the
collateral received by the State at June 30, 1999, was
in the form of securities. The market value of the
required collateral must meet or exceed 102% of the
market value of the securities loaned, prov1d1n% a
margin against a decline in the market value of the
collateral. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, the State met the 102% Tequirement.
The State cannot pledge or sell collateral securities
unless the borrower detfaults. The lending agent, on
behalf of the State, invests cash collateral received.
Accordingly, at June 30, 1999, these investments of
cash collateral were recorded as assets on the State’s
Combined Balance Sheet. Corresponding liability
amounts also have been recorded because the State
must return the cash collateral to the borrower upon
expiration of the loan. At June 30, 1999, the fair
value of the State’s securities on loan was
$1.437 billion, and they are uncategorized as to
custodial credit risk in” the table in subsection b
(Investments) above. For the State’s cash collateral
investments, the table includes the reported amount,
fair value, and custodial credit risk by investment

type.

NOTE 5: TAXES RECEIVABLE

Taxes receivable (expressed in thousands) at
June 30, 1999, were:

Special Trust and
General Revenue Agency
Fund Funds Funds

Retail sales and use................. $ 216804 § 78,637 $ —
Individual income......... 153,779 — —_
Corporate income... 8,109 —_ —_
Unemployment...............ceveens - - 37,079
Gasoline and motor vehicle...... 644 33,464 5,845
Alcoholic beverages and

tobacCo.......cooveiiriricns 15,021 —_ —
Other........o.coooviinre e 15,819 20,940 —
Gross taxes receivable....... 409,976 133,041 42,924
Less: Allow ance for uncollect-

ible taxes...........cococvevurennnn, 34,341 3,868 145
Net taxes recelvable............. $ 375635 $ 129173 $ 42,779

A total of $417.463 million in net taxes
receivable pertaining to the General Fund and
SPecml Revenue Funds were current receivables as
of June 30, 1999, and were collected within thirty
days after that date.

NOTE 6: FIXED ASSETS

Property, plant, and equipment (expressed in
thousan%sr)tgt Jll)me 30, 1999,q cogsisted S)f: P
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Primary Government

Trust General Higher Com-
Enter- Internal and Fixed Educa- ponent
prise Service Agency Assets tion Units

Land and improvements..... $ 18,700 $ 5662 $ 582 §% 195473 $ 129,077 $ 250,793
Buildings, improvements,

and utility plant.................. 3,930 147,556 4,749 1,122,468 2,098,714 3,606,080
Machinery, equipment,

and other...........ccccooeeenee. 15,010 130,995 5 1,042,264 761,364 49,725
Construction in progress..... —_ 6,796 — 46,614 143,181 105,536

Property, plant and
equipment before
accumulated

depreciation.............c..... 37,640 291,009 5,336 2,406,819 3,132,336 4,012,134
Less: accumulated

depreciation..........c.ccveus (11,225) (128,729) (808) — (18,669) (1,397,603)
Total property, plant

and equipment, net......... $ 26415 $ 162,280 $ 4,528 $ 2,406,819 $ 3,113,667 $ 2,614,531

Changes in general fixed assets (expressed in .

thousands) for thge fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, NOTE 7: RETIREMENT PLANS
were:

Note 1c_describes the basis of accounting that
the State’s five defined benefit pension plans use to

July 1, 1998 June 30,1999 report Pension Trust Fund activity. Note 4 specifies
Balance  Additions Retirements _Balance the method used to value Pension Trust Fund
Landand improvements.. $ 201100 § 1308 § 6935 §$ 195473 mvestments.
Build'ngf, improvements
h:nct:“u‘tél:yyzlzzﬁw" ...... 1,077,044 61,119 15,695 1,122,468 a. Plan Descriptions
andother..................... 1,020,937 91,632 70,305 1,042,264
Construction in progress., 57824 51383 6259 46614 The South Carolina Retirement Systems (the
Total General Axed System), a part of the State Budget and Control
P $ 2356905 § 205442 § 155528 § 2,406,819 Board, "administers four d_eﬂned b_eneﬁt retirement
lans: the South Carolina, Retirement System
SCRS), thSe Sou%lfl)oggiolglaRP.ohce tOS icers'
Construction in progress retirements are etirement System » the Retirement System
recorded as additions to gthegr categories of assets. for Members of the General Assembly of the” State
Outstanding commitments for construction of of South Carolina (GARS), and the Retirement
fixed assets and public domain (infrastructure) assets gyst%m Cfor IJUdge§S?{1§i So !ﬁlltorss of the State of
at_June 30, 1993: totaled $584.617 million for the Ol‘)lf. I aro.iﬂgl (C )- h 1 steml 11,5:5“35.3}
primary government. Outstanding commitments for Eu Icly a‘l’lal able ]%mpre ensgved nnua 1 nancia
construction OfSuch assets for discretely presented information for all Tour plans.  The repert may B¢
component units were as_follows: 045 million : [ \ .
ecember 31, ; . million for the State . .
Ports Authority at June 30, 1999; and $3.721 million %‘he Sputlll;Ca_rolmaCRetlrement System
for the Connector 2000 Associates, Inc., at zontame usiness Center
December 31, 1998. 02 Arbor Lake Drive
The primary c_)vemmenft $r1e%%r§ied_llc,api?lized Columbia, South Carolina 29223
construction period interest of $1.538 million durin . .
the fiscal ygar ended June 30, 1999. Discretel% SCRS, established by Section 9-1-20 of the
: Y South Carolina Code_of Laws, is a cost-sharin
presented component units recorded capitalized multiple-emplover defined benefit pension plan tha
construction period interest of $1.693 million during beneft D oot Dlin och ) e
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998. enetits employces ol public sChools, tae state, an

its political subdivisions. Membership is required as
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a condition of employment. Both employers and
employees must contribute. Benefits vest after five
years Of service. Vested members who retire at age
sixty-five or with thirty tyears of service at any age
recéive an annual benefif, payable monthly, for life.
The benefit is based on length of service and averaﬁe
final compensation, an annualized average of the
employee's hlglllest twelve consecutive ~quarters'
compensation. The annual benefit amount is 1.82%
of average final compensation times years of service.
Reduced benefits are payable as early as age fifty-

five.

PORS, established by Section 9-11-20 of the
South Carolina Code_of Laws, is a cost-sharin
multiple-employer defined benefit pension [i)lan tha
benefits police officers and fire fighters employed by
the State or its political subdivisions. Membership is
required as a condition of employment. oth
employers and employees must contribute. Benefits
vest after five years of service. Vested members
who retire with twenty-five years of service receive
an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The
benefit is based on length of service and averaﬁe
final compensation, an annualized average of the
employee's highest twelve consecutive - quarters'
compensation. The annual benefit amount is 2.14%
of averal%e final compensation times years of service.

GARS, established by Section” 9-9-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a single-employer
defined benefit pension plan that benefits members
of the South Carolina General Assembly.
Membership is required as a condition of takin
office as a member of the General Assembly. Bot
the members of the General Assembly and the State
must contribute. Benefits vest after’eight years of
service. Vested members who retire at age sixty or
at any age with thirty years of service receive an
annual benefit, payable monthlg/ for life. The
annual benefit ‘amount is 4. 3% of eamable
compensation _times years of service. Earnable
compensation is defined as fortg de(?'s' pa¥ at the rate
currentlif Eald to members of the General Assembly
plus $12 thousand. .

JSRS, established by Section 9-8-20 of the
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a single-employer
defined benefit gensnon plan that benefits the judges
of the State's Supreme Court, Court of Appeals,
circuit courts, family courts, and the State's circuit
solicitors, Membership is required as a condition of
taking office. Both judges and the State must
contribute.  Benefits vest after twelve years of
service in a position as a judge or Ssolicitor.
Members may retire at age seventy with fifteen years
of service, at age sixty-five with twenty years of
service, or at any agé with twenty-five years of
service. Members receive a retirement benefit equal
to 71.3% of the current active salary of the position
occupied at retirement.

Information _regarding  the number of

alrltlclpatmg employers at June 30, 1999, was as
ollows:

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS

State and school...............cocociniee 98 1 1 1
Other.....ocooie e 517 263 — —
Total participating employers........ 615 264 1 1

~ The plans provide retirement, death, and
disability benefits to State employees; public school
employées; employees of counfies, municipalities,
and cértain other State political subdivisions. Each
¥lan is independent. Assets may not be transferred
rom one plan to another or used for any purpose
other than to benefit each plan's participants.

b. Funding Policies

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina
Constitution ~ requires that all State-operated
retirement_plans be funded on a sound actuarial
basis. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
(as amended) grescrlbes requirements relating to
membership, benefits, and employee/employer
contributions for each plan.  The following
paraﬁra;l)hs summarize those requirements.

y law, employee contribution requirements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, were as follows:

Plan Rate
SCRS 6% of salary
PORS 6.5% of salary
GARS 10% of eamable

compensation
JSRS 7% of salary

Actuarially determined employer contribution
rates for the four plans, expressed as percentages of
compensation, or the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, were as follows:

Plan Rate
SCRS 7.70%
PORS 10.70%
JSRS 40.69%
GARS 72.23%

Under certain conditions, new employers
entering the plans are allowed u% to ten years to
remit matching employer contributions resulting
from their employees’ purchase of prior service
credits. Interest is assessed annually on the unpaid
balance. The amounts outstanding at June 30, 1999
were $2.327 million for SCKS and $999 thousand
or .
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c¢. Annual Pension Cost

Annual pension cost (dollars expressed in
thousands) and related actuarial data for the State’s
smgle-employer defined benefit pension plans were

0

as follows:
GARS JSRS
Annual pension cost................ $2,768 $5,485
Employer contributions
made...........coice $2,7¢68 $5,485
Actuarial valuation date. ........... July 1, 1998 July 1, 1998
Actuarial cost method............. Entry age Entry age

Level percent, open Lewel percent, open

period..........ccceiiniinerriiniiniinns 26 years 28 years
5 year smoothed 5 year smoothed

d. Trend Information

. Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due. . .

For the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plans in which the State participates,
the State’s required contributions in dollars

expressed in thousands) and the percentages of
those amounts contributed for the three  latest
available years were as follows:

market market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of retum........ 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases..... 2.00% 5.25%
Assumed inflation rate........... 4.25% 4.25%
Assumed cost-of-living
adjustments....................... 2.00% 4.25%
Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1999 June 30,1998 June 30, 1997
% % %
Required Contributed Required Contributed Required Contributed
SCRS-State:
Primary government..... $ 155,644 100.00% 149,541 100.00% $ 142,607 100.00%
Componentunits.......... 7675 100.00% 7,397 100.00% 7.104 100.00%
PORS-State:
Primary government..... $ 30,892 100.00% 29674 100.00% $ 27,851 100.00%
Componentunits.......... 18 100.00% 17 100.00% 16 100.00%

The following table presents the Annual Pension
Cost, percentage of Annual Pension Cost
Contributed, and the Net Pension Obligation for the
three latest available years for the State's single-
employer defined benetit plans (dollars expressed in
thousands):

Fiscal Annual
Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
Plan  June 30 (APC) Contributed  Obligation
GARS 1997 $ 2,492 100% $ —
1998 2,796 100% —
1999 2,768 100% —
JSRS 1997 $ 4,771 100% $ —
1998 4,991 100% —
1999 5,485 100% —
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Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded of
Valuation Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assets Entry Age {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Plan July 1 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
GARS 1996 $ 31,702 $ 59914 $ 28212 52.9% $ 4,771 591.3%
1997 33,627 60,052 26,425 56.0% 4,721 559.7%
1998 36,260 60,330 24,070 60.1% 4,810 500.4%
JSRS 1996 $ 62,850 $ 101,020 $ 38,170 62.2% $ 10109 377.6%
1997 68,980 112,185 43,205 61.5% 11,221 385.0%
1998 75,699 124,756 49,057 60.7% 11,564 424 2%
f. Receivables and Investments June 30, 1999, for the four plans administered by the
o . South Carolina Retirement gystems were as follows:
. The principal components of receivables and
investments  (expressed in  thousands) at
SCRS PORS GARS JSRS Totals
Receivables:
Contributions........cocoveveeee. $ 81,813 $ 9,825 $ 17 $ 285 $ 91,940
Employer long-term.................. 2,327 999 — —_— 3,326
Accrued interest..........ccocoe 185,571 20,266 440 912 207,189
Due from other funds............... 14,344 2,689 — 73 17,106
Total receivables............cuveneee $ 284,055 $ 33,779 $ 457 $ 1,270 $ 319,561
Investments:
United States government
SECUNtieS ..o $ 2613,373 $ 260,078 $ 8,541 $ 3973 $ 2,885,965
United States government
agencies and government-
insured securities................... 4,789,356 457613 8,228 22,851 5,278,048
Corporate bonds...........ccooo..e. 4,604,890 521,121 9,963 23,102 5,159,076
Financial and other................... 2,968,751 354,679 4,583 9,568 3,337,581
Mutual funds--equities............. 838,258 94,163 1,945 4,094 938,460
Invested securities lending
collateral........ccoconnccrninenenn 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 1,438,860
Total investments..........ccccceeue. $ 17,091,300 $ 1,839,498 $ 40,455 $ 66,737 $ 19,037,990

g. National Guard Pension System

Plan Description

The National Guard Pension System (NGPS) is
a single-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by the State Adjutant General's Office.

That office does not issue a separate financial report
for the NGPS. ) .

The NGPS, established by Section 25-1-3210 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws, provides benefits
to National Guard members who served in South
Carolina prior to July 1,1993. National Guard
members are consideréd to be Federal government
employees. The Federal government pays Guard
members' drill pay and summer camp pay. In
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accordance with State law, the State's General Fund
?ays Guard members only if the Governor activates
he National Guard for service to the State. .
. The pension benefit that the State provides is
intended only to supplement the retirement benefit
that Guard “'members receive  from the Federal
tg‘gvemment. Members who retire at age_ sixty with
enty years of mllltacry service, including at least
fifteen years of South Carolina National Guard duty
ten of which immediately precede retirement, an
who have received an "honorable discharge, are
entitled to monthly fensmn benefits. The pension
amount is equal to $50 per month for twenty years
of creditable service with an additional §5 per month
for each additional year of service, provided that the
total pension shall riot exceed $10G per month,

e following table shows the number of
employees by type of membership as of
June 30, 1998,” the” date of the latest actuarial
valuation:

NGPS

Retirees and beneficiaries
receiving benefits........................ 1,801
Terminated employees
entitled to benefits but not

yet receiving them........................ 2,064
Active employees..............cccceene. 9,604
Total participants............ccccoovvrenene. 13,469
Number of participating

EMPIOYEIS......ceivieevreicrcereenee 1

National Guard members who served in_South
Carolina prior to July 1, 1993, are covered by the
plan. NGPS is closedto new entrants.

Receivables and Investments

The assets of the NGPS consist of Cash and
Cash _Equivalents and Accounts Receivable. At
June 30, 1999, all of the $117 thousand in Accounts
Receivable represented accrued interest.

Contributions and Reserves

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina
Constitution =~ requires that all State-operated
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial
basis. Title 25 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
grescrlbes requirements relating to membership,

enefits, and employer contributions for the NGPS.

In accordance with State law, the State Adjutant
General’s _ Office  administers  the “plan.
Administrative charglcgls1 are financed through
investment earnings. e State funded the plan on
an actuarial basis for the fiscal years' ended
June 30, 1994, through June 30, 1996. From
July 1, 1996, through the fpresent_tlme, however, the
plan has not been fully funded in accordance with

actuarial recommendations. = Members do not
contribute. . .
The net assets of the National Guard Pension
System are required to be reserved for the purpose of
pa_yl.n% the supplemental retirement benefits to
eligible members. The balance in the reserve at

June 30, 1999, was $7.493 million.

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost

The, following table provides information
concerning funding policies and annual pension
costs (dollars expressed in thousands):

NGPS
Annual pension cost................... $3,164
Employer contributions made....... $2,499
Actuarial valuation date................ June 30, 1998
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method.................... Level percent, open
Remaining amortization period...... 30 years
Asset valuation method................ Market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of retum............ 7.25%
Projected saiary increases........ Not applicable
Assumed inflation rate ............. 4.25%
Assumed cost-of-living
adjustments.............ccccoeeeeenee Not applicable

The following represents the components of the
net pension obligation (NPO) for the NGPS, at
June 30, 1999 (expressed in thousands):

NGPS
Actuarially required contribution (ARC)...... $ 3200
Interestonthe NPO........cccoviiiiiiiniiinee. 256
Adjustment to the ARC..............cco e, (292)
Annual pension Cost............cccceeevereeennnnn. 3,164
Contributions made.........cccoceeeviveeiveiiiiinnns 2,499
Increase in NPO.........cccoooeieeveeeieereeeeerans T 665
NPO beginning of year.........c...cccoevvvrennenne. 3,637
NPO end of year..........ccccoovneennennreneannnne F 4202

The State recognized $2.499 million of
expenditures in the General Fund to pay a portion of
the current fiscal years’ actuarially determined
contribution. ]

The following schedule édollars expressed in
thousands) describes the funding progress for the
NGPS for each of the three most recent actuarial
valuations:
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Actuarial UAAL as a
Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Liability Unfunded of

Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age {(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7/1/94 $ 3,760 $ 26,996 $ 23,236 13.9% $ 50,766 45.8%
6/30/96 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4%
6/30/98 8,640 41,478 32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4%

Trend Information

. Trend information indicates the progress made
in accumulating sufficient assets to paﬁ benefits
when due. The following table presents the Annual
Pension Cost, gercenta ¢ of Annual Pension Cost
contributed, and the Net Pension Obligation for the
latest three fiscal dyears for the plan (dollars
expressed in thousands):

Annual
Fiscal Year Pension Percentage Net
Ended Cost of APC Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed  Obligation
1997 $ 3,060 81.7% $ 2,981
1998 3,055 81.8% 3,537
1999 3,164 79.0% 4,202

h. Supplemental Benefits Funded by General
Fund

The State General Assembly has directed the
General Fund to_pay supplemental (cost—of-hvmg)
increases to retirees and has fully funded the
required amount annually on a pay-as-you-go basis.
During the fiscal year” ended June 30, 1999, the
State's’ General Fund transferred $4.480 million to
the South Carolina Retirement System and the
Police Officers' Retirement System for retiree
supplemental benefits.

i. Defined Contribution Plan

. Certain State employees may elect to participate
in the Optional Retirement Program (ORP), a
defined contribution tplan administered by the South
Carolina Retirement Systems. The "ORP was
established under Title 9, Chapter 17, of the South
Carolina Code of Laws. The ORP provides
retirement and death benefits through the purchase
of individual fixed or variable annuity contracts
which are issued to, and become the property of, the

participants. The State assumes no liability for this
plan other than for payment of contributions to
des%nated insurance conipanies.

DRP Part1c1patlon is limited to faculty and
administrative staff of the colleges presented in the
State’s  Higher Education Funds who meet all
el&iblllt%‘ requirements for membership in the
SCRS. To elect participation in the ORP, elé%ble
employees must irrevocably  waive RS
membership within their first ninety days of
employment. o

Under State law, contributions to the ORP are
required at the same rates as for the SCRS (see
Section b, “Funding Policies,” above). Employer
and el_nPloyee contributions to the ORP_ were
$7.8 million and $9.4 million, respectively, for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999.

NOTE 8: POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of
Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State
rovides post-employment health and dental benefits
o certain former State employees and to certain of
their surviving dependents. Generally, retirees are
eligible for the benefits if they have ‘established at
least five years of retirement service credit, whereas
other former em;l)loyees are eligible only if they have
established at least twenty years of retirement
service credit. Benefits become effective when the
former employee retires under a state retirement
system. Currently, approximately 20,076 retirees
meet these eligibility requirements.
_ Eligible retirees choose between two health
insurance plans underwritten by the State, the
Economy Plan and the Standard Plan. In accordance
with contractual provisions of the plans, participants
must meet specified annual deductible requirements.
Thereafter, the Standard Plan pays 85% of allowable
claims, and the Economy Plan pays 80% of
allowable claims, The ~State pays 100% of
allowable claims, however, after the participant has
paid the annual out-of-pocket limit prescribed by
each plan. Both plans disallow claims in excess of
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specified annual and lifetime maximums. In
addition, State health benefits are reduced if the
Bartuf:_l ant receives or qualifies to receive Medicare
enefits.

The State also underwrites a dental care plan.
Contractual provisions of the plan specify deductible
requirements as well as annual and lifetime
maximums.

Both health plans and the dental {)lan are
financed on a ay-as-you—&o basis. During the fiscal
year ended June 30; 1999, the State recognized
expenses _gn.et of participant contributions) of
$75.869 million to provide health and dental benefits
to State participants in post-employment status.

NOTE 9: LEASES AND INSTALL-
MENT PURCHASES

a. Lease and Installment Purchase
Commitments

The State Jeases land, office facilities
equipment, and other assets under both capital an
oge_ratm feases. Some of these leases take the form
of installment purchases of property. The present
value of future minimum capital lease and
installment purchase payments and minimum annual
lease payments for capital leases and installment
purchases (expressed in thousands) follow:

Primary Government

General
Long-Term
Internal Obligations Higher
Service Account Education Component
Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Funds Group Funds Units Totals
2000 $ 487 $ 3,499 $ 4,867 $ 4,861 $ 13,714
2001 487 3,218 4,646 4173 12,524
2002 487 2,729 4,095 3,833 11,144
2003 487 1,319 3,734 3,818 9,358
2004 486 1,271 3,136 3,819 8,712
2005 and after 1,703 2,526 36,518 26,012 66,759
Total minimum payments.................... 4,137 14,562 56,996 46,516 122,211
Less: interest and executory costs........ (1,026) (2,080) (23,795) (10,824) (37,725)
Present value of net minimum
payments $ 3,111 $ 12,482 $ 33,201 $ 35,692 $ 84,486
Assets under capital leases at June 30, 1999, were as follows (expressed in thousands):
Primary Government
General
Long-Term
Internal Obligations Higher
Service Account Education = Component
Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases Funds Group Funds Units Totals
Land and improvements..............cccco.c.oveeeeceienenennn. $ — $ — $ 1683 — $ 1,683
Buildings, improvements, and utility plant................ 5,231 —_ 42,672 97,452 145,355
Machinery, equipment, and other............c................ — 19,378 12,529 293 32,200
Assets acquired under capital leases before
accumulated amortization............cccccccerrvccerenneen 5,231 19,378 56,884 97,745 179,238
Less: accumulated amortization..............c....c.c...... (1,203) — (3,627) (68,713) (73,543)
Assets acquired under capital leases, net........... $ 4,028 $ 19,378 $ 53,257 $ 29,032 $ 105,695

Operating lease 9pa¥ments during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999, iotaled $65.753 million. = At
June 30, 1999, future minimum payments under

operating leases (expressed in thousands) were as
follows:
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Operating Leases

Fiscal Year Ending Primary Component
June 30 Government Units Totals
2000 $ 33721 $ 639 $ 34,360
2001 28,878 370 29,248
2002 23,062 145 23,207
2003 17,283 50 17,333
2004 9,923 — 9,923

2005 and after 20,123 — 20,123

Total minimum payments.... § 132,990 § 1,204 § 134,194

b. Facilities Leased to Others

Non-State parties lease land and facilities under
operating leases from the State Ports Authority, a
discretely presented component unit, and from
Enterprise Funds (the Patriots Point Development
Authority and the Other Enterprise Funds). At
June 30,71999, the State Ports Authority had leased
to others certain_land and facilities having a cost of
a;gprommately $279.977 million and $81.582 million
of related ~ accumulated depreciation. t
June 30,1999, the total cost of land and
improvements_leased to others by the Enterprise
Funds was $9.434 million, with $817 thousand of
related accumulated depreciation. Future minimum
rental payments to be received at June 30, 1999,
under these operating leases (expressed in
thousands) were:

Fiscal Year

Ending Enterprise = Component

June 30 Funds Unit
2000 $ 399 § 18,057
2001 333 14,602
2002 333 12,242
2003 329 9,402
2004 328 4,538
2005 and after 13,164 2,111
Total............. $ 14,886 $ 60,952

NOTE 10: BONDS, NOTES, AND
CERTIFICATES OF
PARTICIPATION
PAYABLE

a. General Obligation Bonds

_ General obligation bonds are backed by the full
faith, credit, and taxing power of the State,” General
obligation ~ bonds (expressed in thousands)
outstanding at June 30, 1999, were:

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group

Capital improvement bonds, 3.50% t0 6.50%............... $ 806,237
State highw ay bonds, 3.50% t0 6.50%.............c.......... 333,545
Subtotal-General Long-Term Obligations -
Account Group 1,139,782
Higher Education Funds
State institution bonds, 4.25% t0 7.00%...........cccccevneene 78,305
Total--general obligation bonds payable........... $ 1,218,087

~ Of the $806.237 million in outstanding capital
improvement bonds, $19.880 million are capital
appreciation (3deeF-dlscount) bonds. )
At June 30, 1999, $468.509 million of capital
improvement bonds were authorized but unissued.,

At June 30,1999, = future debt service
reqplre_ments (expressed in thousands) for general
obligation bonds were:

Year Ending June 30 Principal interest Totais
2000 $ 101,200 $ 59,867 $ 161,067
2001 117,548 52,635 170,183
2002 98,540 47,146 145,686
2003 115,402 42,221 157,623
2004 93,210 36,919 130,129
2005 and after 700,103 182,011 882,114
Total debt service
requirements............ 1,226,003 $ 420,799 $ 1,646,802
Unamortized discounts... (7,916)
Total principal -

outstanding.........ceeeees $ 1,218,087

The Department of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund pays the debt service for the State
hxgh_way bonds recorded in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group. The General Fund pays
debt service for the other general obligation bonds
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations
Account Groug. The Higher Education Plant Funds
Retirement of Indebtedness) pay the debt service
or general obligation bonds recorded in the Higher
Education Funds. o

Rather than directly limiting the amount of
outstanding general obligation “debt, State law
imposes a [imitation on annual debt service
expenditures. The legal annual debt service margin
at June 30, 1999, was $138.765 million in total for
all institution bonds, $38.325 million for highway
bonds, and $100,554 mijllion for, general obligation
bonds excluding institution and highway bonds.

b. Limited Obligation Bonds

Limited obligation bonds are not backed bg/ the
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State.
Limited _obll%atlon bonds gexpressed in thousands)
outstanding at June 30, 1999, were:

Internal Service Funds
Lease revenue bonds, 4.00% t0 6.75%...................... $ 38,208
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At June 30,1999, there were no limited
obligation bonds authorized but unissued.

he State issued the lease revenue bonds to
finance the cost of capital facilities for use by certain
State agencies. The bonds are secured bylF edges of

lease rental payments that the agencies will pay from

their General Fund appropriations and  Special
Revenue Funds,

At June 30, 1999 future debt service
reqpirements (expressed in thousands) for limited
obligation bonds were:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals
2000 $ 3050 §$ 1862 S 4912
2001 3,190 1,712 4,902
2002 3,330 1,536 4,866
2003 3,480 1,365 4,845
2004 3,655 1,206 4,861

2005 and after 21,690 4,520 26,210

Total debt service

requirements.............. 38,395 $ 12,201 $ 50,596
Unamortized discounts..... (189)
Total principal

outstanding.................. $ 38,206

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service
Eung, pays all debt service for the lease revenue
onds.

¢. Revenue and Infrastructure Bank Bonds,
Notes, and Certificates of Participation

Revenue and Infrastructure Bank bonds, notes,
and certificates of participation are not backed by the
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State.
Revenue and Inﬁas;ruc_ture ank bonds, notes, and
certificates of art1c18 tion outstanding (expressed in
thousands) at June 30, 1999, were:
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Bonds

Notes

Certificates
of

Participation

Primary Government:
Enterprise Funds
Housing Authority bonds, 3.50% to

9.38% H
Education Assistance Authority

bonds, 3.50% t0 7.13%................ s
Jobs—Economic Development

Authority notes, 9.00%
Other Enterprise notes, 6.00%

467,531

385,448

205
25

Totals--Enterprise Funds...........cooc..

862,979

230

Internal Service Funds
Budget and Control Board notes,
4.52% t04.91%......ooooiriin

1,514

General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group

Infrastructure Bank bonds, 4.00%
to 6.00%

Mental Health Department note, 4.59%......

Deaf and Blind School note, 4.59%............

275,000

325

Totais--General Long-Term
Obligati A t &nup

275,000

785

Higher Education Funds
Various bonds and notes. 3.25% to
11.00%
Direct note obligations, 7.09% to 8.79%....
Certificates of participation, 5.60%
to 7.50%

247,707

71,782
95,000

20,698

Totals--Higher Education Funds..........

247,707

168,782

20,698

Totals--Primary Government....

1,375,688

169,311

20,698

Discretely Presented Component Units
Public Service Authority bonds,
3.80% t0 7.00%........ccvevererriieceienn
State Forts Authority bonds, 3.55% to
5.50%
Connector 2000 Association, Inc.
bonds, 5.25% t0 6.30%...........ccocovenn..n.

1.801,660
182,434

204,701

Totals—Discretely Presented
Comp t Units

2,188,796

Totals--revenue bonds, notes,
and certlificates of participa-
tion payabl $

3,564,481

$ 169,311

$

20,698
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Certain revenue bonds_ require the individual
enterprises to provide sufficient revenue to pay debt
service and to fund all necessary expenses to run the
enterprises. . . .

University Medical Associates of the Medical
University of South Carolina (UMA) is a component
unit of the Medical University of South Carolina, an
institution reported in the Higher Education Funds.
During January 1995, UMA issued $55.000 million
in Direct Note Obll%)athns, Select Auction Variable
Rate Securities. uring December 1997, UMA
issued an additional $40.000 million in Direct Note
Obligations,  Select Auction, Variable Rate
Securities. The variable rate of interest is set every

days. UMA entered into thirty-year interest rate
swap agreements for these obligations. Based on the
swap agreements, UMA owes interest calculated at a
fixed rate of 8.79% on the $55.000 million issue and
7.09% on the $40.000 million issue. If the actual
floating variable interest rates exceed these rates, the
counterparty pays, the differential to UMA. If the
actual floating variable rates are less than these rates,
UMA pays the counterparty. Only the net difference
in interest payments is_ac ual%y exchanged with the
counterparties. | The  $55.000 million and
$40.000 million in note principal are not exchanged;
they are only the basis on which the interest
payments are calculated. continues to pay
inferest to the note holders at the variable rate
{)rowded by the notes. However, du
he swap agreements, UMA effectively pays fixed
rates on the debt. The debt service requirements to
maturity included in_ this note are based on those
fixed rates. UMA will be exposed to variable rates
if the counterparties to the swaps default or if the
swaps are terminated. For the year ended
June 30, 1999, total interest costs incurred were
$8.141 million. .

The funds that receive the proceeds of revenue
and__Infrastructure = Bank bonds, notes, and
certificates of participation have pledged revenues
for payment of debt service as follows:

Primary Government:
Enterprise Funds
State Housing Authority bonds: State Housing Authority
Fund revenues
Education Assistance Authority bonds: loan repayments
and United States Commissioner of Education funds
Jobs-Economic Development Authority notes: loan
repayments
Internal Service Funds
Budget and Control Board notes: rental payments for
vehicles and office space
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group
Infrastructure Bank bonds: Transportation Infrastructure
Bank revenues
Mental Health Department notes: rental payments for
equipment
Deaf and Blind School notes: client service revenues
Higher Education Funds
Various higher education bonds, notes, and certificates of
participation: various specific higher education revenues

r, during the term of

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Public Service Authority bonds: Public Service Authority
Fund revenues

State Ports Authority bonds: State Ports Authority Fund
revenues

Connector 2000 Association, Inc., bonds: investment
earnings during the development stage and toll revenues
once toll operations commence

At June 30,1999, = future debt service
re%ulrements (expressed in thousands) for revenue
and _Infrastructure. Bank bonds, notes, and
certificates of participation were:

Primary Government:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals

2000 $ 98,338 $ 84272 $ 182,610

2001 68,264 82,585 150,849

2002 67,988 78,041 146,029

2003 69,079 73,989 143,068

2004 62,635 71,024 133,659

2005 and after 1,207,911 736,757 1,944,668

Total debt service

requirements............coevuvuneae 1,574,215 $ 1,126,668 $ 2,700,883
Unamortized discounts............... (7,629)
Deferred amount on refunding... (891)

Total principal outstanding... $ 1,565,695

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Year Ending June 30 Princlpal Interest Totals
2000 $ 83369 $ 126485 §$ 209,854
2001 85,285 122,435 207,720
2002 68,075 118,041 186,116
2003 68,285 113,934 182,219
2004 65,870 110,678 176,548
2005 and after 2,138,651 2,111,156 4,249,806

Total debt service

requirements........ . 2,509,535 § 2,702,728 $ 5,212,263
Unamortized discounts............... (44,955)
Deferred amount on refunding... (275,785)
Total principal outstanding... '§ 2,188,795

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority
ends December 31 while the fiscal gear for the State
Ports Authority ends June 30. Both entities are
discretely presented component units. At
December 31, 1998, the carrying value of the Public
Service Authority’s debt was $2.156 billion while
the fair value was approximately $2.660 billion. At
June 30, 1999, the carrgmg value of the State Ports
Authority debt was $181.912 million_while the fair
value was approximately $180.662 million. The fair
values were estimated using current rates available
to the entities for similar borrowing arrangements
and on the market rate of comparable traded debt.

d. Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment
of Debt

The $748 thousand of Extraordinary Loss on the
Early Extinguishment of Debt in the Enterprise
Funds r_e%resented a loss on Housing Authority debt
extinguishments that resulted from calling bonds.

87



State of South Carolina

e ——

Notes to the Financial Statements

e. Defeased Bonds

During March 1999, Francis Marion University,
an institution reported in the State’s Higher
Education Funds, issued $7.245 million in Revenue
Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of
4.14% to advance refund $7.450 million in Student
and Faculty Housing Revenue Bonds with an
average interest rate of 7.25%. The proceeds of
$7.163 million (after payment of $44 thousand in
orl%mal issue discount and $38 thousand in issuance
costs) plus an additional $626 thousand in_ excess
reserve funds were used to purchase United States
government securities. The institution advance
refunded these bonds to reduce its debt service
payments over the next twelve years by
approximately $1.700 million and to o©btain an
economic gain (difference between the present
values of the old and new debt service payments) of
$720 thousand. ) o

During June 1999, Coastal Carolina University,
an institution reported in the State’s Higher
Education Funds, issued $24.545 million in Revenue
Bonds with an average interest rate of 5.05%. Of the
$24.545 million, $8.815 million was to advance
refund $8.125 million of the outstanding principal
amount of the Series 1994 Revenue Bonds with an
average interest rate of 6.79%. The proceeds
applicable =~ to, the advance refunding of
$§.790 million including $70 thousand in accrued
interest and a bond premium (after payment of
$95 thousand in _issuance costs) were used to
purchase United States government securities. The
institution advance refunded these bonds to reduce
its debt service payments over the next twenty-eight
years by approxlmatelg $1.188 million and to obtain
an econiomic gain of $660 thousand. )

During June 1999, the Education Assistance
Authorltz an entity reported in the Enterprise Funds,
issued $67.300 million in Guaranteed Student Loan
Revenue and Refunding Bonds with an auction
interest rate varying up to 12.00% to advance refund
$43.570 million” in” Student Loan Revenue Bonds
with an average interest rate of 6.00% and to provide
financing for student loans. The net proceeds of
$43.570 million (after payment of $698 thousand for
a bond premium, insurance and other issuance costs
and $23.032 milfion for the purchase of new student
loans) were used to purchase United States
government securities. ~The advance refunding
resulted in a difference between the reacquisition

rice and the net canjymf amount of the old debt of
5446 thousand. _ This difference, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction
from bonds payable, is being char§ed to operations
through the year 2002 using the sfraight-line basis.
The uthqrx_? completed the advance refunding to
gain flexibilities h;])roylded by the 1993 bond
resolution. The refunding increases the Authority’s
total debt payments over the next nineteen years by
§10.793 million and results in an economic gain of

685 thousand.

During December 1998, the State Ports
Author1t¥ a discretely presented component unit,
issued $25.000 million in revenue bonds with
variable interest rates capped at 18.00% to refund
$24.800 million _in revenue bonds with variable
interest rates. The Authority completed the current
refunding to gain flexibilitiés provided by the new

bond resolution. There was a_nominal economic
loss associated with the write-off of the issue costs
on the refunded bonds with no measurable change in
debt service dpayments due to the variable interest
rates involved.

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998
the Public Service Authority, a discretely presented
component unit, issued” $127.700 million in
refunding revenue bonds with an average interest
rate of 4.97% to advance refund $117.378 million in
revenue bonds with an average interest rate of
6.12%. The net proceeds of $125.002 million
including  $1.715 million . in  premiums (after
payment of $380 thousand in original issue discount
and $4.033 million in issuance costs and reserve
requirements) plus an additional $4.330 million were
used to purchase United States government
securities. = The advance refunding resulted in a
difference between the reacquisition price and the
net carrying amount of the old debt of
$1.970 million. _ This difference, reported in the
accompanying financial statements as a deduction
from bonds payable, is being charged to operations
through the year 2024 using the effective-interest
method, The Authority refunded these bonds to
reduce its total debt service payments over the next
twenty-six years by $62.548 million and to obtain an
economic gain of $16.846 million. Additionally, the
Authority 1ssued $243.980 million in commercial
paper notes with an estimated effective interest rate
of 4.55% to refund $263.075 million in revenue
bonds with an average interest rate of 5.76%. The
refunding is expected to result in cash flow savings
of approximately $38.000 million over the next
twenFy_years and result_in an economic gain of
approximately $23.000 million.

In addition, during prior years the State defeased
certain general obligation and other bonds. For
those defeasances involving adyance refundings, the
proceeds of the new bonds were placed in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt
service payments on the old bonds. At
June 30, 1999, the following outstanding bonds
(expressed in thousands) are considered defeased:

Primary Government

General
Long-Term
Obligations Higher
Enterprise A Ed ion Comp nt
Funds Group Funds Units
Capital improvement
boNds.........coovvrrne $ — $ 33000 $ — $ -
Education Assistance
Authority bonds............ 43570 — — —
Public Service Authority
— — — 703,030

— — 65,365 —
43,570 § 33000 $ 65365 § 703,030

Since adequate funds have been glaced with a
trustee to pay fully the principal and interest of these
bonds, the ~ liabilities are not recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.
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f. Conduit Debt

State law authorizes issuance of certain bonds
for which the State assumes no responsibility for
repayment. These bonds, therefore, do not appear as
liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

The Jobs-Economic Development Authority, an
Enterprise Fund, issues industrial revenue bonds to
develop and benefit business enterprises. The bonds
are payable solely by revenues of the business
enterprise and generaléy are secured an
irrevocable letter of credit. At June 30, 1999, the
original amount of bonds issued prior to
June 30, 1996, was $757.465 million, and the
outstanding 'balance of bonds issued after
June 30, 1996, was $534.423 million.

The State Housing Finance and Development
Authority, an Enterprise Fund, issues certain
mortgage loan notes and housing revenue bonds for
developers to construct moderate to low income
housing projects. The bonds are pazable solely from
housing rental payments received by the developer

and generally are secured by an irrevocable letter of

credit or bond insurance. At June 30, 1999, the
outstanding balance of bonds issued ~was
$183.832 million. o )

The Educational Facilities Authority, reported as
?an of the State’s primary government, issues bonds
o assist non?roﬁt educational institutions that do not
receive State a%proPrlathns in the acquisition,
construction an inancing of facilities for
educational programs. The bonds are payable solely
from, and secured by, a lease agreement on the
facilities between the” Authority and the institution.
When the bonds have been fully paid, the Authority
conve;s the title for the facility to the institution. At
June 30, 1999, the outstanding balance of bonds
issued was $103.508 million.

g. Resources Authority Debt

In prior years, the Resources Authority, reported
as part of thé primary government, issued bonds and
used the proceeds to purchase obligations of local
governmental entities. The local governmental
entities used the tproceeds received from the
Authority to fund water and sewer projects. Periodic
Frmmpa and interest _gayments received from the
ocal governmental entities are used by the Authority
to retire its own debt. The debt “issued by the
Authority is not a debt of the State and is not
recorded in the accompanying Combined Balance
Sheet. The Authonty's outstanding debt at
June 30, 1999, was $42.655 million. Effective
October 1994, the _General Assembly enacted
legislation that prohibits the Authority ffom issuing
bonds except to refund bonds previously issued.

Beginning in fiscal year 1993-1994, one local

overnmental entity has been unable to meet its
inancial _obligation under the terms of a
$5.025 million revenue bond that was purchased by
the Authority. _In June 1990, when the local
overnmental entity issued its debt, it estimated that

e related sewer project would be completed and
operational by calendar year 1992, = Revenue
generated by the sewer system is pledged for debt
retirement. ~ At June 30, 1999, the system was
partially operating and producing some revenue but
construction had not been completed. The State paid

a_total of $1.727 million in the fiscal years
1993-1994 through 1997-1998, and $420 thousand
in 1998-1999 to the Authorlt?' to offset the loss of
revenues from the delinquent local entity. The State
has appropriated $400 thousand in fiscal year 1999-
2000 to be used, if needed, to offset the loss of
revenues from the delinquent local entity.

h. Commercial Paper Notes

The Public Service Authority, a discretely

resented component unit, has recorded a
456.100 million liability for Commercial Paper
Notes at its fiscal fyear ended December 31, 1998.
The paper is issued for valid corporate purposes with
a term not to exceed 270 days. The Authority has a
$500.000 million revolving credit agreement to
support the issuance of commercial paper. There
were no borrowings under the agreement for the
Authority's fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.

i. Subsequent Events

Since June 30, 1999, the State’s primary
government has issued $75.000 million of general
obligation bonds and $361.935 million of revenue
bonds. The Public Service Authority, a discretely

resented  component  unit, "has  issued
%25.000 million of commercial paper notes and
323.640 million in revenue bonds. The Ports
Authority, a_discretely presented component unit
has executed an in-substance cash defeasance o
$31.795 million in outstanding revenue bonds.

. The State primary government plans to issue
mini-bonds_in an aggregate amount not to exceed
$25.000 million in December 1999.

NOTE 11: CHANGES IN GENERAL
LONG-TERM OBLIGA-
TIONS

Changes in general long-term obligations
Sexpresse in thousands) for the fiscal year ended
une 30, 1999, were:

Balances Balances
at July 1, 1998 Increases Decreases at June 30, 1999

Accounts payable
and accrued lia-

bilities................ $ 2367 $ 2367 § (3.342) $ 1,392
Intergovernmental
payables............. 8,675 — (1,245) 7,430

hsurance claims
incurred but not

reported.............. 2,765 291 — 3,056
Notes payable....... 600 419 (234) 785
General obligation

bonds payable.... 951,577 275,970 (87,765) 1,139,782
hfrastructure

Bank bonds

payable............... — 275,000 — 275,000
Capttal lease and

instaliment debt

obligations pay-

able......c.c...cooven 7,856 7,463 (2,837) 12,482
Compensated ab-

sences payable.. 175,937 85,452 (80,752) 180,637
Other liabilities....... 20,165 9,199 (5,320) 24,044

Totals...cnmeeenee $ 1,169,942 $ 656,161 § (181,495) § 1,644,608
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The Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities .
the Insurance Claims 1>111curred but not Reported, and NOTE 12: INTERFUND
$10.853 million of the Other Liabilities consist of BALANCES

claims_and _judgments payable. The majority of
Other Liabilities consists of claims and judgments

ng}gg andéll;%l\;%t(l)%nal Guard Peenswigcrgggzm Ng% a. Interfund Assets and Liabilities Within the
$375.970 million for General Obligation  Bonds Primary Government
Payable includes $970 thousand in_ accretion of o )
interest on capital appreciation (deep-discount) Interfund assets and liabilities (expressed in
bonds. thousands) for each individual fund within the
primary government at June 30, 1999, were:
Tnterfund Interfund  Advances  Advances
Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables Payables To From
General
General FUNd...........cooooveiiierneeeeeee e $ 7593 $ 8238 $ 4778 $ 1603 $ 8221 § 3,573
Less: eliminations....................ocovviiiininciniinne (63,379) (63,379) — — — —
Adjusted General Fund....... — 1258% 19,007 2778 T503 8,227 3573
Special Revenue
Departmental General Operating Fund........................ 22,805 60,050 300 3,606 400 102
Education Improvement Act Fund.......... 4,700 2,131 600 200 — —_
Children's Education Endowment Fund......... — 17 — — — -
Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund.. 1,930 29 —_ — — —
Waste Management Fund..................c.cocevnecciennenen, 1,344 283 — 300 —_ —
Department of Transportation Special Revenue Fund. 40,016 59,108 1,358 — 3,509 —
Local Government Infrastructure Fund......................... 63,036 2,053 200 — 200 —
Accommodations and Local Option Sales Tax Fund.... 72 90 — — — —
Energy Settlement Fund.............cocooiiiiiiini — 68 — — — —
Omnibus Crime Fund...............ccocverernnineneeecneene 16 446 — — — —
Medicaid Expansion Fund..............c.ccoccoiiniiniiiiccnnnn. — 28 — — —_ —
Other Special Revenue Funds. 2,191 267 64 21 136 —
Less: eliminations...........c..c.ccovecvennnn. (102,927) (102,927) (900) (900) — —
Adjusted Special Revenue Funds............cconieernnes T 33183 T 21633 1622 3,227 4,235 102
Capital Projects
Capital Projects Fund...........ccccovvinininiciniiininnie 1,278 1,400 — —_ — —
Less: eliminations................ccoccoiiinniiniiccininie (131) (131) — — — —
Adjusted Capital Projects Fund..........cccccovccnnnineas 1,147 1,269 — — — p
Enterprise
Housing AUthority..............ocviiicciiiieininineceeeee — 25 — -— — —
Education Assistance Authority... — 212 —_ — — —
Second Injury Fund..........ccccconmnnnnn. 3 1,049 — — — —_
Patriots Point Development Authority..... — 233 — — —_ —
Other Enterprise Funds....................... 22 304 —_ 200 — 16,639
Less: eliminations..............cccoeoveeiniimmncecnvecnneee. (25) (25) — —_ — —_
Adjusted Enterprise Funds... — 1798 — 200 — — 16,639
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Tnterfund Tnterfund __ Advances  Advances

Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables Payables To From
Tnternal Service
Insurance Reserve Fund..........c..cooeecvvnnncnenciniiis $ 6136 $ 8 1,890 $ — $ 24323 § —
Health and Disability Insurance Fund.......................... 14,645 92 — — — —
State Accident Fund...........ccoceeiecieiicmmnnee 2,243 89 — — — —
General Services Fund....................... 7,829 628 — 2,164 - 15,057
Central Supplies and Equipment Fund 886 50 — 1,000 — —
Motor Pool FUNd..............ccoieiiieccieee e 1,812 53 — —_ — —
Pension Administration Fund..................cccciciinineee — 382 — — — —
Prison Industries Fund.............. 1,185 251 — — — —
Other Internal Service Funds. 41 876 1,446 1,304 6,543 6,295
Less: eliminations...........ccccccoeunnn. (1,563) (1,563) (2,913) (2,913) (14,422) (14,422)
Adjusted Internal Service Funds..........cececerrrecunens - 33,213 866 473 T555 — 16444 — 6930
Trust and Agency
Expendabie Trust:
Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund.............. — 11,864 - —_ _ -
Other Expendable Trust ..., — 2 — — —_ —
Pension Trust:
South Carolina Retirement System..............c.cccccceceenen. 14,344 14,284 — —_ — _
Police Officers' Retirement System......... 2,689 498 - - — -
General Assembly Retirement System........... —_ 27 — — — -
Judges' and Solicitors' Retirement System.... 73 — — — — —
Agency Funds:
Federal Interfund Activity Fund...............ccoveiicinnne — 858 — _ — -
Payroll Clearing Fund...................... 45,637 9,790 - — - —_
Other Agency Funds..........ccovueie. . 8,793 79,889 — — — —
Less: eliminations.............ccccociniennnnn. (65,017) (65,017) —_ — — —_
Adjusted Trust and Agency Funds...........cueeeniarenens — 6519 — 52195 = — — —
Higher Education
Unrestricted Current FUNAS..........ceevvevievnieieeeeiccecennnn 16,817 4,153 — — — —
Restricted Current Funds.......... 433 4,451 — — — —
Endowment and Similar Funds..... —_ — — — 775 —
Unexpended Plant Funds................ 1,362 — — — — 500
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds.. — — — — 500 —
Investment in Plant Funds............cccccccnininninnns — — — 238 — 33,326
Agency FUNGS........ccommiriniiiii e 123 — — — - —
Foundations and Institutes — — — — 30,685 —
Less: eliminations.............cccceonenneecee (1,514) (1,514) — — (31,960) (31,960)
Adjusted Higher Education Funds..........c.ecoeeuseuen. - 1221 7,090 — 238 — T866
Totals=Primary Government.........c..eeeeversreraeneene $ 103868 $ 103,868 $ 6,823 §$ 6823 $ 28910 $ 29,110
b. Interfund Assets and Liabilities Between the ¢. Inequality of Due from Component Units and
Primary Government and Discretely Due to Primary Government

Presented Component Units
Due From Component Units was $4.114 million,

Interfund assets and liabilities (expressed in but there was no corresponding Due TohPrlmany
millions) between discretely presented component Government. This situation arose because the Public
units and the primary government at June 30, 1999, Service Authority, a discretely presented component
were: unit, reports using a fiscal ¥em_ ending December 31.

t June 30, 1999, the Authority owed the General
Amount I;um%1 its _sem;iannual cash tdlStrlbUtilon,ﬂ which 13
Receivable Fund Payable Fund (Millions) ased primarily on operating cas ows an
General Fund Public Service Authority 34114 mandatory reserve requirements.
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d. Inequality of Advances To and Advances From
Other Funds

Advances From Other Funds exceed Advances
To Other Funds by $200 thousand because of an
interfund loan from the Local Government
Infrastructure Fund, a S}i)emal Revenue Fund, to the
Division of Public Rai wa)i§ reported as part of
Other Enterprise Funds). The Division of Public
Railways reports using a fiscal year endin
December 31, while the Local “Governmen
Infrastructure Fund’s fiscal year ends June 30. The
Division of Public Railways’ $200 thousand
June 1999 loan payment was not reflected in its
Advances From Other Funds at December 31, 1998,
but that payment reduced the Local Government
Infrastructure Fund’s Advances To Other Funds as
of June 30, 1999.

e. Inequality of Transfers From Component
Units and Transfers To Primary

Government
Transfers  From Component Units exceed
Transfers To Primary Government by $281 thousand

because the Public "Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit, regorts using a fiscal year
ending December 31. The $281 thousand difference
represents Transfers From Component Units to the
General Fund for the fiscal _Iyear ended
June 30, 1999, less _Transfers, To  Primary
Government from the Public Service Authority for
its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.

f. Inequality of Residual Equity Transfers In and
Out

. Residual Equity Transfers Out of $31 thousand
in the Capital Projects Fund were recorded as
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additions_to Contributed Capital in the Enterprise
Funds. These balances resulted from transfers of
Capital Improvement Bond proceeds. L

. Residual Equity Transfers Out of $1.336 million
in the General Fund were recorded as additions to
Contributed Capital in the Internal Service Funds.
These balances resulted from payments forgiven on
long-term interfund loans.

NOTE 13: RESERVATIONS AND
DESIGNATIONS OF
FUND EQUITY

Reserved components of fund equity represent
amounts legally SE:)grqgated and amounts that cannot
be appropriated. Designated portions of unreserved
fund e<1u1%y reflect tentative plans for future use of
available financial resources. L

The unreserved component of fund equity is
computed as total fund equity less reserved amounts.

a. Primary Government—Reserved Retained
Earnings

At June 30, 1999, the $257.925 million balance

of Reserved Retaqu Eamnings in the primary

overnment’s Enterprise Funds consisted entirely of

etained Earnings Reserved for Debt Requiremeénts,

The reservations are required by bond indentures
and other financing agreements.

b. Primary Government—Reserved and
Designated Fund Balances

At June 30, 1999, the following amounts of fund
balance (expressed in thousands) were reserved or
designated:
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Special Trust and Higher
General Revenue Agency Education
Fund balances reserved for:
Pension and other benefits ............ $ —_ $ — $ 19,590,921 $ —
External investment pool
participants.......c.covev i — — 894,613 —
Restricted fund balance .................. — — — 199,613
Federal government grants
refundable ..., — — — 46,393
General fund reserne ..........c..... 137,650 — — —
Inventories ..........ccocevevvincnrceecen 13,704 17,584 — —
Advances to other funds .................. 8,221 4245 — —
Appropriations to be carried
forward ..o 175,090 — — —
Endowment and similar funds ....... — — 1,564 58,706
Long-term loans and notes
receivable ..., 182 255,572 — —
Debtrequirements.......cccooevrvriennne — 59,408 — 10,907
School building aid ...........ccoccceneenn. 191 13,913 — —
Encumbrances .......ccooeeeveveeeveeennen. — — — 3,303
Other special purposes .......c.ccce.. — — —_ 7174
Total reserved fund
balances.......cnninn $ 335038 $ 350,722 $ 20,487,098 $ 326,096
Special Capital Higher
General Revenue Projects Education
Unreserved fund balances
designated for:
Future years' expenditures....... $ 31360 $ 103278 $ — $ —
Capital expenditures ................. — 216,391 91,507 —
Loan funds.......ccoovviiiiiiccnncenns — — — 2,650
Scholarships.....cccoovvvcecccnnne — 17,157 — —
Endowment and similar funds — — — 50,241
Plantfunds......ccccoovevvnnininnccnnns — — — 58,997
Special purposes ......ccceceeueee — — — 12,542
Total unreserved, desig-
nated fund balances............. $ 31,360 $ 336,826 $ 91,507 $ 124,430
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The  following subsections contain further
descriptive information regarding the above reserved
and designated components of fund balance.

Reserved for Pension and Other Benefits

This account includes $18.790 billion reserved
for pension, group life, and accidental death benefits.
It also includes $800.919 million of reserves to
recognize the restricted nature of the fund balances
in the Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund.

Reserved for External Investment Pool
Participants

Amounts reserved for external investment pool
{)ammpants consist of public monies deposited with
he State Treasurer by local governmental units and
other political subdivisions of the State. The State
Treasurer invests these monies on the participants’
behalf in an investment portfolio.

Reserves in the Higher Education Funds

Outside sources may restrict certain Higher
Education Funds' resources. The = financial
statements present restricted fund balances as
reserves. hese reserves include reserves for
endowments and other higher education restricted
funds to be used for special purposes. )

Grant monies received from the United States
government under certain student loan programs are
recorded as Reserved for Federal Government
Grants Refundable. The purpose of this reserve is to
indicate  that these amounts can neither be
appropriated nor expended and to reflect the State's
ongoing responsibility to lend the resources only in
accordance with applicable Federal program
guidelines.

General Fund Reserve

The South Carolina Constitution requires that
the State maintain a reserve to prevent deficits in the
Budgetary General Fund. he reserve is fully
funded whenever it eguals three percent of the
Budgetary General Fund's revenue (budgetary basis)
of the latest completed fiscal year.

If the State withdraws funds from the reserve to
cover a year-end deficit, it must replace the funds
within three years. The Constitution requires _that at
least one percent of the Budgetary General Fund
revenue (budgetary basis) of the latest completed
fiscal year, if so much is nqcessar_}/, be restored each
year following the deficit until full funding is
achieved.

At  June 30, 1998 the ~ Reserve  was

137.650 million, On  September 1, 1998
7.270 million of budgetary surplus from 1997-1998
was_added to the reserve to bring its balance to
$137.650 million. During the remainder of the fiscal
ear ended June 30, 1999, the Reserve remained at
137.650 million. Accordingly, at June 30, 1999,
the reserve was $7.721 million below the full-
funding amount of $145.371 million, On
September 1, 1999, however, $7.721 million was
adged to the reserve to bring its balance to
$145.371 million.

%7.270 million below the full-funding amount of

Reserved for Inventories

Governmental Funds reserve a portion of fund
balance equal to year-end inventory balances to
indicate, that the " funds are not "available for
appropriation.

Reserved for Advances to Other Funds and
Reserved for Long-Term Loans and Notes
Receivable

Advances to Other Funds, Long-Term Loans,
and Notes Receivable are assets that do not represent
expendable available resources. The Governmental
Funds, therefore, reserve a corresponding portion of
fund balance.

Reserved for Appropriations to be Carried
Forward

The General Fund does not use encumbrance
accopntlrig. The Reserve for Appropriations to be
Carried Forward, however, is used in situations
where the General Assembly has authorized
Budgetary General Fund appropriations to be carried
forward to the next fiscal year. For additional
information, see Note 2c.

Reserved for Endowment and Similar Funds

This reserve reco%zlize.s restrictions placed on
donated resources. In the Fiduciary Fund Types, the
reserve represents amounts donatéd to Stafe-owned
secondary schools and to certain other State
departments.

Reserved for Debt Requirements

The amounts recorded as Reserved for Debt
Requirements in the Higher Education Funds are
reservations required by financing agreements and
bond indentures of discretely presented component
units of the Medical Umversn?;r of South Carolina.

he South Carolina __ Transportation
Infrastructure Bank, reported within the State’s
Special Revenue Funds, recorded an amount as
Reserved for Debt Requirements as required by
certain financing agreements and bond indentures.

Reserved for School Building Aid

Amounts in the General Fund and in the
Education  Improvement Act Fund, a Special
Revenue Fund, are reserved if committed to State
school districts to build school buildings or to retire
debt on such buildings. Such amounts are not
available for appropriation.

Reserved for Encumbrances

Although not required b?; State law, some
technical colleges reported in the Higher Education
Funds A use encumbrance accounting. These
institutions also record a reserve for encumbrances.

Reserved for Other Special Purposes

. Amounts Reserved for Other Special Purposes
in the Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds
consist ol resources that are reserved for various
operatmg purposes specific to certain individual
higher education institutions.
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Designated for Future Years' Expenditures

At June 30, 1999, the State had tentative plans to
use $91.766 million of the fund balance in its
Budgetary General Fund to allow the State to Ba}y for
selected recurrm§ and nonrecurring items. that
amount, only 331,360 million in net financial
resources were available in the General Fund at
June 30, 1999, to finance these tentative plans.

Amounts = Designated for Future Years'
Expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds relate to
the Deﬁartment of Transportation’s expenditures for
future highway repair and maintenance.

Designated for Capital Expenditures

The amount reported in the Special Revenue
Funds represents amounts that the Department of
Transportation designated for replacement of
structurally deficient  bridges and new_ road
construction. State Highway Bonds will finance
these projects. The State reports the entire fund
balance in the Capital Projects Fund as Designated
for Capital Expenditures.

Designated for Loan Funds

_ Amounts Designated for, Loan Funds in_ the
Higher Education Funds consist of resources which
are designated for loans to students, faculty, or staff
of higher education institutions.

Designated for Scholarships

Of the amount reported as Designated for
Scholarships  in the ‘Special Revenue Funds,
$16.993 million is to be used for the Teacher Loan
Program. The program makes loans to students to
attract talented individuals to teach in areas of
critical need. For each year the borrower teaches in
a critical need area, 20.0% to 33.0% of the loan is
canceled. If the borrower does not teach, however,
the loan must be repaid. The remaining
$164 thousand reported _as  Designated  for
Scholarships in the Special Revenue Funds is bein
accumulated to establish endowments at public an
Frlvate colleges and universities, The purpose of
hese endowments is to provide environmental
scholarships.

Designated for Endowment and Similar Funds

The Designated for Endowment and Similar
Funds account includes resources that the State's
higher education institutions intend to use in a
manner similar to endowments in future years.

Designated for Plant Funds

_ Amounts Designated for Plant Funds in the
Higher Education™ Funds consist of resources
designated to finance the acquisition, construction
improvement, renewal, or replacement of physu_:ai
properties, and to pay debt service and Tetire
indebtedness on institutional properties.

Designated for Special Purposes

. Amounts Designated for Special Purposes in the
Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds
consist of resources that are designated for various
operatlng purposes specific to certain individual
higher education institutions.

NOTE 14: RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

These financial statements exclude certain
related foundations and other organizations. (See
also Note 1a, Scope of Reporting Entity.) = |
~ The most significant of these “organizations
include: the m\(ersn{ of South™ Carolina
Development Foundation; the University, of South
Carolina Educational Foundation; the University of
South Carolina Business Partnership Foundation; the
South Carolina Universities Research and Education
Foundation; the South Carolina Research Institute;
the Greater University of South Carolina Alumni
Association; the Carolina Piedmont
Foundation, Inc.; the Lancaster County Educational
Foundation, Inc.;  the  Clemson =~ _ University
Foundation; the Clemson University Real Estate
Foundation; the Clemson University Research
Foundation; the Clemson Advancement Foundation;
the Clemson University Continuing Education an
Conference Complex” Corporation; the Health
Sciences Foundation of the Medical University of
South  Carolina; the Coastal  Educational
Foundation, Inc., of Coastal Carolina University; the
College of Charleston Foundation; the Winthrop
University _Foundation; the Francis Marion
University Foundation; the Citadel Development
Foundation; the Citadel Alumni Association; the
Citadel's Br]ggadler. Foundation; South Carolina State
Universi ducational Found’atlpn; the S.T.A.T.E.
Club of South Carolina State University; Greenville
Technical Foundation, Inc.; Tri-Counfy Technical
College Foundation;  York Technical College
Foundation, Inc.; the South Carolina Student Loan
Corporation; the Educational Television Endowment
of South Carolina, Inc.; the South Carolina State
Museum Foundation; the South Carolina Research
Authority; and the Carolina Capital Investment
Corporation. L

. Those organizations above that are related to
higher education _ report  total assets of
$728.287 million. During the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1999, the State” entered into various
transactions with these organizations. Approximate
amounts within the State's Higher Education Funds
that represented transactions with these related

arties include:  receivable from foundations—

40.578 million; donations of cash and other assets
from foundations—$36.502 million; expenditures
rental  of foundation-owned property

3.717 million; and reimbursements to the State for
expenses/expenditures the State incurred on behalf
of foundations—$11.133 million. | )

The South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority (EAA% an Enterprise Fund, has
designated the South Carolina Student Loan
Corporation (SLC) as the entity to administer the
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EAA student loan grogram. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999, EAA entered into various
transactions _with SLC. . roximate amounts
within the State's. Enterprise Funds that represent
these transactions include: accounts receivable from
SLC-$6.470 million; notes receivable from SLC-
361.539 million; program revenue from SLC-
39.485 million;  accounts payable to SLC-
8.705 milljon; and reimbursements to SLC for
administrative costs—$5.183 million.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the
Educational Television Endowment of South
Carolina, Inc., disbursed $7.575 million on behalf of
the State for programs, development, advertising,
and other costs. )

. The Jobs—Economic Development Author-
ity JEDA), an Enterprise Fund, maintains a
management and administrative agreement with
Carolina Capital Investment Corporation (CCIC).

Development Authority (Housing Authority), the
South Carolina Education Assistance Authority, the
Jobs—Economic Development Authority, and the
Patients' Compensation Fund. In addition, the
Patriots Point Development Authority, the Second
Injury Fund, and Other Enterprise Funds are
grouped into an Other segment. _

'he Housing Authority provides low-cost
housing to the State's citizens by 1ssuing bonds/notes
and by administering Federal contracts and grants.
The South Carolina Education Assistance Authority
issues revenue bonds for the purpose of making
student loans. The Jobs—Economic Development
Authority acts with others in the promotion of
development e_f_ﬁ')lecwllg1 in areas of the State with
Ereatc;st need. The Authority is supported primarily

interest on project "loans. The Patients’

ompensation Fund provides for the payment of that
portion of any medical malpractice claim, seitlement

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, JEDA
paid CCIC $469thousand for management and
administrative expenses and incurred payables to
CCIC of $118 thousand.

or judgment against a health care provider that is in
excess of $100 thousand per incident or in excess of
$300 thousand in the aggregcate for one year. All
providers licensed in South Carolina_are eligible to
participate in the Fund upon remitting the annual
assessment fees in amounts determined by the
governing board of the Fund. )

Financial information (expressed in thousandsg
for these segments for the fiscal year ende
June 30, 1999, follows:

NOTE 15: SEGMENT INFORMA-
TION

a. Enterprise Funds

The State groups its Enterprise Funds into the
following segments: the State Housing Finance and

Education Jobs—Economic Patients’
Housing  Assistance Development Compen-
Authority Authority Authority sation Other Totals

Operating revenues.................coceeevvnnne $ 47643 $ 45159 § 1,148 § 9800 $ 25426 $ 129,176
Depreciation and amortization

BXPENSE......cveirirnrerineeiene e sieaereeieeians 316 164 — 3 919 1,402
Operating income (l0SS)..........cccocoorrnenae 9,206 16,191 (4,173) (2,466) 527 19,285
Federalrevenue.................ccccvvveiecnnnane 23,776 —_ — — — 23,776
Operating transfers in............ccccocoeveennne — — 125 — 353 478
Extraordinary 10SS.........ccccoovinenriccnenn, (748) — — —_ — (748)
Net income (loss) S 15,436 15,698 (3,954) (2,466) 2,316 27,030
Current capital contributions and

transfers.........cocooveeeiiieeenciee s — — — — 31 31
Property, plant, and equipment:

Additions..........cccooceiiiieee, 64 276 — 1 1,353 1,694
Retirements.............ccccccrnenennnencnnns (49) — —_ —_ (138) (187)

Net working capital..........c.cccccnurevennnne 175,731 186,139 8,627 13,533 18,579 402,609
Total assets.........ccccvveerreecnnnnennirenenns 664,579 526,384 13,738 20,256 128,540 1,353,497
Bonds and other long-term liabilities

payable from operating revenues.......... 438,990 375,678 172 25,440 17,557 857,837
Total fund equity (deficit).............co.......... 177,185 123,141 11,781 (11,901) 45,644 345,850
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b. Discretely Presented Component Units

The segments of the State's discretely presented
component units are the Public Service uthorxgr
the State Ports Authorltgl, the Connector 2000
Association, Inc., and the Savannah Lakes Regional

Loan Fund.” . i )
The Public Service Authority sells electric
power and wholesale water. he State Ports

Authority develops and maintains State harbors and

seaports and handles the commerce through these
ports. The Connector 2000 Association, Inc., is a
development stage enterprise created to assist the
Department of Transportation in the financing,
acamsmon, construction, and operation of turnpikes
and other transportation projects. The Savannah
Lakes Regional Loan Fund maintains a revolving
loan fund to promote economic development in the
State’s Savannah Lakes Region. .

. Financial information {expressed in thousands&
for these segments for the fiscal year ende

June 30, 1999, follows:

Connector Savannah

Public State 2000 Lakes
Service Ports Association, Regional
Authority Authority Inc. Loan Fund Totals

Operating revenues...............c.......... $ 775639 $ 84801 $ — $ 15 $ 860,455
Depreciation and amortization

EXPENSE......onvirnreneeireeeaeriiraras 116,665 16,590 — — 133,255
Operating income............c...ccoeeennneee 220,266 16,253 — 5 236,524
Transfers from primary government.... — 19,182 — — 19,182
Transfers to primary government....... (7,605) — — — (7,605)
Net income (10SS)......c.cecvvvvviieniinnnns 31,740 16,072 (127) 25 47,710
Current capital contributions and

transfers........cccooevevceiiiiinninnciiin, — 2,273 — — 2,273
Property, plant, and equipment:

Additions...........ccoceviiiiiiinnnn. 68,193 29,979 — — 98,172
Retirements..........c.c.cocevveeviennnen. (20,256) (1,823) — — (22,079)

Net working capital..........c.ccccceoeeeees (233,569) 22,185 164,795 456 (46,133)
Total @assets.........ccovevviviiiiiiiiieeieein, 3,322,310 520,502 211,322 462 4,054,596
Bonds and other long-term liabilities

payable from operating revenues..... 1,842,242 181,032 204,701 — 2,227,975
Total fund equity (deficit).................. 828,870 322,096 (127) 456 1,151,295

The Public Service Authority's sale of electric
power to two major customers constitutes a
concentration of credit risk. For its fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998, the Authority's Revenue and
Accounts Receivable (expressed in thousands)

attributable to those customers were:

% of Total % of Total
Operating Accounts Accounts

Customer Revenue Revenue Receivable Receivable
Central Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc............. $ 354,000 45.64% $ 49,969 55.23%
Alumax of South
Carolina, Inc................... 87,000 11.22% 7.272 8.04%

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, two
customers accounted " for approximately 11% and
13% of the State Ports Authority’s reveniues.

NOTE 16: DEFICIT RETAINED
EARNINGS

The Patients' Compensation Fund, reported in
the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit Retained
Earnings balance of $11.901 million at
June 30, 1999. This deficit resulted from losses that
the Fund has experienced over the last four years.
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The Fund has increased premiums in recent years,
and it increased them significantly again in
June 1999. This recent premium adjustment should
increase annual fee collections to approximately
$16.000 million. However, the liability recorded for
unpaid claims each year is based on an actuarial
analysis performed after June 30. The premium
increases” may_not be sufficient to prevent an
accounting deficit when the actuarial liability is
recorded. ] ) )

The Patriots Point Development Authority,
reported in the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit
Retained Earnings balance of $1.240 million at
June 30, 1999, is deficit resulted primarily from
an interrupted development project and the related
bankruptcy proceedings in the past. The interrupted
pr((){]ect left the Authority with an unfinished hotel
and marina, During” the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997, the Authority entered into a lease
with a private company that {)lan_s to develop the
unfinished assets. = The Authority expects _that
revenues  from this agreement” and private
contributions eventually will eliminate the deficit
retained earnings. ]

The State™ Accident Fund, reported in  the
Internal Service Funds, had a deficit Retained
Earnings _balance of $639 thousand at June 30, 1999,
This deficit resulted from a one-time transfer of
$3.000 million in investment income to the State’s
General Fund as required by the 1998-1999
Appropriation Act. o

The Connector 2000 Association, Inc., a
develoPment stage enterprise reported as a discretely
presented component unit, had an accumulated
deficit of $127 thousand for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998. See Note Ir for additional
information. .

At June 30, 1999, the Savannah Lakes Regional
Loan Fund, a discretely presented component unit
reported a deficit Refained Earnings balance o
$564 thousand.  This deficit resulted from the
default of a loan that is related to the Lake Russell
development project. The Fund hopes to eliminate
this_deficit when a developer is found to take over
the Lake Russell project.

NOTE 17: INSURANCE
ACTIVITIES

a. Insurance Reserve Fund

The State generally does not purchase
commercial insurance for the risks of losses for
progslrt%{ damage, including theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; automobile liabi 1t1y; tort
liability; and medical professional liability. Instead,
State management believes it is more economical to
manage its risks internally and set aside assets for
claim settlement in its Insurance Reserve Fund
(IRF), an Internal Service Fund. The IRF services
claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed,
including the followmﬁ:_ property insurance on

overnment owned buildings, the contents of such
uildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile
liability insurance on government owned vehicles
and school buses; tort liability insurance for
government premises and operations; and medical

Erofess_lonal liability for hospitals. Although the
tate is the predominant participant in the IRF,
county and municipal governments, school districts
and _ special _npl)ulipose olitical subdivisions _also
participate. The IRF allocates the cost of providing
claims servicing and claims payment by chargin
each _ participant an actuarially determine
"premium." et .

The IRF reports liabilities when it is_probable
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated
and unallocated “claims adjustment expenses have
been included in the calculation of the unpaid claims
liability. The liability is reported net of receivables
for salvage, subrogation, and reinsurance. The
unpaid claims liability of $138.899 million at
June 30, 1999, includes a provision for claims in the
process_of review and for claims incurred but not
reported.  The liability for claims in the process of
review is included in Accounts Payable and Accrued
Liabilities, while the liability for Insurance Claims
Incurred But Not Reported is reported seFaratt;ly on
the face of the financial statements. The liability for
claims incurred but not reported is an actuarial
estimate based on the most current historical claims
experience of previous payments, changes in number
of members and participants, inflation, and award
trends. This ?rocess does not necessarily result in an
exact amount. Estimates of liabilities for incurred
claims are continually reviewed and revised as
changes occur. Revisions are reflected in the current
year's operating statement. . o

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the J)ast two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30  Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

1998 § 157,306 $ 2/3.970 $ (34,498) $ 146,778
1999 146,778 21,021 (28,900) 138,899

. The IRF purchases aircraft and ocean marine
insurance, areas in which the IRF has limited
expertise. . L .

he IRF purchases reinsurance to limit losses in
the areas of property, boiler and machinery
automobile _liability, ‘and medical professional
liability. Reinsurance for catastrophic losses in the
area o proi)ert% insurance is purchased for losses
above ~ $2.000 million  per location  and
$10.000 million per occurrence.  For medical
professional liability insurance, reinsurance for
catastrophic losses iS acquired for losses exceeding
$250 thousand per occurrence. Reinsurance permits
Famal recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the
RF, as direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily
liable. The unpaid claims liabilities were reduced by
$5.600 million and $5.000 million as of
June 30, 1999, and 1998, respectively, for amounts
relating to unpaid claims estimated to be recoverable
from reinsurers.

98



State of South Carolina

Notes to the Financial Statements

b. Health and Disability Insurance Fund

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund, an
Internal Service Fund, was established to provide
health and dental insurance coverage for eligible
employees and retirees of State agencies and school
districts and group life and long-term disability
insurance coverage to eligible active State and
public school employees. . The _State, the

redominant participant, retains the risk of loss.

nder the health insurance program, participants
elect coverage through either a_health maintenance
organization or the State’s self-insured plan. All
dental, group life, and IOI}g-term dlsabllltg/ coveraﬁe
is through the State’s self-insured plan. State funds
and payroll deductions &ay health and dental
premiums for eligible State and public school
employees. Agencies and school districts pay the
employer share of premiums for retirees, and retirees
directly pay their own share of premiums. Agencies
and school districts pay the premiums for group life
and long term disability. =

The Health and” Disability Insurance Fund
establishes claims liabilities when information prior
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates
that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at
the date of the financial statements and the amount
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated
and unallocated "claims adjustment expenses have
been included in the calculation of the unpaid claims
liability. The wunpaid claims liability of
$128.806 million at June 30,1999, includes a
provision for claims in the process of review and for
claims incurred but not reported. The liability for
claims in_the process of review is included in
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the
liability for™ Insurance Claims Incurred But Not
Reported is reported separatel%'. on the face of the
financial statements. ~ The Tliability for claims
incurred but not reported is estimafed actuarially
based on the most current historical claims
experience of previous payments, changes in number
of members and participants, mﬂ’atlon, award trends,
and estimates of health care trend changes (cost,
utilization, and intensity of services). This process
does not necessarily result in an  exact amount.
Estimates of liabilities for_ incurred claims are
continually reviewed and revised as changes occur.
Revisions™ are reflected in the current year's
operating statement, .

~ Claim costs for group life and long-term
disability coverage are actuarially calculated using
the one-year term cost method; _the cost of coverage
is the gresent value of all benefit payments that will
be made on expected claims incurred during the year
following the valuation date. Claim liabilities’ are
equal to the present value, as of the valuation date
of all future payments to be made for disabilities and
deaths up to that date, _Actuarial assumptions
include an interest rate of 5.50% for 1999 and 1998,
compounded annually. Of the total claims liability
reported for the Health and Disability Insurance
Fund at June 30, 1999, $22.463 million relates to
group life and long-term disability insurance
coverage. Claims liabilities for health and dental
mslurance coverage are not discounted to present
value.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

1998 § 97,560 $ 553,566 $ (549,482) $ 101,644
1999 101,644 642,148 (614,986) 128,806

¢. State Accident Fund

State law established the State Accident
Fund (the Fund), an Internal Service Fund, to
rovide workers' compensation insurance coveraée
o State entities. Although the State is the Fund's
predominant part1c1%ar.1t,. counties, municipalities,
and other political subdivisions of the State may also
elect to participate. The State assumes the full risk
for workers' compensation claims.
he Fund investigates, adjusts, and pays
workers' compensation claims as awarded by the
Workers' Compensation Commission for job-related
accidental injury, disease, or death to covered
indjviduals. ‘The Fund annually bills participating
entities for estimated premiums based on the entity’s
estimated payroll. =~ After the policy period ends,
policyholders submit the details of the actual salaries
paid.” The Fund then adjusts the premium using the
actual payroll data and"a rating modifier based on
claims experience. ) o
. The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have
been reported but not settled, and of claims that have
been incurred but not reported. The claims liabilities
include specific incremental claims adjustment
expenses but not administrative expenses. Estimated
amounts of salvage and subrogation and reinsurance
recoverable, if any, on both settled and unsettled
claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid
claims to the  extent thq%( can bé reasonably
estimated. Claims liabilities are recomputed
perl_od_lcallgl using a variety of actuarial and
statistical techniques to produce current estimates.
Adjustments to claims_liabilities are charged or
credited to expense in the period in which they are
made. At June 30, 1999, the claims liability for the
Fund was $51.189 million. The liability for claims
reported but not yet paid is included in Accounts
Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the liability
for Insurance Claims Incurred But Not Reported is
reported separately on the face of the financial
statements. Because actual claims costs depend on
such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal
doctrines, and damage awards, computation of the
claims liability does not necessarily result in an
exact amount. ) e
Changes in the balances of claims liabilities
during the past two years were as follows (expressed
in thousands):
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Fiscal Current-Year
Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at
Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal

June 30  Liability

1998 § 58443 § 25227 $ (32,344) § 51,326
1999 51,326 30,874 (31,011) 51,189

Estimates Payments Year-End

The Fund has entered into a reinsurance
agreement, to reduce its exposure to catastrophic
losses on insured events. Losses are covered up to
$45.000 million per event and $2.000 million {Jer
individual, with the Fund retaining the risk for the
first $5.000 million of loss, Reinsurance permits
Bartlal recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the

und, as_direct insurer of the risks, remains
?rlmanly liable. There were no amounts estimated
0 be recoverable from reinsurers at June 30, 1999,
or at June 30, 1998.

d. Patients’ Compensation Fund

The State’s Enterprise Funds include the South
Carolina | Medical Malpractice . Patients’
Compensation Fund (PCF). e PCF is accounted
for as an insurance enterprise because it is primarily
composed of non-governmental entities.
Accordmgly, the PCF follows the guidance of FASB
Statement ~ 60, Accounting and Reporting by
Insurance Enterprises. )

State law created the PCF to pay that portion of
any medical malpractice claim, = settlement, or
judgment against a licensed heaith care provider
which exceeds $100 thousand per incident or
$300 thousand in the aggregate for one year. In the
event the PCF incufs a 11ab111(t?' exceeding
$100 thousand to any person under a single
occurrence, the PCF  may not pay more than
$100 thousand per year until the claim"has been paid
in_full. However, the Board of Governors of the
PCF may authorize payments in excess of
$100 thousand per year so’as to avoid payment of
Interest. . .

Licensed health care  providers_ include

hysicians and_surgeons, directors, officers and
rustees of hospitals, nurses, oral surgeons, dentists,
pharmacists, chiropractors, hospitals, nursing homes,
and any similar category of licensed health care
providers. All providers licensed in South Carolina
are eligible to participate upon remittance of the
annual assessment fees. ) i o

The PCF actuarially establishes claims liabilities
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that
have been reported but not settled, and of claims that
have been incurred but not reported. At
June 30, 1999, the claims l;a_bllltty for the PCF was
$25.440 million.  The liability for claims reported
but not settled is included in Accrued Liabilities
while the liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But
Not Reported is reported separately on the face of
the, financial statements. The PCF_ does not incur
claim adjustment expenses because it provides only
excess liability coverage. The length of time for
which claims costs must be estimated varies
depending on the coverage involved. Because actual
claims costs depend on such complex factors as
medical technology, changes in doctrines of legal

liability, and damage awards, the process used in
comf)utmg claims “liabilities does not necessarily
result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are
recomputed annually using a variety of actuarial and
statistical techniqués to produce current estimates
that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and
other economic and social factors. A provision for
inflation in the calculation of estimated future claims
costs is implicit because reliance is placed both on
actual historical data that reflect past inflation and on
other factors that are considered to be appropriate
modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims
liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the
periods in which they are made.

e. Public Service Authority—A Discretely
Presented Component Unit

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit with a December 31 fiscal
ear-end, is exposed to various risks of loss related
o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; business interruption; and errors and
omissions. The Authorle purchases commercial
insurance to cover these risks. Settled claims
resulting from these risks have not exceeded
commercial insurance coverage in any of the past
three years. Policies are subject to deductibles
ranging from $1 thousand “to approximately
$850 thousand with the exception of named storm
losses which carry deductibles up to $3.000 million.
Also a $1.000 million self-insured layer exists
betlwgen the Authority’s primary and excess liability
olicies.
P The Authority self-insures its risks related to
auto, dental, and énvironmental incidents that do not
arise out of an insured event. Automotive exposure
is up to $2.000 million per incident. Risk exposure
for the dental plan is limited by plan provisions.
There have not been any third-party claims for
?ggl_/ronmental damages for calendar years 1998 or

The State reports all of the Authority’s risk
management activities within the Public "Service
Authority’s accounts, Claims expenditures and
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonatil)y estimated.

. . At December 31, 1998, the amount of these
liabilities was $1.562 miflion. Changes in the
reported liability in each of the gast two years were
as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal Current-Year

Year Beginning-of Claims and Balance at

Ended Fiscal-Year Changes in Claim Fiscal
December 31 Liability Estimates Payments Year-End

1997 $ 1643 § 402 $ (758) $ 1,293

1998 1,293 1,260 (991) 1,562
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NOTE 18: JOINT VENTURES AND
JOINT OPERATION

a. Joint Ventures

In May 1997, the Public Service Authority (the
Authority), a discretely presented component unit,
along with two unrelated publicly owned electric
utilities formed a wholesale power marketing %o.mt
venture (the Venture). The Authority has a one-third
ownership interest, ‘which it records as an equity
investment. The Ve_nture provides services to ifs
three member organizations, as well as to certain
non-member organizations, and allocates transaction
savings and operatm% expenses to its member
organizations pursuant fo a Settlement Agreement.

Durm% its fiscal year ended December 31, 1998
the  Authority  Treceived  distributions _ o

13.263 million” from the Venture and recognized
15.531 million in_reductions to power costs,
artlall%/ offset by $171 thousand in equxX losses.
egulatory accounting practices allow the Authority
to decrease or increase power costs for rate-making
?ur%)ses rather than record net income or loss from
he Venture’s activities. . . )

In addition, the Authority provides certain
guarantees and has pledged, certain collateral to
support the Venture's transactions. The Authority’s
Board of Directors has approved the use ~of
$15.000 million to squort he Venture’s trading
activities in the form of corporate guarantees, letters
of credit and/or cash as determined by management.

Interested parties may obtain ‘a copy of the
Venture's financial statements by writing to:

The Energy Authority |
76 South iaura Street, Suite 1500
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

In May 1998, a blended component unit of the
Medical University of South Carolina entered into a
joint _venture with several physicians and medical
practices by purchasing a thirty-five percent interest
in the Lowcountx% edical "Group, LLC e
State’s Higher Education Funds record the
investment _using the equity method. At
June 30, 1999, the State’s Higher Education Funds
had invested $3.936 million 1n the joint venture,
including an initial investment of $3.600 million
legal fees of $75 thousand, and net income of

8 thousand less a distribution of $47 thousand.

Interested Mpax_'tles may obtain a COP%,a of the
Lowcoun edical Group’s financial sfatements
by writing {o:

Bates Legnard & Trask

1215 48" Avenue, North

Myrtle Beach, South Carolina 29577
Aftention: Deborah Leonard

b. Joint Operation

The Summer Nuclear Station is a joint
operation owned by the Public Service Authority
(the Authorlty?, a_discretely presented component
unit and regulated electric” utility, and the South
Carolina Electric and Gas Cqmpan¥(SCE&G),. a
non-governmental electric_ utility. The Authority
owns an undivided one-third interest in the Station
while SCE&G owns an undivided two-thirds
interest. SCE&G is solely responsible for the
Station's  design, _construction, management.
budgeting, ~ _operation, maintenance, an
decommissioning; and the Authority is obligated to
%ay its ownership share of all costs relating thereto.

he Authority receives one-third of the net
electricity genérated. .

In accordance  with regulatory accountin

Erac_tlces, the Authority reported Property, Plant, an:
[c‘]ulgment. of $506.000 million and expenses of
$44.051 million which represent its interest in this

joint operation, The Authority has financed its

interest in the joint operation with long-term debt.
The Summer Nuclear Station is not a separate legal
entity and does not prepare separate financial
statements. . .

Nuclear fuel costs, are_bemg amortized based on
energy expended, which includes a component for
estimated disposal costs of spent nuclear fuel. This
amortization is included in fuel expense and is
recovered through the Authorlt?/’s rates. .

_SCE&G has on-site spent fuel stora%e capability
until at least 2009 and expects to be able to expand
its storage capacity to accommodate the spent fuel
output for the life of the plant. In addition, there is
sufficient_on-site storage capacity over the life of
Summer Nuclear Station to permit storage of the
entire reactor core in the event that complete
unloading should become desirable or necessary.

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission {'KIR_C)
requires a licensee of a nuclear reactor to provide
minimum financial assurance  of its ability  to
decommission its nuclear facilities. A site-specific
decommissioning study completed in 1991 estimated
the Authority's share of decommissioning costs for
the Summer Nuclear Station as $76.266 million in
1990 dollars. The Authority accrues its share of the
estimated decommissioning costs over the remainin
life of the facility. These costs are being recovere
through the Authority's rates. .

o_ comply with the NRC retgulatlons, the
Authority established an external trust fund and has
been making deposits into this fund since
September 1990. In addition, the Authori
established an internal decommissioning account.
The Authority makes deposits into this fund in the
amount necessary to fund the difference between the
1991 site-specific studg' and the NRC's imposed
minimum  requiremenf.  Based on current
decommissioning cost estimates  developed by
SCE&G, these funds, which totaled $59.665 million
(ad_l]uste& to market) at December 31, 1998, alon
with future deposits into both the external an
internal decommissioning accounts and inyestment
earnings, are expected to provide sufficient funds for
the “Authority's share of the estimated
decommissioning costs.
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The Price-Anderson Indemnification Act has
established the maximum liability for public claims
arising from any nuclear incident as $9.900 billion.
This amount would be covered by nuclear liability
insurance of approximately $200.000 million per
site, with gotgnt_lal retrospective assessments of up
to $88.100 million per licensee for each nuclear
incident occurring at any reactor in the United States
(payable at a rate not to exceed $10.000 million per
incident per ear?. Based on its one-third interest in
the Summer Nuclear Station, the Authority would be
responsible for a maximum _assessment of

29.400 million, not to exceed _la_lﬁproxmately

3.300 million per incident per year. This amount is
subject to further increases to reflect (i) inflation
(i) increases in the llcensmg for operation of
additional nuclear reactors, and (iii) any increase in
the amount of commercial liability insufance that the
Authority must maintain to comply with the NRC.

SCE&G and the Authorlltlz'I maintain, with
American Nuclear Insurers (A I% and Nuclear
Electric Insurance Limited (NEIL), $500.000 million
primary and $1.500 billion excess property and
decontamination insurance to cover the costs of
facility cleanup in the event of an accident. In
addition to the premiums paid on the excess policy,
SCE&G and the Authority also could be assessed a
retroactive premium, not to exceed five times the
annual premium, in the event of properta' damage to
any nuclear generating facility covered by NEIL.
Based on the current annual premium ‘and  the
Authority’s one-third interest, the Authority’s
maximum  retroactive premium  would “be
$2.000 million. _

The Authority does not purchase insurance for
any retroactive premium assessments, claims in
excess of stated coverage, or cost increases due to
the purchase of replacement power.

NOTE 19: CONTINGENCIES AND
COMMITMENTS

a. Litigation

Among the unresolved lawsuits in which the
State was involved at June 30, 1999, were several
that challenge the legality of certain taxes. The
challenged revenues include the sales tax on gross
business proceeds and the license tax on video
%aml.ng machines.  Another suit challenges the
egality of the State’s enforcement of a referendum
rovided by State law, which allows each county to
an video goker operations. State losses in these
cases could have an adverse impact on future
revenues. In the event of unfavorable outcomes for
these cases, the ultimate liability is not expected to
exceed $211.000 million. This estimate does not
include the impact on future revenues.

. The South Carolina Retirement Systems are
involved in a lawsuit filed by four retired members.
The plaintiffs challenge the” Systems’ treatment of
unused annual leave in the calculation of
{)_art_lc_lpar;ts’ retirement payments. The State’s
iability in the event of an_unfavorable outcome
would”™ be approximately $340.000 million for

current retirees and $800.000 million for current
active members_of the South Carolina Retirement
System and the Police Officers’ Retirement System.
Although the Circuit Court determined that the State
has been f)rov1dmg retirement benefits in accordance
with the law, the plaintiffs a;épealed the decision to
the South Carolina Supreme Court. The appeal was
ar%ued before the Supreme Court, but the Court has
not yet rendered a decision. ) i
wo class action lawsuits relating to the taxation
of retirement benefits are pending against the State,
One challenges the taxation of federal retirees’
income, and the other challenges the State’s law
imposing income taxes upon benefits paid to retired
overnment _employees the South Carolina
etirement Systems. The “State filed a motion to
dismiss in both cases. The State prevailed on the
motions, however the plaintiff in the Federal retiree
suit has filed a motion to reconsider, and the plaintiff
in_the State retiree suit has filed a notice of appeal
with the South Carolina Supreme Court. In the
event of an unfavorable outcome in both cases, the
State’s liability is not expected to exceed
$475.000 million for retroactive relief with an
estimated unfavorable impact on future year
revenues of an additional $47.500 million per ?lt_:ar.
While the State is uncertain as to_the ultimate
outcome of any of the above-described lawsuits, it is
v1gorousl§l defending its position in each case. ]
.The State is involved in a number of cases in
which the amounts of potential losses, if any, are not
presently determinable. These cases include one
contending that the funding of public education in
South Carolina is jnequitable and inadequate, The
State moved to dismiss the case, and the Circuit
Court granted that motion. The plaintiffs :}gpealed,
and the State Supreme Court affirmed part of the
Circuit Court’s order but remanded the case to the
Circuit Court for further proceedings as to the issue
of alleged inadequate educational opportunity. The
case is 1n the preliminary stages in the Circuit Court.
The Medical  University of South Carolina
MUSC)E an institution reported in the State’s
igher Education Funds, and University Medical
Associates (UMA), a component unit of MUSC, are
involved in litigation filed under the False Claims
Act for alleged talse or fraudulent filed claims. The
amount of such dam?es is unspecified, and the case
currently is in the discovery phase. MUSC and
UMA also may, be liable for additional related
amounts including treble damages and civil
enaltiecs. The amounts of potential losses to the
tate, if any, as a result of an unfavorable outcome
are not presently determinable. While the State and
its component unit are uncertain as to the ultimate
outcome of this case, they are vigorously defending
their actions. = ] .
The State is involved in other legal proceedings
pertaining to matters incidental to the performance
of routine governmental operations. Such litigation
includes cases involving claims asserted against the
State _ arising from alleged torts and ~possible
violations of State and Federal Laws. Unfavorable
outcomes in these matters could result in the State
incurring losses. However, these losses are not
expected to have a material, adverse effect on the
State’s financial statements. ) )
Due to the uncertainty involving the ultimate
outcome of the previously discussed unresolved
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lawsuits, no provision for potential liability has been
made for them in the accompanying financial
statements. .

The South Carolina Supreme Court has
concluded that the statutory government liability cap
provided in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act does
not afpl% to tort cases filed against the Statp_Prlor to
July 1, 1994. The State has recorded liabilities for
the uninsured judgments against the State in cases
filed prior to July 1, 1994. = These uninsured
liabilities at June 30, 1999, consist of $650 thousand
recorded in the State’s Department of Transportation
Special Revenue Fund and $3.681 million recorded
in the State’s General Long-Term Obligations
Account Group. i

A unanimous South Carolina Supreme Court
decision on October 14, 1999, canceled a statewide
video poker referendum scheduled to have occurred
in November 1999 and banned video poker payouts
after July 1,2000. Some_ video gaming machine
operators have publicly indicated that  they are
considering legal actions related to the impending
ban on video poker payouts. Although it is possible
that actions may be brought al%g;nst he State, there
currently are significant uncertainties regarding the
exact nature and extent of such potenfial claims.
Accordingly, the amounts of potential losses, if any,
that might result from such unasserted challenges are
not presently determinable, and no provision for
such potential _liability has been made in the
accompanying financial statements.

b. Gain from Tobacco Settlement

As a party to a successful multi-state legal
settlement with the tobacco industry, the State of
South Carolina_ stands to receive settlement
payments through 2025. The settlement money is
infended to compensate the State for costs it has
incurred in providing health and other services to its
citizens that were necessitated by the use of tobacco
products. The State’s 1999-2000 Appropriation Act
provides that any funds received from the settlement
must be deposited into the General Fund of the State
to be appropriated tgl the General Assembly.

On June 4, 1999, South Carolina’s first payment
under the _settl_’ement agreement was transferred to a
state-specific interest-bearing escrow account. The
$28.638 million balance in_ that account at
June 30, 1999, is presented as Cash on Deposit With
Fiscal Agents and as Deferred Revenue in the
accom4panym_g financial statements. An amount of
$29.046 million is expected to be transferred out of
escrow and into the State’s treasury in
December 1999. .

The State is scheduled to receive a second
settlement payment of $75.425 million durin
calendar year 2000. This payment as well as a
other future settlement payments are subject to
several adjustments, the amounts of which are
presently not determinable. = These adjustments
include a “volume adjustment,” which would reflect
any decreasing cigarétte productjon under a formula
that also takes into account increased  operatin
income from sales. Other factors that might affec
the amounts of future payments include ongoing and
potential future 11t1§a ion_ against the tobacco
industry and the fufure financial health of the

tobacco manufacturers. Because the net realizable
value of the future settlement payments is not
measurable, the State did not record a receivable for
the future payments at June 30, 1999.

c. Federal Grants

_The State receives significant Federal grant and
entitlement revenues. Compliance audits ot Federal
Br_ograms may identify disallowed expenditures.

isallowances by Federal program officjals as a
result of these audits may become liabilities of the
State. The State records a liability for pending
disallowances if settlement is probable and the
settlement amount is reasonably estimable.
Otherwise, the liability is recorded when the State
and the Federal ~government agree _ upon
reimbursement terms. It'is presently not possible for
management to determine the outcome of pendin
audit _disallowances. Based on an analysis o
historical data, however, the State believes that any
such reimbursements relating to the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999, or earlier years will not have a
material impact on the State's financial statements.

d. Education Assistance Loan Guarantees

The South Carolina Education Assistance
Authority within the State's Enterprise Funds
uarantees student loans. At June 30, 1999, these
oans totaled $1.187 billion, The United  States
Department of Education reinsures 100% of losses
under these guarantees for loans made prior to
October 1, 1993; 98% of losses for loans made on or
after October 1, 1993, but before October 1, 1998;
and 95% for loans made on or after October 1, 1998.
If the loan default rate exceeds 5.0% of the loans in
repayment status, however, the United States
Department of Education decreases the reinsurance
rate. The State's default rate during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999, was approximately 1.0%.

e. Federal Housing and Urban Development
Loan Guarantee Program

During 1994, Lexington County entered into a
contract for participation in the Housing and Urban
Development ( ) Section 108 loan guarantee
program. Under this program, D arranges a
public offermﬁ of notes guaranteed by federal funds
and lends the note proceeds to” the program
&alljtmpant. The partchaant guarantees the loan with

D Community Development Block Grant
CDBG) funds. Because the county did not receive

DBG funds directly from HUD, the State cosigned
the HUD contract and_pledged its future federal
CDBG funds on behalf of the county. The county
lent its loan proceeds to fund an economic
development Yrg]ect. ]

During 1997, the funded project declared
bankruptcy. Because the grOJect will ‘not make an?'
further loan rtl)ayments_ to the county, the county will
not receive the funds it would have used to make the
corresponding loan payments to HUD. Under the
agreement, therefore, the State must use its federal

funds to make the loan payments on behalf
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of the county to the extent that such funds are
available. If the State does not receive CDBG funds
in future years, the Federal government is
responsible for the B%yments to the note holders.

At June 30, 1999, $7.430 million remained
outstanding on the Lexington County loan. The
payment terms require the State to repay this amount
in Tive years at 8.0% interest. Accordingly, the State
has recorded an Intergovernmental Payable liability
in the General Long-Term ObhFatlons Group for the
amount it owes HUD on this [oan to be paid from
federal CDBG funds.

f. Purchase Commitments

At December 31, 1998, the Public Service
Authority, a discretely presented component unit and
electric utility company, had outstanding minimum
obligations “under existing purchase contracts
totaling $401.386 million for coal. = In addition,
outstandln% minimum___ obl(ligatlons were
approximately $94.000 million and”$40.000 million
under purchased power_contracts having remaining
terms of thirty-six and five years, respectively. The
Authority has commitments for nuclear fuel
enrichmént and_ fabrication contracts that are
contmgent upon the oFeratu;;g life of its nuclear unit.
As of December 31, 1998, these commitments
totaled approximately $91.3G0 million over the next
eleven years.

g. Transportation Infrastructure Bank Loan
Commitments

The South Carolina __ Transportation
Infrastructure Bank, reported within the State’s
Special Revenue Funds, has entered into two
intergovernmental agreements with Horry County to
fund interest-bearing loans totaling $547.578 million
for road and bridge construction prcgects. At
June 30, 1999, the undrawn loan balance is
$448.641 miilion. _The Bank also has agreements
with various counties to provide financial assistance
totaling $906.500 million for certain road projects.
At June 30, 1999, the remaining commitments for
these agreements totaled $822.565 million.

h. Clean Air Act

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit and electric_ utility
company, endeavors to ensure that its facilities
comply “with applicable environmental regulations
and  standards. Congress has  promulgated
comprehensive amendments to the Clean Air Act,
1nclqd1n¥ the addition of a new federal program
relating fo acid %)rempltatlon. Most of the Clean Air
Act Amendment regulations and the Environmental
Protection Agency’s (EPA) regulations related to
ozone transport are now final, and costs have been
quantified. " The Authority has installed continuous

emissions monitoring equipment at a cost of

$5.200 million and estimates that it will spend
approximately $8.200 million more to complete
necessary combustion upgrades. Although the EPA
regulations are currently 1n litigation, potential costs
to the Public Service Authority could exceed
$170.000 million in capital expenditures by 2004

and annual recurring costs could exceed
$30.000 million.

i. Deregulation of Electric Utilities

The Public Service Authority, a discretely
presented component unit, currently is a regulated
electric utility.” The electric industry is increasingly
competitive due to re%ulatory changes and mar%et
developments. As utilities move t0 a deregulated
environment where rates are based on market forces,
there may be costs that cannot be recovered by
charging * the market rate. Some proposed
deregulation measures allow for recovery of some

ortion of these costs, but the ultimate ‘regulatory
reatment of such costs cannot be predicted.

Bills have been introduced in the United States
Congress and the South Carolina General Assembly
to {)rowd'e for retail customer choice. The outcome
of these initiatives and the impact on the Authority
cannot be determined at this time.

The Authority is implementing a long-term
strategic plan designed to position it to_compete
effectively in the changing competitive environment.
Although™ the Authorltgy is preparing for a
deregulated market, the effects of increased
competition on the Authority’s ocferatlons and
financial condition cannot be predicted.

NOTE 20: PLEDGES OF GIFTS—
HIGHER EDUCATION
FUNDS

The State's Higher Education Funds expect to
collect pledges (expressed in thousands) as follows:

Fiscai Higher Education Funds
Year Current

Ending Unre- Current

June 30 stricted Restricted Totals
2000 $ 1608 $ 249 $ 1,857
2001 — 276 276
2002 — 226 226
2003 — 76 76
2004 — — —

Thereafter 20,149 1,538 21,687

Totals $ 21,757 § 2365 § 24,122

It is not practicable to estimate the net realizable
value of such pledges; accordmgjly, th%y are not
recorded as pledges receivable at June 30, 1999, in
the accompanying financial statements.

104



REQUIRED
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




State of South Carolina

National Guard Pension System
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Last Six Fiscal Years

(Dollars in Thousands)
Actuarial UAAL
Accrued Asa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Annual Percentage
Fiscal Actuarial Valuation (AAL) AAL Funded Covered ofCovered
Year Ended Valuation of Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
June 30 Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
1994 July 1, 1993 $ 2,499 26,200 $ 23,701 9.5% $ 48,385 49.0%
1995 July 1, 1994 3.760 26,996 23,236 13.9% 50,766 45.8%
1996 July 1, 1995 3,760 26,996 23,236 13.9% 50,766 45.8%
1997 June 30, 1996° 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4%
1998 June 30, 1996° 6,259 36,756 30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4%
1999 June 30, 1998° 8,640 41,478 32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4%

2 The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan.

implemented a biennial valuation schedule.

Effective June 30, 1996, the plan’s administrator

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability
expressed as a_percentage of covered payroll is a
measure of the significance of the ‘unfunded
actuarial liability relative to the State’s capacity to
pay it. The funded ratio represents the assets
expressed as a percentage of the actuarial accrued
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liability. The trend in those two ratios provides
information about whether the financial strength of
the plan is improving or deteriorating over time. An
improvement is indicated when the funded ratio is
increasing and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial
liability to active covered payroll is decreasing.



State of South Carolina

National Guard Pension System
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Last Six Fiscal Years

(Dollars in Thousands)
Employer Contributions
Fiscal Year Annual

Ended Required Percentage
June 30 Contribution Contributed

1994 $ 2,499 100.0%

1995 2,499 100.0%

19962 2,499 100.0%

199742 3,085 81.0%

19982 3,085 81.0%

19992 3,200 78.1%

@ The State Adjutant General’'s Office administers the plan. Effective June 30, 1996, the plan's administrator
implemented a biennial valuation schedule.

The schedule of employer contributions accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when
prov1%es_ mf(%rn}llatlgn abé)u’il the requlllreg due.
contributions of the State and the extent to whic ; ;
those contributions are being made. The schedule deteg(i:nedmaf(smgg?tonof hrgseélctg;iariala be;leuatigrlgs.
gives an indication of the progress made in Additional information as of the latest actuarial

valuation follows:

Actuarial valuation date..............................el June 30, 1998
Actuarial cost method.................coocoi Entry age
Amortization method................coooeoiiiein Lewel percent, open
Remaining amortization period....................... 30 years
Asset valuation method.......................oeee, Market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return....................... 7.25%
Projected salary increases......................... Not applicable
Assumed inflationrate ........................... 4.25%
Assumed cost-of-living adjustments............ Not applicable
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State of South Carolina

The Year 2000 Issue (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

The year 2000 issue arises because most
computer software programs allocate two digits to
the year date field on the assumption that the first
two digits will be /9. Without reprogramming, such
programs will interpret, for example, the year 2000
as the fyear 1900. ~ Also, some Brog_rams may be
unable fo recognize that the year 200Q7is a leap year.

The year 2000 issue may affect elecfronic
equipment containing computer chips that have date
recognition  features—such as  environmental
systems, elevators, and vehicles-—as well as
computer software programs. In addition, the
year 2000 issue affects not onlg computer
applications and equipment under the State’s direct
control but also the systems of other entities with
which the State transacts business. Some of the
State’s syste_:rps/e%ul ment affected by the year 2000
issue are critical to the continued and uninterrupted
operations of State government.

Because of the unprecedented nature of the
year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related
remediation efforts will not be fully determinable
until the year 2000 and thereafter,, Management
cannot assure that the State is or will be year 2000
ready, that the State’s remediation efforts will be
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with
whom the State does business will be year 2000

ready.
f;l 1997, the South Carolina General AssemblK
charged the State’s Budget and Control Board wit
the Tesponsibility of cCoordinating a continuing
assessment of the fyear 2000 issue and its effects on
the operations of State government. While the
Budget and Control Board has assumed a leadership
role, individual State agencies are wholly
responsible for making rogrammm% changes
needed to address the year 2000 issue with respect to
systems under their control. On a quarterly basis,
the Budget and Control Board is monitoring the
need for, and progress of, agency remediation efforts
and the status of agency-developed contmgencg
lans to address the possibility that year200
ailures might adversely affect systems critical to
agency ogeratlons. State emplo%ees have performed
most of the work of addressing the State’s year 2000
issue.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the
State contracted with eéxternal vendors for assistance
in_addressing such issues. Unpaid commitments as
of June 30, 1999 amounted to $1.842 million for the
primary government. The State Ports Authority, a
discretely presented component unit, had unpaid
commitments of $199 thousand as of June 30, 1999.

As a part of the State Bud%et and Control
Board’s continuing assessment of the year 2000
issue, State agencies have identified 1,246 systems
deemed critical to their agency operations.
Management believes that 365 of these systems are
critical to conducting the State’s operations, Some
of these systems affect most State agencies i“central
State government™) whereas others (especially those
related to colleges and universities) affect ‘only a
single agency. Systems critical to conducting the
State’s operations” include, but are not necessarily

limited to, those that would affect the State’s ability
to provide primary government services, meet ifs
obligations, and generally carry on other essential
operations. . .

t any given time, work to address the
year 2000 issue with respect to each system deemed
mission-critical (i.e., critical to conducting the
State’s operations) may fall within one or more of
the following stages of work: o

(i)Awareness stage—Establishing a budget
and project plan for dealing with the
___year 2000 issue. o
(ii)Assessment stage—Identlgymg the
systems and components for which
)Ieear 2000 work is needed,
(iii) Remediation stage—Making changes to
. Is/ystems/e uipment. o
(iv)Validation/testing stage—Validating and
testing changes that were made during
the remediation stage.

At June 30, 1999, the State had completed all
stages of work ~for all  mission-critical
systems/equipment except as disclosed below. The
ts_ystem_s/equlpment listed below were in the
ollowing stages of work: C means complete, P
means in process, and 4 means still needs to be
addressed. Systems having similar functions that are
in the same stages of work have been combined for
purposes of this disclosure.

€ §
Description e e
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Medical University—federal reporting................ccc.ccoeecicennn P P A
Medical University—laboratory information and

clinical data systems....................i, P P P
Department of Social Services—Medicare billing.................... P PP
Local Government Investment Pool..................cc.occ e C A A
Vital records—billing..............c...ccooooiiiiorrice e C A A
Department of Agriculture—detection of pesticides and

chemicals N fOOd. ... C A A
Tracking sexually transmitted diseases........................... c A
Department of Health and Environmental Control-

laboratory billing and information......................... C P A
Tracking contaminated waste and water...................ccee... C P A
Jobs—Economic Development Authority—operations.............. cC P A
Low Country Technical College—energy management

SYSIBIML. ..ot ni et e C P A
South Carolina State University—student information system. cC P P
Medical University—student information and human

TESOUMCTBS .......oevuieeriiearetsiessmbam o an s e cC P P
Medical University—financial aid and accounting systems...... C PP
Vocational Rehabilitation centers. cC PP
Vital records—infant deaths..................oooiiiin cC P P
Department of Social Services—child w effare case

MANAGOMBNE...... ..o cC PP
Department of Ihsurance—licensing, taxation , complaints...... cC P P
Licensing—nurses, residential homebuilders, and engineers. C P P
Pyrotechnic and fire marshal licenses and inspections.... ... cC P P
hspections—-amusement rides and elevators cC P P
Union mediation.................ocoeivrnioeiio e cC PP

[F————
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The Year 2000 Issue (Unaudited)
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

E 8
£ 85
3%
§E3
Description s e 3

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (Continued)
Department of Revenue—individual income tax...................... cC P P
Unemployment claims—payroll history. cC PP
Trident Technical College—academic compulting.... cC P P
Wiliamsburg Technical College—humen resources system... C P P
Education Assistance Authority—operations.......................... cC P P
Medical University—radiology information...............c.ccccooeeveeee. cC C A
Department of Socia! Services—child support financial

systems cC C A
Appellate case management and county docketing.. cC C P
Law Enforcement—fingerprint identfication cC C P
Statew ide tracking of receipts and revenue. cC C P

Attorney General's Office—opinions; trusts and

fouNdations..............cccovimeemmriice e cc©Pp
Clemson University—accounting. cC C P
University of South Carofina—physical facilities. c Cc P
Medical University-patient information, admissions,

records, and billing....................o e C C P
Medical University—inpatient and outpatient

PhEArMACY r8COFS............cooeveeeirnieiieerees e ccv©p
Medical University—cardiology ultrasound systems................ cC C P
Medical University—child abuse and neglect tracking

systems cC C P
Department of Education—teacher certification.. cC C P
Drug manufacturer rebate records cC C P
Medicaid-processing, payment, eligibili: cC C P

Heatth departments—tracking and billing for child

health SOrVICES.............ocv et e cce
Mental health patient information. cC C P
Driver and vehicle registration.... . cC C P
Department of Social Services—eligibility determination.......... cC C P
Forest fire management..... R . € Cc P
Central State government risk management.................c......... cC C P
Department of Insurance-licensing, taxation, complaints....... cC C P
Department of Revenue-collections and tax receivables...... cC C P
Department of Revenue—property and sales tax.................... cC C P
Department of Revenue~tax accounting and records

MANAGOMENL.........oc.iiirmiiiienmeecnrecreeramereeererecsesensceeeraes cCC P
Department of Revenue—corporate income tax...................... cC CP
Orangeburg—Calhoun Technical College—student records

and fiNANCE.............oooire s cC C P
Williamsburg Technical College—all operations except

human resources SYStOM............couviemiieniicernescsnnes ccp

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

State Ports Authority—financial applications.......................... C P P
Public Service Authority—all operations (based on

December 31, 1998 information)...............ccoorecerviccannins C P P

All mission-critical systems are scheduled to be
complete for all stages by December 31, 1999. All
mission-critical _systems _are requ1red to  have
business continuity plans in the event of a failure.
As of September 1999, more than half of the
systems had such plans in place.
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State of South Carolina

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for specific
revenue sources (other than for Capital Projects,
Trust, and Higher Education Funds) that are legally
restricted for specified purposes. The State uses the
following Special Revenue Funds:

Departmental General Operating Fund. This
fund accounts for resources that are part of a
particular State agency's General Fund but are not
part of the State's General Fund. These resources
include significant amounts of Federal grant
recelpts.

Education Improvement Act Fund. This fund
accounts for the special additional one-percent sales
tax levied to be used exclusively for improvements
in elementary and secondary e€ducation, including
academic loans for future teachers.

Children’s Education Endowment Fund. This
fund accounts for low-level radioactive waste fees
collected from the Barnwell waste facility that are
not required to be deposited to the General Fund or
remitted to Barnwell ountfy. _These funds are to be
used for public school facilities assistance and
higher education scholarship grants.

_Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund.
This fund accounts for State bond proceeds and
other permanent improvement project resources to
be expended for approved repair, maintenance,
renovation, and alteration projects.

Waste Management Fund. This fund accounts
for fees collected from consumers, generators of
solid and hazardous wastes, and owners and
operators of solid waste and hazardous waste
storage facilities, These fees must be used for the
pugposes set forth in the State's Solid Waste Policy
and Management Act of 1991 and to cover the
State's costs in governmental actions involving
uncontrolled hazardous waste sites.

Department _of Transportation Special
Revenue Fund. This fund accounts for the various
gasoline taxes, fees, fines, and Federal grant
resources used by the Department of Transportation
for its general operations. These operations include
highway maintenance and repair.

Local Government Infrastructure Fund. This
fund accounts for grants, loans, and other financial
assistance to local” governments for infrastructure
Buxéposes. It is funded by certain motor fuel taxes,

ederal funds, and transfers_from other funds. The
South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Bank
is accounted for within this fund.

Accommodations and Local Option Sales
Tax Fund. This fund accounts for: (1) a special
additional two-percent sales tax on ‘the %_ross
proceeds on the rental of transient accommodations
and (2) a special one-percent sales tax applicable in
some localities within the State. The State allocates
these revenues to counties and municipalities in
accordance with State law.

Energy Settlement Fund. Revenues received
from court-ordered settlements resulting from oil
overcharges by various oil companies are accounted
for in this fund. These resources must be used for
energy-related programs designed to benefit all
categories of the State's petroleum product
consumers.

Omnibus Crime Fund. This fund accounts for
court fees remitted to the State by local court
systems_under the Omnibus Crime "Act of 1985.

ese fees must be used for certain programs
administered by the Department of Probation,
Parole & Pardon Services.

Medicaid Expansion Fund. Resources of this
fund include county assessments for indigent
medical care and a tax on licensed hospitals. The
fund was established to provide Medicaid coverage
to persons formerly 1ne11§1ble for such coverage and
}\(l)I _royade additional State matching funds for

edicaid.

Other Special Revenue Funds. These funds,
aggregated for reporting purposes, account for
various other revenues which must be used for
specific purposes. These include operations of
various employment services, water recreation,
agricultural boards, forest renewal programs, certain
housing programs, and medical and dental
scholarships.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents...................c.......

Investments.........c.cccce e vciieee s

Invested securities lending collateral.............

Receivables, net:

ACCOUNES......oooviiieieiiieieie e

Due from Federal government

and other grantors...........c.cccccoceeriniicinennne.
Due from otherfunds..................cooinnennnnnn.
Interfund receivables..................ccccoeevneeennnn.

Advances to other funds....

INVENEOTI@S......coeeeiiivieeee e
Otherassets........ccoceeeeeiiiiiiiiieeeceeeeee e,

Total assets........cceirivinininninnicnsnnnnnnn

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities. ...

Retainages payable

Tax refunds payable..............ccooriiiin,
Intergovernmental payables........................

Due to other funds
Interfund payables

Advances from other funds..........................

Deferred revenues..................
Securities lending collateral....

Other liabilities ..............ccccovriniiiis
Total liabilities...........c.ccovermrrernvernennnes

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

INVENONIES......coveieieiiiieee e

Advances to other funds
Long-term loans and notes

receivable..................oooii e

Debt requirements......

School building aid
Unreserved:

Designated for future years'

expenditures............cccocevererereircnnennenns

Designated for capital expenditures...
Designated for scholarships...............

Undesignated............cccoccenniniiiiiniiinne

Total fund balances............cccccvvcvnreenene

Total liabilities and

fund balances........c..ccovvveveerererircnnsenans

114

Repair, Department
Depart- Education Mainte- of
mental Improve- Children's nance, Waste Transportation
General ment Education and Manage- Special
Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment Revenue
156,746 $ 74,794 $ 72,493 $ 19,882 $ 68,575 $ 393,812
384 - — — — —
15 22 163 5 131 892
62,490 2,252 2,741 95 2,202 23,248
2,493 51,519 16,975 - — 33,204
— 15,510 — — — —
250 - — - — —
341,906 - — — — 61,450
22,805 4,700 — 1,930 1,344 40,016
300 600 — — — 1,358
400 — — — - 3,509
8,942 — — — 24 8617
54 — — — — 1,070
596,785 $ 149,397 $ 92,372 $ 21,912 $ 72,276 $ 567,176
237,405 $ 3,124 $ 2,755 $ 1,107 $ 6,662 $ 96,723
— — — 463 — 15,790
3 130 - — - 380
78,588 4,941 2,030 — 657 —
60,050 2,134 17 29 283 59,108
3,606 200 — — 300 —
102 - — — — —
28,439 5,343 — — — 27,400
15 22 163 5 131 892
3 10 — — — 784
408,211 15,901 4,965 1,604 8,033 201,077
8,942 — — — 24 8,617
400 — — — — 3,509
249 11,745 — — — —
— 13,913 — — — —
— — — — — 103,278
— — —_ — — 216,391
— 16,993 — — 164 —_—
178,983 90,845 87,407 20,308 64,055 34,304
188,574 133,496 87,407 20,308 64,243 366,099
596,785 $ 149,397 $ 92,372 $ 21,912 $ 72,276 $ 567,176



State of South Carolina

Accommoda-
Local tions and Other
Government Local Option Energy Omnibus Medicaid Special Elimina-
infrastructure Sales Tax Settlement Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals
$ 418,641 $ 33,141 $ 18,921 $ 3,085 $ 5,564 $ 69,110 $ - $ 1,334,764
—_ — — — — — — 384
842 — 39 —_ 4 42 — 2.155
14,903 — 644 —_— 190 777 — 109,542
— 23,267 — —_ — 1,715 — 129,173
— —_ —_ —_ — — — 15,510
246,518 — — — — 3,941 — 250,709
— — — — — — — 403,356
63,036 72 — 16 _ 2,191 (102,927) 33,183
200 — — — — 64 (900) 1,622
200 — — — — 136 — 4,245
- — 1 — — — — 17,584
— — — — — — — 1,124
$ 744,340 $ 56,480 $ 19,605 $ 3,101 $ 5,758 $ 77,976 $ (103,827) $ 2,303,351
$ 18,239 $ — $ 774 $ 665 $ 73 $ 3,953 $ — $ 371,480
— — —_ —_ —_ —_ — 16,253
— 42 — — — 1 — 556
806 30,093 50 — — 3,604 — 120,769
2,053 90 68 446 28 267 (102,927) 21,643
— - - - - 21 (900) 3,227
— — — — -— — — 102
— 2,477 — — — 12 — 63,671
842 — 39 — 4 42 — 2,155
— — — — — 25 — 822
21,940 32,702 931 1,111 105 7,925 (103,827) 600,678
— — 1 — — — — 17,584
200 — — - - 136 — 4,245
239,715 — - — —_ 3,863 — 255,572
59,408 — — — - - — 59,408
— — — — - - — 13,913
— — — — — — — 103,278
— — — — — — — 216,391
— — — — — — — 17,157
423,077 23,778 18,673 1,990 5,653 66,052 — 1,015,125
722,400 23,778 18,674 1,990 5,653 70,051 —_ 1,702,673
$ 744,340 $ 56,480 $ 19,605 $ 3,101 $ 5,758 $ 77,976 $ (103,827) $ 2,303,351
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands)

Revenues:
Taxes:
Individual inCome........c.ccooiiiiirree e
Retail sales and use.............................

Licenses, fees, and permits.................
Interest and other investment income....
Federal.........cccooovvveciiciieeeecees

Departmental services....................
Contributions..........ccccovveeiieciiiee,

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government.............c.ccoeeveiiiieenennennenee.
Education

Health and environment............ccccovii i
SOCIAl SEIVICES.....c.uiiieiieircciercceerre et

Administration of justice

Resources and economic development..............cccccovevvvennen.

Transportation...........occe i

Capital outlay....c....ooeevecri e
Debt service:

Principal retirement...............ccccoevriines

Interest and fiscal charges....

Intergovernmental.............coccoooiiiiiiin e

Total expenditures

Revenues over (under) expenditures.

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds from bonds and notes..........cceecvveeiiivieveccn e,

Lease and installment debt proceeds.....................
Operating transfers in..........cccoooiniiniini
Operating transfers out.................cooevenenvcciicncees

Total other financing sources (USes)............cceceeerrsursnnines

Revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses.

Fund balances at beginning of year

Increases (decreases) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances at end of year.

Repair,
Depart- Education Mainte-
mental improve- Children's nance, Waste
General ment Education and Manage-
Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment
— $ — — $ — $ —
643 472,220 - - 1,796
46,307 — 51,816 — —
58,697 — —_ — 24,557
718 6,162 4,795 131 2,346
3,019,097 61 1 1,508 —
156,485 146 — 970 207
107,078 —_— — 26 —
23,642 — — 1,384 4,263
52,734 1,449 — 105 364
3,465,401 480,038 56,612 4,124 33,533
72,311 12,126 — 4,000 4
119,103 21,940 2,803 1,595 —
2,260,874 793 — 5,544 35,427
533,559 4,360 — 17 —
64,268 1,722 — 5,597 —
81,805 — — 3,482 —
739 _— — — —
39 — — — —_
416,393 410,318 39,375 — 4,174
3,549,091 451,259 42,178 20,235 39,605
(83,690) 28,779 14,434 (16,111) (6,072)
36 — — —_ —
101,065 257 17 20,300 11
(12,664) (10,090) (19,732) (1,354) (661)
88,437 (9,833) (19,715) 18,946 (650)
4,747 18,946 (5,281) 2,835 (6,722)
185,698 114,550 92,688 17,473 70,987
(1,871) — — —_ (22)
188,574 $ 133496 §$ 87,407 $ 20308 § 64,243
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State of South Carolina

Department
of Accommoda-
Transportation Local tions and Energy Omni- Other
Special Government Local Option Settle- bus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Revenue Infrastructure Sales Tax ment Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals
$ - $ 260 § — $ — $ — 5§ — $ — — $ 260
— — 181,849 — — — — — 656,508
364,377 18,000 — — —_ 20,549 22,607 — 523,656
— 24,007 — — — —_ 4,635 —_ 111,896
14,606 21,215 (1) 1,046 — 307 1,947 — 63,272
318,399 22,162 — — — —_ — — 3,361,228
55,242 788 — 303 — — 2,392 — 216,533
— 74,901 —_ — — 7,524 2,949 — 192,478
— — —_ — 13,161 — 10,831 — 53,281
3,975 37 — — 4 — 878 — 59,546
756,599 161,370 181,848 1,349 13,165 28,380 46,239 —_— 5,228,658
—_ 539 50 968 — —_ 19,054 — 109,052
— — — — — — — —_— 145,441
— —_ — — — 29,087 144 — 2,331,868
— — — — — — 1,789 — 539,725
— — — — 12,150 — 157 — 83,894
— 194 — — — — 2,842 — 88,323
303,824 — — — —_ — — — 303,824
453,708 —_ — — — —_— — — 453,708
4,320 — —_— —_ —_ —_ 105 - 5,164
7,155 5,934 — —_ — -_ — — 13,128
9,500 90,020 173,132 219 — — 12,649 — 1,155,780
778,507 96,687 173,182 1,187 12,150 29,087 36,740 —_— 5,229,908
(21,908) 64,683 8,666 162 1,015 (707) 9,499 — (1,250)
199,008 285,068 — — — — — — 484,076
— — — —_ — — — — 36
688 11,040 —_ — — — 3,029 (57,507) 78,900
(4,769) (2,012) (1,250) (270) — — (5,195) 57,507 (490)
194,927 294,096 (1,250) (270) —_— —_— (2,166) —_— 562,522
173,019 358,779 7,416 (108) 1,015 (707) 7,333 -— 561,272
195,099 363,621 16,362 18,781 975 6,360 62,718 _— 1,145,312
(2,019) —_— -— 1 —_— — —_— e (3,911)
$ 366,099 $ 722400 $ 23,778 $ 18674 $ 1990 $ 5653 $ 70,051 _— $ 1,702,673
L .
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State of South Carolina

15—

Enterprise Funds

_Enterprise Funds account for business-like State
activities that provide goods and/or services to the
public. These funds are financed primarily through
user charges. ~The State's primary government
maintains the following Enterprise Funds:

Housing Authority. The State Housing Finance
and Development Authority facilitates medium-
income and low-income_housing opportunities by
providing _reasonable financing to the State's
citizens. To provide such finanCing, the Authority
issues bonds and notes and administers Federal
grants and contracts. The Authority is supported
primarily by mortgage interest.

Education Assistance Authority. The South
Carolina Education Assistance Authority issues
bonds for the purpose of making loans to students of
the State to enable them to attend higher education
institutions, ~Resources include interest charges
subsidies from_ the United States Department of
Education, and investment earnings.

Jobs—-Economic Development Authority. The
Jobs—Economic . Development Authority acts in
conjunction with other organizations in the
promotion and  advancement of industrial
commercial,  agricultural and  recreational
development in the State. The Authority's emphasis

is on those areas of the State with the greatest
economic need and to those projects providing the
greatest economic benefit. he Authority is
lsupported primarily by interest charges on project
oans.

Patients’ Compensation Fund. This fund
provides medical malpractice insurance to any
ublic or private health care provider within the
tate. = This fund is reported as an insurance
enterprise.

Second Injury Fund. This fund serves as a
claims processor for insurance carriers, self-
insurers, and the State Accident Fund. The fund
processes claims of employees with existing
permanent pht){lswal impairment who are further
injured in the course of their subsequent
employment.

Patriots Point Development Authority. The
Patriots Point Development Authority is responsible
for develo[nng and oPeratlng the Patriots Point area
near Charleston, including a naval museum. The
Authority is supported by user fees.

_Other Enterprise Funds. Other enterprise
activities of the State include: the Savannah Valley
Development and the Public Railways Divisions of
the South Carolina Department of Commerce, and
the Canteens Fund.

Photograph is not available
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development Patients’
Authority Authority Authority Compensation
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..................coocoovvevevveeeee $ 5,077 $ 107,387 $ 10,332 $ 19,580
Investments..........c.oovemiec e — — — —
Invested securities lending collateral 728 70 — 39
Receivables, net:
Accounts............ 144 13,352 47 631
Student loans — 4 —_ —
Loans and notes.............ccooovviiiiiiiniieeeee e 37 69,544 33 —_
Due from Federal government and other grantors............... 499 — —_ _
Due from other funds — — — —
Inventories..........cccovevvvennnn.. — — — —
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..................ooccoerveeoveveiinn 200,969 23,091 — —
Loans receivable 11,218 — —_ —
Other.......ccccvvvevennn. 5,463 — — —
Other current assets — 256 — —_
Total current assets..............cooeevieiviviiiiico e 224,135 213,704 10,412 20,250
Long-term assets:
INVESIMENES.........cooeiieieiie e 710 2,732 710 —
Receivables, net:
Student 10ans. ... — 9 — —
Loans and notes........ 13,865 291,996 2,416 —
Servicing rights, net — — — —
Restricted assets:
InvesStMENtS..........ccoooii e 12,520 16,653 — —_
Loans receivable...................ooooeiiiieee e 410,357 — — —_
ORI ...ttt e 2,300 —_ — —
Other long-term assets..............c.ooeevvicioeieeeeeeeeeeeee, — —_ 200 —
Deferred charges............ccoooeieiiiiicieeee e — 1,059 —_ —
Total long-term assets................coceveieoeeeeeeci e 439,752 312,449 3,326 —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements..............c.cccconioiiice — — — —
Buildings and improvements..............ccc.ccooiiiiiiieeiinin — — — —
Machinery, equipment, and other......................cc.cooeevenn 1,070 276 — 32
Less: accumulated depreciation.....................c...c.ccoeen. (378) (45) — (26)
Total property, plant, and equipment, net....................... 692 231 — 6
Total assets........ccovevirermecrnrrrererrrrn et $ 664,579 $ 526,384 $ 13,738 $ 20,256
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State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Second Development Other
Injury Authority Enterprise Eliminations Totals

$ 668 $ 2,383 $ 17,674 $ — $ 163,101

— — 80 — 80

110 1 18 - 966

1,342 215 2,827 — 18,558

- — - — 4

— — — — 69,614

— — — — 499

3 - 22 (25) —

- 380 1,834 — 2,214

52,379 190 3.242 - 279,871

— — — - 11,218

516 — — — 5,979

— 9 25 — 290

55,018 3,178 25,722 (25) 552,394

— — 738 — 4,890

- - — —_ 9

— — 16,239 — 324,516

— — 1,840 - 1,840

— — — — 29,173

-_ — — — 410,357

— — — — 2,300

— — 319 — 519

— — — — 1,059

— — 19,136 — 774,663

_— 5,954 12,746 — 18,700

—_ 1,641 2,289 — 3,930

221 8,058 5,353 _ 15,010
(136) (6,800) (3.840) — (11,225)

85 8,853 16,548 — 26,415

$ 55,103 $ 12,031 $ 61,406 $ (25) $ 1,353,472

Continued on Next Page
-]
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........................
Due to other funds
Interfund payables...........cccoooeiviiiiriiie e
Deferred revenues. .........c..ccoveieriirereieiene e ecncsereeanes
DEPOSIES. .. coevreiereieniie e
Securities lending collateral.................cccoceeeene
Liabilities payable from restricted assets...
Notes payable.............ccoooooiiiiiii
Revenue bonds payable............c.ccccocvvriiiininii
Compensated absences payable....
Other current liabilities ....................

Total current liabilities.............cccoceevviire i,

Long-term liabilities:
Accrued liabilities............ccooooeriiiiii
Insurance claims incurred but not reported........................
Advances from other funds
Notes payable...........c..ccoovvveriviie e
Revenue bonds payable............c.ccccoirirnininiiiiccne

Total long-term liabilities...............c.ccoocveiii
Total liabilities........cccverrrrcrrencrrsnmrssrmnsrnsrersenssesasssnranse
Fund Equity (Deficit):
Contributed capital.............cccoovieiirieniie e,
Retained earnings (deficit):
Reserved for debt requirements.................ccoooeinviiiinnn.
UNIESEIVE. .......ooovieiiecieccee et et

Total fund equity (defiCit)........ccccccvrerernnrirercercieneianens

Total liabilities and fund equity.........cveceriiiricieninnnanes

Jobs-
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development Patients'
Authority Authority Authority Compensation
923 16,491 $ 167 $ 675
25 212 — -
— — — 5,975
— —_ 1,564 —
728 70 —_ 39
17,782 - — —_
—_ — 33 —_
28,541 9,770 — —
405 75 21 28
— 947 — —
48,404 27,565 1,785 6,717
— — — 16,000
— —_ — 9,440
—_ — 172 —
438,990 375,678 — —
438,990 375,678 172 25,440
487,394 403,243 1,957 32,157
— - 260 —
157,514 98,232 — —
19,671 24,909 11,521 (11,901)
177,185 123,141 11,781 (11,901)
664,579 526,384 $ 13,738 $ 20,256
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State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Second Development Other
Injury Authority Enterprise Eliminations Totals
$ 1,924 $ 386 $ 6,609 $ - $ 27,175
1,049 233 304 (25) . 1,798
— — 200 —_ 200
—_ 651 37 — 6,663
— — —_ - 1,564
110 1 18 —_ 966
51,853 —_ 1,111 —_ 70,746
- — 2 — 35
—_ — —_ — 38,311
82 191 402 -_ 1,204
—_ —_ 176 — 1,123
55,018 1,462 8,859 (25) 149,785
— — 895 — 16,895
—_ —_ — — 9,440
— - 16,639 - 16,639
- - 23 — 195
— —_ — — 814,668
— — 17,557 — 857,837
55,018 1,462 26,416 (25) 1,007,622
— 11,809 8,241 — 20,310
— —_ 2,179 —_ 257,925
85 (1,240) 24,570 —_— 67,615
85 10,569 34,990 —_ 345,850
$ 55,103 $ 12,031 $ 61,406 $ (25) $ 1,353,472
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Fund Equity

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Operating revenues:
Charges for SEIVICES...........c..ocvviiierieie e ee e
Interest and other investment income..............c.cccocco v,

Total operating revenUes.........ccccivciiimeererirircssenereninsssscmeneneesesens

Operating expenses:
General operations and administration..............c..ccoccooeniininiinninnenns
Benefits and claims
INEEIEST ... ..t
Depreciation and amortization.............cccocceerierieiicinicenieeee,
Other operating eXpenses............ccceeieiiieerirrecieie e e evee e

Total operating expenses..........c..cccerrnimmerresnmmnneesien.

Operating income (10SS)........c.ccenunne

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest iNCOME...........coiiiiiie e
Federal reVeNUE............c.cooiiiiiiiiii s
Interest expense.............c.........
Other nonoperating expenses

Total nonoperating revenues (€XpPenses)............ccccereecsceearaneiren

Income (loss) before operating transfers
and extraordinary items..........cerininiiininnininissen e,

Operating transfers in.............cccovviviiic s
Income (loss) before extraordinary items.........c.ccccenvericcnncne.
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt............................

Net income (loss)......... SO

Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year ..........ccccecrnunne
Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year..........c.cccccovvninirisnnsaniens

Contributed capital at beginning of year.
Additions to contributed capital............ccccceoirinicnininiiiiniee

Fund equity (deficit) at end of year..........cccceecnvercmrinncnncincscicsncnens
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Jobs-
Education Economic Patients’
Housing Assistance Development Compen-
Authority Authority Authority sation
$ 3,462 $ 38,038 $ 628 $ 8,742
44,181 7,121 520 1,058
47,643 45,159 1,148 9,800
5,486 8,832 5,262 291
—_ — — 11,972
31,258 18,350 — —
316 164 — 3
1,377 1,622 59 —
38,437 28,968 5,321 12,266
9,206 16,191 (4,173) (2,466)
— — 54 _
23,776 — — —
— — (17) —
(16,798) (493) 57 —
6,978 (493) 24 -
16,184 15,698 (4,079) (2,466)
— — 125 —
16,184 15,698 (3,954) (2,466)
(748) — — —
15,436 15,698 (3,954) (2,466)
161,749 107,443 15,475 (9,435)
177,185 123,141 11,521 (11,901)
—_ —_ 260 —_
$ 177,185 $ 123,141 $ 11,781 $ {11,901)




State of South Carolina

Patriots
Point
Develop-
Second ment Other
Injury Authority Enterprise Totals
$ 1,281 $ 5,917 $ 18,228 $ 76,296
_ — — 52,880
1,281 5,917 18,228 129,176
1,207 4,946 17,690 43,714
— — — 11,972
— — — 49,608
28 437 454 1,402
51 83 3 3,195
1,286 5,466 18,147 109,891
(5) - 451 81 19,285
— 9 1,998 2,061
— — — 23,776
— — (1,231) (1,248)
6 — 654 (16,574)
6 9 1,421 8,015
1 460 1,502 27,300
— — 353 478
1 460 1,855 27,778
— — — (748)
1 460 1,855 27,030
84 {1,700) 24,894 298,510
85 (1,240) . 26,749 325,540
—_ 11,809 8,210 20,279
— — 31 31
$ 85 $ 10,569 $ 34,990 $ 345,850
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State of South Carolina

e
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Operating iNcome (I0SS).........cccccoeieriiiiiiiiee e

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ................ccceevveceiiiniiiiiinens

Change in the fair value of investments.....
Issuance of loans and notes.....................
Collection of loans and notes ......

Interest payments....................
Interest on investments...................oooiii

Change in assets—decreases (increases):

Accounts receivable, net................cccoceveeeiiiiicceee e,

Due from Federal government and other grantors...

Due from other funds..............ccoooeeiiiiiiiiiiiie e
INVENOMIES......oeiiiieeee e

Change in liabilities—increases (decreases):

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.................ccccccoeeee...

Insurance claims incurred but not reported..........................
Due to other funds...........ccccoevveveciiciiecie e,
Deferred revenues ..
Deposits........cocoevvirieireeeee e
Liabilities payable from restricted assets...

Compensated absences payable ..............ccceceevvicvecnciecneanen,
Other current liabilities.............c..cc.cccccoivvrinnninrrineecenen,

Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities......... reressseate s

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Proceeds from loans made by other funds............................

Principal payments made to other funds.......
Proceeds from sale of notes payable.........

Principal payments on notes payable.....
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds....
Principal payments on revenue bonds....
Interest payments.............cccecvvviiiennne.
Payment of bond issuance costs.....
Federal revenue................c.c........ .
Payments from Federal grants.....

Operating transfers in ...

Net cash provided by (used in)

noncapital financing activities............ccccvcrercrereveervsererennns
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Authorig

$

Housing

9,206

316
750
(36,376)
68,045
31,119
(11,463)

(619)

(15)

62,615

175,035
(179,580)
(32,824)
(1,701)

23,776
(21,397)

(36,691)

Jobs—
Education Economic
Assistance Development
Authority Authority
$ 16,191 $ (4,173)
164 —
666 100
(125,202) (110)
89,242 1,570
18,349 —_
(7,787) (367)
(148) (8)
593 (33)
(341) —
(50) -
2,378 35
— 966
15 4
(5,930) (2,016)
— 26
- (26)
67,300 —
(44,840) —
(18,269) an
(698) -
— 125
3,493 108




State of South Carolina

e e e

Patriots
Point
Patients’ Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals
$ (2,466) $ (5) $ 451 $ 81 5 — $ 19,285
3 28 437 454 -_ 1,402
— - - — - 1,516
- — — - — (161,688)
- - - — - 158,857
— - - - —- 49,468
(1,058) - - - - (20,675)
- 55,994 — — - 55,994
— (58,359) - — — (58,359)
— — — 710 — 710
— 1 — 73) - (232)
(230) (1,342) 423 (498) — 83
— - —_ - — (341)
— — — (22) 25 3
- - (52) (281) — (333)
- - - 9) - (59)
119 347 115 2,110 - 5,590
189 — — — — 189
- — 24 (185) (25) (186)
1,925 —_ (97) — —_ 1,828
- — — — — 966
— — — — — (619)
—_ 8 30 5 — 62
— — — — — (15)
(1,518) (3,328) 1,331 2,292 —— 53,446
- — — 2,424 — 2,424
— — - (201) — (201)
—_ — — — —_ 26
- — - - - (26)
- — — — — 242,335
—_ — — —_ - (224,420)
—_ — —_ (1,156) -— (52,266)
— - —_ — - (2,399)
- — — — — 23,776
— — — — — (21,397)
— — — 353 — 478
— — —_ 1,420 —_ (31,670)

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina
ﬁ

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Jobs—
Education Economic
Housing Assistance Development
Authority Authority Authority
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment.................ccoccveeee... $ (64) $ (276) $ —
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets......................ccoeeren. — — —_
Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities..........c.cccvneecicrriernrrnnccnrcersveevesennne (64) (276) —_—
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments...............cccccooeveevievieveceen, 31,821 9,860 —_
Purchase of investments ...........c....cccovvviiniiniii e, (670) (8,416) —
Interest on investments..............c.ocoeeiiieiieinnn, 11,661 7,166 536
Issuance of I0aNS ...........cceeuveeeviiiiecee e, — — —
Collection Of [0ANS .........cccoeiiiiriieiciice et — — 214
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities............c.cccccvvvcvveiecriinininieressrece e senee 42,812 8,710 750
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents................... 68,672 5,997 (1,158)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 137,374 124,481 11,490
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year....................... $ 206,046 $ 130478 $ 10,332
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L
Patriots
Point
Patients' Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals

Q) $ (30) $ (222) $ (1,101) $ — $ (1,694)

— 7 — — — 7
(1) (23) (222) (1,101) —_ (1,687)

- — — — - 41,781
— - - - — (9,086)

1,049 3,754 9 2,162 —_ 26,337
- — - (2,354) — (2,354)

— — — — — 214

1,049 3,754 9 (192) — 56,892

(470) 403 1,118 2,419 — 76,981

20,050 52,644 1,455 18,497 — 365,991

19,580 $ 53,047 $ 2,573 $ 20,916 $ - $ 442,972
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State of South Carolina

Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services
to other funds, other agencies, or other governments
on a cost-reimbursement basis. The State uses the
following Internal Service Funds:

Insurance Reserve Fund. This is a risk
management/reinsurance  fund. _ It underwrites
insurance risks on Ipubllc buildings and their
contents and tort liability, medical malpractice, and
automobile liability for public employees. State law
limits the Fund's customers to certain governmental
persons/entities within the State and certain
associated parties.

_Health and Disability Insurance Fund. This is
a risk management fund that underwrites the group
health, denfal, long-term disability, and related
benefits provided to State and “public school
employees and retirees.

State Accident Fund. This is a risk
management fund _ that provides  workers'
compensation _ benefits predominantly to State
employees. Premiums are collected” from State
agencies.

General Services Fund. This fund accounts

for various services provided to State and local

overnmental units for which user fees are charged.

hese services include telecommunication and

computer services, rental of office buildings

janitorial services, building maintenance, an
procurement services.

Central Supplies and Equipment Fund. This
fund sells office su{)ﬁ)lles and equipment, food, and
paper products to other governmental units. It also
stores food and paper products for State agencies.

Motor Pool Fund. This fund provides daily and
permanent lease assignments of vehicles to “State
agencies. It also maintains an inventory of
auflo_niotlve parts to provide maintenance of these
vehicles.

Department of Transportation Internal
Service Fund. This fund accounts for various
service activities of the  Department  of
Transportation. The fund provides data processing
and printing services, equipment rentals, and office
and engineering supplies to other divisions and
county offices ot the Department.

Pension Administration Fund. This fund
administers the public emgloyeg: retirement systems,
Revenues of the fund Pprimarily consist of
assessments charged to the Pension Trust Funds.

Prison Industries Fund. This fund accounts
for goods produced by inmate labor. These goods
are sold primarily to State agencies.

Other Internal Service Funds. These funds,
aggregated for reporting ?u oses, account for other
miscellaneous_activities that meet the definition of
Internal Service Funds. Such activities include
provision of training programs for State employees
work  activity  centers of the Vocational
Rehabilitation ~ Department, and the Governor’s
School for the Arts Foundation, Inc., a blended
component unit.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR
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State of South Carolina

e e——————————————————————————————————————————————
Combining Balance Sheet

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..............c...ccc.ccoveinnninccnns
Invested securities lending collateral.............................
Accounts receivable, net..............cccccooeviiiiniecicniennnn,
Due from other funds
Interfund receivables..............
Inventories

Long-term assets:
Investments........

1.

Total long-term

Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements......
Buildings and improvements......

Machinery, equipment, and other.............cccccovvrrrnnne
Construction in progress.............ccceveceecereimneseresesennnns
Less: accumulated depreciation............ccccooeerrinnnnn,

Total property, plant, and equipment, net....................

Total assets.

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Retainages payable .
Insurance claims incurred but not reported.................
Due to other funds.............cocccoceiiiicnni s
Interfund payables...
Deferred revenues........
Securities lending collateral...........ccocooeeeeviienninne
Notes payable............ccccceernnnnn
Limited obligation bonds payable.
Capital lease and installment debt
obligations payable..
Compensated absences payable.............cccccoecccuvrens
Other current liabilities.....

Toftal current liabilities...................cccccoviiiiinnenne
Long-term liabilities:

Accrued liabilities........
Insurance claims incurred but not reported.................
Advances from other funds.
Notes payable
Limited obligation bonds payable.
Capital lease and installment debt

obligations payable...

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund Equity:
Contributed capital....
Retained earnings (deficit)..............coocoeiicicninicinnnn,

Total fund equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund equity............ccccccevenns
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Central
Health and State Supplies
Insurance Disability Accident General and Motor
Reserve Insurance Fund Services Equipment Pooi
$ 83,373 $ 101,861 $ 39,099 $ 34,480 $ 1,290 $ 5,630
30,227 196 76 8 — —_
16,487 4,532 16,460 445 12 174
6,136 14,645 2,243 7,829 886 1,812
1,890 —_ — — — —
— — — 1,753 1,812 11
2,271 2 — — — —
140,384 121,236 57,878 44,515 4,000 7,627
212,065 21,704 1,245 — — —
24,323 — — — — —
236,388 21,704 1,245 — — —
— — — 5,334 — 328
— — — 144,993 — 1,127
938 1,248 10,188 65,749 — 27,845
— —_ — 6,796 — —
(571) (701) (2,161) (94,450) — (16,625)
367 547 8,027 128,422 — 12,675
$ 377,139 $ 143487 $ 67,150 $ 172,937 $ 4,000 $ 20,302
$ 93,205 $ 30,784 $ 18,722 $ 9,096 $ 468 $ 917
— - — 344 — —
51,018 101,480 9,628 —_ — —
8 92 89 628 50 53
— — — 2,164 1,000 —
39,018 762 12,762 — - —
30,227 196 76 8 — —_
- - — 99 - 291
— — —_ 3,050 — -
— - — 278 — —_
245 359 340 2,594 — 17
— — 768 — — —
213,721 133,673 42,385 18,261 1,518 1,378
— — 16,041 — — —
— — 9,363 — — —
— — — 15,057 - —
— — — 572 — 552
— — — 35,156 — —
— — — 2,833 — —
— — 25,404 53,618 — 552
213,721 133,673 67,789 71,879 1,518 1,930
— 41 — 64,055 — 242
163,418 9,773 (639) 37,003 2,482 18,130
163,418 9,814 {639) 101,058 2,482 18,372
$ 377,139 $ 143,487 $ 67,150 $ 172,937 $ 4,000 $ 20,302
R




State of South Carolina

Department of

Transportation Pension Other
Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Service tration Industries Service tions Totals

$ 19,129 $ 1,149 $ 4,465 $ 1,285 $ — $ 291,761
— 2 - —_ -— 30,509

— 48 1,426 4573 — 44,157

— — 1,185 41 (1,563) 33,214

_ — — 1,446 (2,913) 423

—_ — 3,067 — — 6,643

— — — 7 — 2,280

19,129 1,199 10,143 7,352 (4,476) 408,987

— — —_ 7,857 — 242 871

— — — 6,543 (14,422) 16,444

— — — 14,400 (14,422) 259,315

— — — —_ — 5,662

- - 1,436 — — 147,556

12,210 3,666 9,075 76 — 130,995

- — — — — 6,796
(6,400) (1,654) (6,123) (44) — (128,729)

5,810 2,012 4,388 32 — 162,280

$ 24,939 $ 3,211 $ 14,531 $ 21,784 $ !18,898) $ 830,582
$ —_— $ 948 $ 810 $ 56 $ — $ 155,006
- — — — — 344

— — —_ — — 162,126

—_ 382 251 876 (1,563) 866

_ — — 1,304 (2,913) 1,555

— — — — —_ 52,542

— 2 — — —_ 30,509

— — —_ — — 390

— — — — — 3,050

— — — — — 278

— 845 506 24 — 5,030

— — — — — 768

— 2,177 1,567 2,260 (4,476) 412,464

— — — — — 16,041

— — — — — 9,363

—_ — — 6,295 (14,422) 6,930

_ — — — —_ 1,124

—_ —_ — — — 35,156

— _— — — — 2,833

_— — — 6,295 (14,422) 71,447

—_ 2,177 1,567 8,555 (18,898) 483,911

12,210 — 5,280 133 — 81,961

12,729 1,034 7,684 13,096 — 264,710

24,939 1,034 12,964 13,229 — 346,671

$ 24,939 $ 3,211 $ 14,531 $ 21,784 $ {18,898) $ 830,582

. ]
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Fund Equity

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Health Central
and State Supplies
Insurance Disability Accident General and
Reserve Insurance Fund Services Equipment

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 70,946 $ 686,620 $ 35120 $ 80,670 $ 10,210
Contributions...........ccccoooiininininnnn. —

Interest and other investment income............cc.coceinnis 16,075 9,868 — — —
Licenses, fees, and permits.............ccccceeiniiniinnncnineeens — —_ —_ 1 —
Total operating revenues 87,021 696,488 35,120 80,671 10,210

Operating expenses:

General operations and administration...................cccoo 38,380 126,197 5,148 65,606 10,308
Benefits and Claims...........ooovvveiiieeiiiieccee e 21,021 643,211 36,648 —_ —_
Depreciation ...........ocoeveorieinicc 143 201 1,047 7141 —_
Other operating eXpenses...........c.coecceeieererriniins — —_ 113 3,758 —

Total operating expenses 59,544 769,609 42,956 76,505 10,308

Operating income (loss) 27,477 (73,121) (7,836) 4,166 (98)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Interest INCOME..........oirieeiree e — — 2,416 489 —
Interest expense — - — (3,345) —_
Other nonoperating revenues (EXpPenses)............c.ocrveeeceneanes 1) (7) 78 (1,236) —

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (1) (7) 2,494 (4,092) —

Income (loss) before operating transfers..........c...ceuvneeee 27,476 (73,128) (5,342) 74 (98)
Operating transfers in...............cccccccoiinini — — — 3,150 —_
Operating transfers out (399) (298) {3,000) (1,396) —

Net income (loss) 27,077 (73,426) (8,342) 1,828 (98)
Retained earnings at beginning of year .........ccccceevrvvsnnnenne 136,341 83,199 7,703 35,175 2,580
Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year............cccccueeueunennee 163,418 9,773 (639) 37,003 2,482
Contributed capital at beginning of year............ccccceeceranneee. - 46 - 62,536 —_
Additions to contributed capital —_ — - 2,348 —_
Deductions from contributed capital — (5) - (829) —
Fund equity (deficit) at end of year $ 163,418 $ 8,814 $ (639) $ 101,058 $ 2,482
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e ]

Department of
Transportation Pension Other
Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals

$ 15374 3 2,209 3 13,155 $ 21,336 $ 778 $ - $ 936,418
— — 15 — 2,959 — 2,974

— — — — 383 — 26,326

— e — — — — 1
15,374 2,209 13,170 21,336 4,120 — 965,719
7,237 553 12,266 17,184 2,056 — 284,935
— — — — — — 700,880
4,649 567 549 477 11 —_ 14,785

7 2 114 20 8 — 4,022

11,893 1,122 12,929 17,681 2,075 — 1,004,622
3,481 1,087 241 3,655 2,045 — (38,903)
24 — 129 — 1,875 — 4,933
(70) — — — (1,493) — (4,908)
(111) — (100) (181) 2 — {1,556)
(157) — 29 (181) 384 — (1,531)
3,324 1,087 270 3,474 2,429 — (40,434)
— —_ . —_ — (2,725) 425
(187) — — — (2,470) 2,725 (5,025)
3,137 1,087 270 3,474 41) —_ (45,034)
14,993 11,642 764 4,210 13,137 — 309,744
18,130 12,729 1,034 7,684 13,096 — 264,710
305 10,041 —_ 5,211 133 —_ 78,272

—_ 4,144 —_ 69 — —_ 6,561
(63) (1,975) — — — — (2,872)

$ 18,372 $ 24,939 $ 1,034 $ 12,964 $ 13,229 $ — $ 346,671
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State of South Carolina
E

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Health
and State
Insurance Disability Accident General
Reserve Insurance Fund Services

Cash flows from operating activities:
Operating iNCOME (I0SS).........ooviviiiiericeect et erereea $ 27,477 $ (73,121) $ (7.836) $ 4,166
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation ..............oooiviiii e 143 201 1,047 7,141
Change in the fair value of investments................cccoocceeeeien, 4,057 1,268 — —_
Provision for loan losses and bad debts....................c.c.cooee...... — — 58 —
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback........ — — — (163)
Interest on investments and interfund loans.............................. (16,075) (9,868) — -
- - — @
- M 8 (79)
Change in assets—decreases (increases):
Accounts receivable, net..........................c.ooiei 2,646 (2,528) 2,595 (88)
Due from other funds .............cooocoiiiii (5,208) (787) (194) (2,883)
INVENEOTIES ... .o —_ — —_ (124)
Other current @ssets............occooveiiiiiieciec e 123 — — —_
Change in liabilities—increases (decreases):
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities................................... (5,733) 1,103 10,033 1,440
Insurance claims incurred but not reported................................ (2.215) 25,200 (11,071) —
Due to other funds..........c..cococeoiniiiniininn, (9) (19) 47 8
Deferred revenues .............cooocecevieveiennceseniseen . 524 (1,423) (5,000) —
Compensated absences payable 3) 108 35 207
Other current liabilities....................ccoooooiiiicc, — — 223 (43)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities...........ccvvvrrrncncrccnnneneenerierseneninen 5,727 (59,867) (10,055) 9,580
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Principal payments received from other funds........................... 10,727 — — —
Principal payments made to other funds.............c....ccccco........ — —_ — (1,503)
Receipt of interest from other funds..................ccccooiiieeieee. 2,452 — — —
Interest payments made to other funds.... - — — (844)
Loans made to other funds.................c..oo oo (2,423) —_ — —_
Operating transfers in................ccccoii - — — 3,150
Operating transfers out...................c.ccoooiviiiiiiine e (399) (298) (3,000) (1,396)
Net cash provided by (used in)
noncapital financing activities.............ccceuevereirrnresseirnrennenne 10,357 (298) (3,000) (593)
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State of South Carolina

Central Department of
Supplies Transportation Pension Other
and Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals
(98) $ 3,481 $ 1,087 241 $ 3,655 $ 2,045 — (38,903)
- 4,649 567 549 a77 11 — 14,785
— — — —_ — — — 5,325
— — — — — 189 — 247
— —_ — — — — — (163)
— — — — — — — (25,943)
— 146 — 17 — 2 — 165
- — - — (10) — - (12)
— 1 e)] — - — - (72)
(6) (96) — (32) (278) 1,148 — 3,361
138 (103) — 37 671 38 (676) (8,967)
481 — — — (556) — — (199)
— — — — — (2) — 121
(250) 372 — 219 (638) (22) — 6,524
— — — — — — — 11,914
(29) (45) - (21) 27 231 676 866
— — — — — — — (5,899)
_— 3 — 51 48 6 — 455
— — — — — — — 180
236 8,408 1,653 1,061 3,396 3,646 — (36,215)
— — — — - 9,837 — 20,564
— — — — — (9,671) — (11,174)
—_ — — — — 1,875 — 4,327
— — — — — (1,493) — (2,337)
— — — — — — — (2,423)
— -— — —_ — — (2,725) 425
— (187) — — — (2,470) 2,725 (5,025)
— (187) — — -_ (1,922) — 4,357

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999

(Ex

pressed in Thousands)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment...........
Principal payments on notes payable...................

Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds

Interest payments............cooc
Proceeds from sale of capital assets......................
Principal payments on capital leases and

installment debt obligations payable......................

Net cash used in capital and
related financing activities...........coovcirecrernrunee

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of investments...........................

Purchase of investments
Interest on investments

Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities...........cvirinvcerciicnni e

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents..............

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..................

Noncash capital and financing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment through

L
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transfers from other funds....................ccccoceee.

ong-term interfund loan payments forgiven.............
Total noncash capital and financing activities.

Health
and State
Insurance Disability Accident General
Reserve Insurance Fund Services
$ (88) 3 (172) $ (606) 3 (16,284)
- - — (94)
— — — 4,789
_ — —_ (2,170)
_ — —_ {2,483)
— — i2 —
— — — (6,792)
(88) (172) (594) (23,034)
65,899 1,865 — —
(105,880) (1,976) (1,282) —
13,307 10,388 2,262 489
(26,674) 10,277 980 489
(10,678) (50,060) (12,669) {13,558)
94,051 151,921 51,768 48,038
$ 83,373 $ 101,861 $ 39,099 $ 34,480
$ — $ — $ — $ —
—_ — — 1,336
$ — $ —_ $ — $ 1,336




State of South Carolina

P —

Central Department of
Supplies Transportation Pension Other
and Motor Internal Adminis- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals

$ — $ (6,180) $ — $ (1,023) $ (1,653) $ — $ - $ (26,006)
— (657) — — — — — (751)

— — — - — — — 4,789
—_— - — — — — — (2,170)
- (70) — - — - — (2,553)

— — — — — — — 12
— — — — — — — (6,792)
— (6,907) -—_ (1,023) (1,653) —_ — (33,471)

— — — —_ — — — 67,764
_ — — — — (2,267) — (111,405)

— 24 — 129 — — — 26,599
—_ 24 — 129 — (2,267) — {17,042)
236 1,338 1,653 167 1,743 (543) —_ (82,371)

1,054 4,292 17,476 982 2,722 1,828 —_ 374,132

$ 1,290 $ 5,630 $ 19,129 $ 1,149 $ 4,465 $ 1,285 $ — $ 291,761
$ — $ - $ 2,168 $ —_ $ — $ — $ — $ 2,168
— — — — — — — 1,336

$ — $ —_ $ 2,168 $ —_ $ — $ — $ — $ 3,504
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State of South Carolina

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private
organizations, or other governmental units.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Expendable Trust Funds account for resources
the State holds as trustee. Both the principal and
earnings of Exl)endable Trust Funds may be used
for purposes allowed under, the trust agreements.
Ehed State uses the following Expendable Trust

unds:

. Radioactive Waste Contingency Fund. A
private company operates a low-level radioactive
waste disposal facility within the State. The State
and the company have entered into a trust agreement
with the State Treasurer as trustee. The company
has deposited monies into the trust fund to provide
for site cleanup in the event that there is seepage
into the groundwater or the site is abandoned.

Unemployment = Compensation  Benefits
Fund. This fund accounts for the State's
unemployment compensation benefits. Revenues
consist of taxes assessed on employers to pay
benefits to qualified unemployed persons.

Tuition Prepayment Program Fund. The
South Carolina Tuition Prepayment Program, also
known as the PACE (Prepaid Affordable College
Education) Program, allows contributors to make
affordable tpayments, under the terms of a tuition

repayment contract, to cover future undergraduate
?ultlon expenses of a designated beneficiary at a
South Carolina public college or university.

Other Expendable Trust Funds. These funds,
aﬁ]gregated for presentation purposes, account for
other miscellaneous expendable trust funds. These
are generally resources given to_the State through
trust agreements and provide for such items as
scholarship funds, maintenance and operation of
specific properties, and construction of monuments.

NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

These funds account for resources the State
holds as trustee. The principal of these funds must
be preserved and only the earnings may be used for
the %)urposes allowed under the trust agreement.
Most of the resources in these funds were
bequeathed to the State via wills of deceased
persons.

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

Pension Trust Funds account for the following
five public employee retirement systems that the
State administers:

South Carolina Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer pension  system that benefits
employees of the State, public schools, and political
subdivisions of the State.

Police Officers' Retirement System. This is a
multiple-employer pension system that benefits
gollce officers "and fire fighters employed by the

tate or its political subdivisions.

_ General Assembly Retirement System. This
is a single-employer Eensupn system ‘that benefits
members of the South Carolina General Assembly.

_Judges' and Solicitors’ Retirement System.
This _is a sin le-emgloyer pension system  that
benefits the judges of the State's Supreme Court
Court of Appeals, circuit courts, family courts, and
the State's circuit solicitors.

National Guard Pension System. The State
administers this sm%le-employer pension system
that provides a supplemental retirement benefit to
members of the South Carolina National Guard.
The State is a nonemployer contributor to the
system.

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

Local Government Investment Pool. Excess
public monies are deposited into_this fund by
various local governmental units and other political
subdivisions of the State. The State Treasurer
invests these monies in order to allow these
participating ﬁ(l)v_em_mental units to realize a higher

income on their investments by pooling their
mvestments.
AGENCY FUNDS

A%ency Funds are custodial in nature. They
Eeneral represent amounts held by the State on

ehalf of third parties. The State uses the following
Agency Funds:

Insurance Company Deposits Fund. This
fund accounts for deposits which are required to be
gladg, by insurance companies in lieu of surety
onds.

Federal Interfund Activi(t{y Fund. This fund
accounts for Federal grants and entitlements that are
first received by one State agency and eventually
will be distributéd to another Siate agency.

Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund accounts for
employee deductions and contributions for the short
period of time between the issuance of payroll
checks and payment to the proper recipient.

Other Agency Funds. Balances in these funds,
aggregated for presentation purposes, represent
amounts held for prisoners and patients of State
institutions, cash bonds, miscellaneous clearing
accounts, and other deposits.
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)
EXPENDABLE TRUST
Radioactive Unemployment Tuition Other
Waste Compensation Prepayment Expendable
Contingency Benefits Program Trust
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccc.c.cocceeveninnnns $ 94,243 $ 19,577 $ 8,198 $ 20,724
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents........................... — 763,293 — —
INVESIMENES.....cccoiiiiiireec e e — — — —
Invested securities lending collateral ..................... 191 35 17 119
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES.....eoiiiirieiercrir e sie e b sine e 3,164 1,237 259 308
TAXES...teieeeerieie ettt ettt — 36,938 — —
Loans and NOteS..........ccooceemriiiereriiiie e — — — —
Due from Federal government...............c.cccoeeeee — 1,298 — —_—
Due from other funds..........ccccocovvvviiniiinceeeee, — — — —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements..............ccccconereccinin e, — — — —
Buildings and improvements..............c..c..ccoce — — — _—
Machinery, equipment, and other........................... — — — —
Less: accumulated depreciation................ccceccee.e — — — —
Total assets........ccoccrivmnniinircnnc e $ 97,598 $ 822,378 $ 8,474 $ 21,151
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............... $ 3,228 $ 5,865 $ 282 $ 127
Tax refunds payable..........ccccccoovviiiiininiciiiene — 3,039 — —
Intergovernmental payables................cc.ccoeiieeeeee — — —_ —
Due to other funds..........cccccovvvriiinnncn e — 11,864 — 2
Deferred revenues...........cccocevvcvrvinenier e e enenns —_ 656 — —
DEPOSItS.....ceorviiieiecriiiier — — — —
Amounts held in custody for others....................... — — —_ —
Securities lending collateral..................ccccccoo oo 191 35 17 119
Total liabilities.........c.ccouimininniiniiinnnisnnninnn. 3,419 21,459 299 248
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Pension and other benefits................c.ccccoooe — 800,919 — —
External investment pool participants.................. — ' — —_ —
Endowment and similar funds................c.cceueenee. — — — —
Unreserved, undesignated...............cccecevvvvenenennne 94,179 — 8,175 20,903
Total fund balances...........cccocvrverrerncerennann. 94,179 800,919 8,175 20,903
Total liabilities and fund balances.................... $ 97,598 $ 822,378 $ 8,474 $ 21,151
[ A L ]
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State of South Carolina

PENSION TRUST
Judges’
South Police General and National
Carolina Officers’ Assembly Solicitors’ Guard
NONEXPENDABLE Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension
TRUST System System System System System
$ 1,702 $ 691,033 $ 200,563 $ 6,180 $ 19,611 $ 7,375
—_— 15,814,628 1,687,654 33,260 63,588 —
12 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 —
22 269,711 31,090 457 1,197 117
— 14,344 2,689 — 73 —_
— 524 54 1 3 —
— 4,279 437 13 20 —
— - — — — 5
— (724) (74) (2) 4) 4)
$ 1,736 $ 18,070,467 $ 2,074,257 $ 47,104 $ 87,637 $ 7,493
$ — $ 42,968 $ 316 $ 1 $ 2 $ —
— 14,284 498 27 - —
12 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 —
12 1,333,924 152,658 7,223 3,151 —
—_ 16,736,543 1,921,599 39,881 84,486 7,493
1,564 — — — — —
160 — — — — —
1,724 16,736,543 1,921,599 39,881 84,486 7,493
$ 1,736 $ 18,070,467 $ 2,074,257 $ 47,104 $ 87,637 $ 7,493

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Combining Balance Sheet

FIDUCIARY FUNDS (Continued)

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

INVESTMENT
TRUST
Local
Government
Investment
Pool
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.............ccccoceveeiiniiiiiircrc, $ 894,429
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents.............occccooviinici —
INVESTMENTS...coeeieiretieiieeee et b b e eeeee s rartee e e e sbbtbbaene s e s ebnneeeessrnan 5,046
Invested securities lending collateral ..., —_
Receivables, net:
ACCOUNES ..o eiiieeeeriir e s e eier e s e r e e srar s b et et snan s 43
K G TP O SRR —_
LOANS AN NOES.....ciiieieieiiiiiirieeieeeeeaeecrereieaevarnarerereneaaaerrreeee e eesaes —
Due from Federal government..............cccevviviniiene e —
Due from other fUNdS............cccviiieeiire e —
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and improvements. ...........ccocvr e —
Buildings and improvements.............cccooeveiiininniee e —
Machinery, equipment, and other..........c...cccoonnne —
Less: accumulated depreciation...........cccoeeivviiiiciie =
Total assets.........ccorvncrniin e $ 899,518
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities................c...cn $ 4,905
Tax refunds payable..........o.oooiiiii —
Intergovernmental payables...............ccooininin e —
Due to Other fUNAS.......ccovviieieer e s —
Deferred FEVENUES...........c..ocveiveiereieeaeeeaeeereraneeieceeeenesatssassressrnaans —
DEPOSIS......coveeeeienireierire et s e e st —
Amounts held in custody for others.............ccccoiiciciinnnnnne. —
Securities lending collateral.............ccociiiniiiiiin —
Total liabilitieS......ccccveveriiirinininicestninianninmnereeieesanrnnn. 4,905
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Pension and other benefits............cccocoeeciiinincicicee —
External investment pool participants..............cccccoeciiinnnn. 894,613
Endowment and similar funds.............ccceeore i —
Unreserved, undesignated.........c...c.ccocoeeiiinvinnnnnnnieennee, —
Total fund balances.........ccccviereecicemrsreriisiinsrcesssereinesssansasen 894,613
Total liabilities and fund balances..........ccceenvnrinnsncenneninnn $ 899,518
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State of South Carolina

AGENCY
Federal
Interfund Payroll Other
Activity Clearing Agency Eliminations Totals
$ 46 $ 9,926 $ 168,734 $ — $ 2,142,341
— — — — 763,293
— — 19,706 — 17,946,870
— — 20 — 1,439,254
— — 3,158 — 310,763
— — 5,841 — 42,779
— — 95 — 95
863 — — — 2,161
— 45,637 8,793 (65,017) 6,519
— — — — 582
— — — — 4,749
— — — — 5
— — — — (808)
$ 909 $ 55,563 $ 206,347 $ (65,017) $ 22,658,603
$ - $ 464 $ 4,440 $ — $ 62,598
— — 143 — 3,182
— — 243 — 243
858 9,790 79,889 (65,017) 52,195
— — — — 656
— — 728 — 728
51 45,309 120,884 — 489,232
— — 20 — 1,439,254
909 55,563 206,347 {65,017) 2,048,088
— — — — 19,590,921
— —_— — — 894,613
— — — — 1,564
— — — — 123,417
— — — — 20,610,515
$ 909 $ 55,563 $ 206,347 $ (65,017) $ 22,658,603
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets

PENSION TRUST FUNDS

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Judges'
South Police Generai and National
Carolina Officers’ Assembly Solicitors' Guard
Retirement Retirement  Retirement Retirement Pension
System System System System System Totals
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents.......................... $ 691,033 $ 200,563 $ 6180 $ 19611 $ 7375 $ 924,762
Receivables:
ContribUtioNS........ccoeevererercrcreceeceenieene 81,813 9,825 17 285 — 91,940
Employer long-term... 2,327 999 —_ — — 3,326
Accrued interest..............ccoooiiiiiiines 185,571 20,266 440 912 117 207,306
Due from other funds...............cccccvecneeeene 14,344 2,689 — 73 — 17,106
Total receivables............ccccvvvevvenenicneenne 284,055 33,779 457 1,270 117 319,678
investments, at fair value:
United States government securities.......... 2,613,373 260,078 8,541 3,973 — 2,885,965
United States government agencies and
government-insured securities.................. 4,789,356 457,613 8,228 22,851 —_ 5,278,048
Corporate bonds...........ccoceeveevvevncninennnnns 4,604,890 521,121 9,963 23,102 — 5,159,076
Financial and other...............ccooiviieiinnne 2,968,751 354,679 4,583 9,568 — 3,337,581
Mutual funds--equities...............cooecercenen. 838,258 94,163 1,945 4,094 — 938,460
Total investments.........ccccceeveenincinnnn, 15,814,628 1,687,654 33,260 63,588 — 17,599,130
Invested securities lending collateral.......... 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 —_ 1,438,860
Property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation.................c.c...... 4,079 417 12 19 1 4,528
Total assets. 18,070,467 2,074,257 47,104 87,637 7,493 20,286,958
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable—unsettied investment
PUFCh@SES..........coiiriirriniirrrencnc e 40,884 — — — — 40,884
Due to other funds............cccovveveeeviceiinnne 14,284 498 27 — — 14,809
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...... 2,084 316 1 2 — 2,403
Securities lending collateral........................ 1,276,672 151,844 7,195 3,149 — 1,438,860
Total liabilities 1,333,924 152,658 7,223 3,151 — 1,496,956
Net assets held in trust
for pension benefits................0un $ 16,736,543 $ 1,921,599 $ 39881 §$ 84,486 $ 7,493 $ 18,790,002
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State of South Carolina

Statement of Net Assets

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Local Government
Investment Pool

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents................ccccoceeeoevrieecrcreneee, $ 894,429

Accrued interest receivable...................... 43

INVESIMENES.....oociiireeece e 5,046
Total assets........ccccvnmrrincniiioniniim 899,518

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................cceeene. 4,905
Total liabilities.........ccccvvvnrrirnrisieriscriscrisnnsensscscssnnn 4,905

Net assets held in trust

for pool participants.........cccceeiciinininincscnnnans $ 894,613
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State of South Carolina

L
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Radioactive Unemployment

Tuition

Other

Waste Compensation Prepayment Expendable Elimina-
Contingency Benefits Program Trust tions Totals
Revenues:
Taxes, other............c.ooovviiiiiiiiie $ — 171,854 % —_ $ — $ — 171,854
Licenses, fees, and permits.................... 487 — — — — 487
Interest and other investment income..... 5,041 49,967 110 1,048 — 56,166
Federal.............ooommmm — 7,467 — — — 7,467
Contributions.........cccovviiiici i, —_ 3 8,065 642 — 8,710
Other... . — 1,547 — — — 1,547
Total revenues........c.coovevvreeremecreneeens 5,528 230,838 8,175 1,690 —_ 246,231
Expenditures:
Current:
General government..................ccccee. — 194,842 — 1,045 -—_ 195,887
Health and environment........................ — — — 141 — 141
Social services.............cccoeeeeeii — — —_ 7 — 7
Administration of justice..................... — - — 11 — 11
Intergovernmental......................covvinnenn. — — — 4 — 4
Total expenditures.............ccevcnnnnnnens —_ 194,842 — 1,208 — 196,050
Revenues over expenditures................. 5,528 35,996 8,175 482 — 50,181
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in................c............ — 2 — — (1) 1
Operating transfers out.................c...... — (12,606) — (109) 1 (12,714)
Total other financing uses............... — (12,604) — (109) — (12,713)
Revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses............... 5,528 23,392 8,175 373 —_— 37,468
Fund balances at beginning of year ..... 88,651 777,527 — 20,530 — 886,708
Fund balances at end of year................. $ 94,179 800,919 $ 8175 $ 20,903 $ — 924,176
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State of South Carolina

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999
INSURANCE COMPANY DEPOSITS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.................cccoiiiin $ — $ 24573 % 24573 $ —
INVESIMENES........ooiiieceie et 347,561 97,691 122,264 322,988
Total assets......c.ccerririicremeririieinssinnnnneinien. $ 347,561 $ 122,264 $ 146,837 $ 322,988
Liabilities:
Amounts held in custody for others............c.coccoeiveinne $ 347561 $ 97691 $ 122,264 $ 322,988
Total liabilities seaeresenseeianane - $ 347,561 $ 97,691 $ 122,264 $ 322,988
FEDERAL INTERFUND ACTIVITY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...................ccoviiiniinnnin, $ 41 $ 28,117 § 28,112 § 46
Due from Federal government 205 863 205 863
Due from other funds.............cccociiiiiiiiiiiiincs 5 — 5 —
Total assets..........ceceenuee $ 251 $ 28,980 $ 28,322 $ 909
Liabilities:
Due to other funds.............c.ooevieciiniceneci e $ 136 $ 858 $ 136 $ 858
Amounts held in custody for others 115 27,049 27,113 51
Total liabilities........ w  $ 251 $ 27,907 $ 27,249 $ 909
PAYROLL CLEARING
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.........c..cccccceeerenevciinennn. $ 9,525 $ 977552 $ 977,151 $ 9,926
Due from other funds............coovvvvviiemic s 43,982 45,637 43,982 45,637
Total agsets.............ccocsinnnireneniennes $ 53,507 § 1,023,189 $ 1,021,133 $ 55,563
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................... $ 221§ 465 $ 222 % 464
Due to other funds...........coooccivieeiriiiciiee e 9,432 9,800 9,442 9,790
Interfund payables.............cc.coooeirrniiiiii 5 — 5 —
Amounts held in custody for others....................ccce. 43,849 833,860 832,400 45,309
Total liabilities......... $ 53,507 $ 844,125 § 842,069 $ 55,563

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina
L

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

AGENCY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 1998 Additions Deductions June 30, 1999
OTHER AGENCY
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............c.c.cccooeivinnn, $ 225734 $ 1,564,815 $ 1,621,815 § 168,734
INVESEMENES....... .o e 19,264 502 60 19,706
Invested securities lending collateral... 113 20 113 20
Accounts receivable..............ccccoeeiiiiiiiiiii 2,686 3,879 3,407 3,158
Taxes receivable..............cccoevvvveveeieii i 5,373 5,865 5,397 5,841
Loans and notes receivable.................ccocooeiiiiinenl 95 85 95 95
Due from other funds...............c.ccoooi i, 5,242 8,793 5,242 8,793
Total assets $ 258,507 $ 1,583,969 § 1,636,120 § 206,347
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... $ 4410 $ 4816 $ 4786 $ 4,440
Tax refunds payable..............ccocceviviiiiniiiiie 158 142 157 143
Intergovernmental payables..............cccocvrviiciinennnnan. 130 243 130 243
Due to other funds.... 85,605 85,030 90,746 79,889
Deposits........ccovvveiiii 526 728 526 728
Amounts held in custody for others..............c.....ccuee... 167,565 1,232,646 1,279,327 120,884
Securities lending collateral..............c.cccocininiieninn, 113 20 113 20
Total liabilities..........ccccovvirnnnniiinrirsrcnnerereresereenere e, $ 258,507 $ 1,323,625 $ 1,375,785 $ 206,347
TOTALS--ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents...............ccccceeevieciecieeennen. $ 235300 $ 2,595,057 § 2,651,651 § 178,706
Investments..............ccooei i 366,825 98,193 122,324 342,694
Invested securities lending collateral............................. 113 20 113 20
Accounts receivable..................cccoovni i, 2,686 3,879 3,407 3,158
Taxes receivable 5,373 5,865 5,397 5,841
Loans and notes receivable..............cc..cccocoriviiienennnn, 95 95 95 95
Due from Federal government.............c..ccevrennccnn 205 863 205 863
Due from other funds...............ccccoeeiiiiiiiiiiee, 49,229 54,430 49,229 54,430
Total assets..........cccoiniici e $ 659,826 $ 2,758,402 $ 2,832,421 $ 585,807
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................... $ 4631 $ 5281 $ 5008 $ 4,904
Tax refunds payable................cocvevieiiiiece e 158 142 157 143
Intergovernmental payables 130 243 130 243
Due to otherfunds.......c...cccooevviiiiiiceie e, 95,173 95,688 100,324 90,537
Interfund payables..............cccco v 5 — 5 —
DePOSItS......ccoereieiiei e 526 728 526 728
Amounts held in custody for others.................ccc....... 559,090 2,191,246 2,261,104 489,232
Securities lending collateral......................cccccoeeiieen. 113 20 113 20
Total liabilities...........ccccecvverricreeciiicnnrnrcnrereserrcsenenenes $ 659,826 $ 2,293,348 $ 2,367,367 $ 585,807
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State of South Carolina
e e e ]

General Fixed Assets Accoulit Group

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is

_The assets except those accounted for in the Proprietary
maintained to_account for fixed assets acquired or Funds, Discretely Presented Component Units,
constructed for use by the State for general Fiduciary Funds, and Higher Education Funds.
governmental purposes.” These include all' fixed

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR
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State of South Carolina

Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function

June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands)

Buildings, Machinery,
Land and Improvements, Equipment,
Function Improvements and Utility Plant and Other Totals
General government.............ccccceeeeeeinnnin $ 12,635 $ 168,232 $ 87,609 3 268,476
Education.......c.cooovveeriiiiiiiiieeiie e 5,570 107,141 339,824 452 535
Health and environment........................... 13,565 210,171 142,929 366,665
S0Cial SEIVICEeS......oovvieiiieeeeiieeecie e, 813 15,258 45,683 61,754
Administration of justice............ccc....cc..... 6,275 486,854 124,704 617,833
Resources and economic development.... 153,279 68,881 94,576 316,736
Transportation................ccormiiieniinnne. 3,336 65,931 206,939 276,206
Total general fixed assets allocated

to functions.....ccccirmeecrreinnncecnmnen. $ 195,473 $ 1,122,468 $ 1,042,264 2,360,205
Construction in progress..........ccccevveveeeeees 46614

Total general fixed assets

$ 2,406,819

Photograph is not available

in web version of CAFR
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State of South Carolina

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

July 1, 1998 June 30, 1999
Function Balance Additions Retirements Balance

General government................oovvvevveeviiinnnennnan $ 249795 § 27501 % 8820 § 268,476
Education...............ooiviiee e, 454,780 18,5622 20,767 452,535
Health and environment..................ccoeeiiiiieee. 356,504 18,071 7.910 366,665
S0CIal SEIVICES. .. .ceviieviiieeei e e 60,006 6,204 4,456 61,754
Administration of justice.............ccccoeeeiii. 583,420 46,128 11,715 617,833
Resources and economic development............ 321,005 13,479 17,748 316,736
Transportation........c.cccooeeirieen 273,571 24,154 21,519 276,206
Construction in progress.............cccoeeeeeeeeeennnnn. 57,824 51,383 62,593 46,614
Total general fixed assets............oimirriiiinin $ 2,356,905 §$ 205,442 $ 155,528 $ 2,406,819

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR
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State of South Carolina

Higher Education Funds

Financial activities of the State's higher
education institutions are reported in_the Higher
Education Funds. The four-year institutions are:

The Citadel .= |

Clemson Um\{ersﬁy o

Coastal Carolina University ]

The College of Charleston (including an
Undergraduate School, known as the
Collegle of Charleston, and a Graduate
School, known as the University of
Charleston) ) )

Francis Marion University

Lander University .

The Medical University of South Carolina

South Carolina State University

The University of South Carolina

Winthrop University

Area technical colleges include:

Aiken Technical College
Central Carolina Technical College
Chesterfield-Marlboro Technical College
Denmark Technical College
Florence-Darlington Technical College
Greenville Technical College
Horry-Georgetown Technical College
Midlands Technical College,
Orangeburg-Calhoun Technical College
Piedmont Technica] College
%parta.nbur Technical College
echnical College of the Lowcountry
Tri-County Technical College
Trident Technical CQllelge
Williamsburg Technical College
York Technical College

Higher Education Funds include the following
individual funds:

CURRENT FUNDS

Current Funds account for resources that higher
education institutions may use for any purpose in
carrying out their primary objectives.

Unrestricted Current Funds. These funds
account for currently expendable resources. ~The
majority of these funds are completely unrestricted.
Certain” institutions, however, have reserved or
designated small portions of available resources for
various operating purposes specific to the individual
nstitution.

Restricted Current Funds.  These funds
account for resources that donors or other outside
agencies have restricted for specific current
operating purposes.

LOAN FUNDS

Loan Funds account for resources available for
loans to students, faculty, or staff of higher
education institutions.

ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS

These funds account for endowments and quasi-
endowments. These funds are similar to trust funds.
The State must comply with the terms of any
applicable agreements.

PLANT FUNDS

Plant Funds account for transactions involving
physical properties of the higher education
institutions.

Unexpended Plant Funds. The Unexpended
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources, that
institutions have available to finance the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of physical properties.
Resources that institutions have set aside for the
renewal and replacement of institutional properties
are also recorded in this fund. ~ Assets under
construction may be accounted for in this fund or in
the Investment in Plant Funds.

Retirement of Indebtedness Funds. The
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds subgroup
includes amounts to pay debt service and to retire
indebtedness on institutional properties.

Investment in Plant Funds. The Investment in
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that
the institution has expended for (and thus_has
invested  in) its properties and any related
outstanding debt.

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds account for amounts that higher
education ‘institutions hold as custodians or fiscal
agents for others.

FOUNDATIONS AND INSTITUTES FUNDS

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for
certain component units of the State's colleges and
universities. All component units meet the criteria
for blending but are presented in a separate column
because they use a basis of accounting different
from the one followed by the State's colleges and
universities.
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State of South Carolina
E

Combining Balance Sheet

HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS
June 30, 1999

(Expressed in Thousands) CURRENT FUNDS
ENDOWMENT
LOAN AND SIMILAR
Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents..................ccooooiiiiecienene. $ 212,983 $ 7,660 $ 5,366 $ 12,084
INVESIMENES.........oveeeee e 12,799 6,097 686 46,919
Invested securities lending collateral..................ccocooe.o..... 82 24 11 70
Receivables, net:
Accounts..........ccecieiiiiiiee e 1,347 4,433 165 457
Patient and student.. 94,126 —_ — -
Student 10anS............oooiiie e — — 47,414 —_
Loans and notes.............cceeveciimnieceiiniiii e 5,450 114 —_ 47,009
Due from Federal government and other grantors............. 966 50,198 88 —
Due from other Higher Education Funds........................... 60,277 9,424 49 4
Due fromother funds ................ccoooevvviiviiiiiieie 16,817 433 — —
Advances to other funds.............cccooceeeeevrirevicriiiieen, — — — 775
INVENLOMIES........co it 24,531 — — —_
Prepaid long-term operating lease.................ccooevvrvrrirnnnn. - — — —
Other @ssets..........cooiiiniiiii e 19,944 139 107 2,186
Investment in joint venture — — —_ —
Property, plant, and equipment, net..................c.ccoveneee. — —_ — —
Total assets $ 449,322 $ 78,522 $ 53,886 $ 109,504
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............................. $ 61,844 $ 2,131 $ 194 3 201
Retainages payable..............cocccomerinciiiiniceesie e 4 — — —
Due to other Higher Education Funds. 43,154 18,188 4 268
Duetoother funds..........cccooovvviiiiiiiiiiiceeeeeeeeeee 4,153 4,451 —_ —
Interfund payables...............coovvccconccniiiii e, — — —_ —
Advances from other funds..............c.ccoeveeeiviiiiiccn, - — — —
Deferred revenues.................ccoooveveecviineece e 39,244 490 —_ —_
Deposits.........cccovrereceeereeeen, . 3,675 — —_ —_
Amounts held in custody for others.............ccoceeeeeeinnnnn, —_ — — —_
Securities lending collateral..............ccc.c.cooooiiiveeiinnn, 82 24 1 69
Notes payable...............coooiiiiiiiccec, 3,781 — — —
General obligation bonds payable...............c..ccococvvrvenanen. — — — —_—
Revenue bonds payable................ccccccconiiienviinniinnnenn, — —_ — —
Certificates of participation payable...................ccccverevnn. — — — —_—
Capital lease and installment debt obligations payable....... — — — —_
Compensated absences payable...................cccccenreeennnnns 86,844 38 — —
Other liabilities...............cccocvvrerriieeneeeec 3,847 — 12 19
Total liabilities 246,628 25,322 221 557
Fund Balances:
Investmentinplant................cccoi — — — —
Reserved for:
Restricted fund balance...............cccocoevviviiineeccieenenn — 53,200 4,622 —_
Federal government grants refundable............................ _ — 46,393 —_
Endowment and similar funds..................c.cccoov e, —_ — — 58,706
Debt requirements............cccccoorriiiinminneeecee e, — —_ — —
Encumbrances...............ccccceiiiniinininiieee 3,303 — — —
Other special pUIPOSES..............cccvvecieieeiiicceeeeiee 5,164 — -— —
Unreserved:
Designated for loan funds..............c..cccvmeeeececeireveennn, — — 2,650 —
Designated for endowment and similar funds.................. — — — 50,241
Designated for plant funds................c.ccc......... — — — —
Designated for special purposes. 7,288 — — —
Undesignated..............ccccoooiiiieeieciccieeecee e 186,939 — — —
Total fund balances 202,694 53,200 53,665 108,947
Total liabilities and fund balances..............cceruverees $ 449,322 $ 78,522 $ 53,886 $ 109,504
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State of South Carolina

PLANT FUNDS
Retirement Investment FOUNDATIONS
of in AGENCY AND
Unexpended Indebtedness Plant FUNDS INSTITUTES Eliminations Totals

$ 129,809 $ 40,273 $ - $ 3,789 $ 41,934 $ — $ 453,898
5,506 — — — 36,778 — 108,785
151 2,631 — 12 — — 2,981
2,645 1,229 — 1,795 1,852 — 14,023
— — —_ — 24,074 - 118,200
- - — - 20 — 47,434
— — —_ —_ — — 52,573
1,504 — — -— 1,079 — 53,835

22,280 1,085 — 91 — (93,210) —
1,362 — — 123 — (1,514) 17,221

— 500 — —_ 30,685 (31,960) —
—_ —_ — — 418 -— 24,949
- —_ — —_ 16,314 — 16,314
61 248 168 — 11,530 — 34,383
_ — - _ 3,936 — 3,936
39,313 — 2,994,964 — 79,390 — 3,113,667
$ 202,631 § 45966 § 2,995,132 $ 5810 § 248110 §  (126,634) $ 4,062,199
$ 13,740 $ 5,877 $ — $ 1643 $ 13,135 $ — $ 98,765
6,730 — -— — _ — 6,734

3,302 717 - 86 27,491 (93,210) —_
— - — —_ — (1,514) 7,090
—_ — 238 — - — 238
500 —_ 33,326 — — (31,960) 1,866
—_ 935 — — 759 — 41,428
— - — — — — 3,675
—_ — —_ 4,069 — — 4,069
151 2,632 - 12 — — 2,981
213 — 38,875 — 123,913 — 166,782
7,745 — 70,560 —_ — — 78,305
18,233 347 215,831 — 13,296 — 247,707
— — — — 20,698 — 20,698
— — 23,643 — 9,558 — 33,201
— — — —_ 4,946 —_ 91,828
_ 87 23 — 2,743 — 6,731
50,614 10,595 382,496 5,810 216,539 (126,684) 812,098
- — 2,612,636 - - — 2,612,636
103,218 25,033 — — 13,540 — 199,613
— — — — — — 46,393
- — — — — — 58,706
—_ — — —_ 10,907 — 10,907
—_ - - — — — 3,303
140 — — — 1,870 — 7,174
- — — — — — 2,650
— — — - — — 50,241
48,659 10,338 — — - — 58,997
—_ — — — 5,254 — 12,542
— — — — —_ — 186,939
152,017 35,371 2,612,636 — 31,571 — 3,250,101
$ 202,631 $ 45,966 $ 2,995,132 $ 5,810 $ 248,110 $ (126,684) $ 4,062,199
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State of South Carolina

Schedules--Budgetary General Fund

The Budgetary General Fund, which
corresponds to the General Funds column in the
Appropriation Act, is the State's general operating
fund. = The Budgetary General Fund_ differs
significantly from the GAAP-basis General Fund.

The schedules in this section have been
Fregared usm§ the budgetary basis of accounting.
In South Carolina, the budgetary basis of accounting
is the cash basis with certain exceptions. The Notes
to the Financial Statements include a more detailed
description of the budgetary basis of accounting.
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State of South Carolina
E

Appropriation Activity
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Original
Function Appropriations Adjustments®

Legislative...........coceoiiiii e, $ 28,643 $ 5,014
JUAICHAL ..o 39,815 4,619
Executive and administrative...............................c 169,342 6,208
Educational............ e 2,315,762 96,466
Health............cooooiii BTSSP 817,012 63,094
Social rehabilitation services.......................oooo 120,195 12,481
Correctional and public safety.................c......ccoee 494,850 48,164
Conservation, natural resources, and development..................... 117,580 19,943
Regulatory...... ... 55,042 3,721
Transportation...........cccocoviiiiiie i 579 —
Debt SEIVICE. ... it 152,392 —
MiSCEHANEOUS. ..o 185,693 47,511
Enterprise agencies...............ccooovviiiiii e — 16,000

Totals--appropriations for expenditures............................ 4,496,905 323,221
Transfer to designation for capital and nonrecurring................... 91,766 —

Totals--appropriations for expenditures and

intrafund transfers............cccccoviiiiiicci $ 4,588,671 $ 323,221

Note: See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for information on budgetary accounting and reporting.

The adjustments shown above (expressed in thousands) may be summarized as follows:

Appropriations brought forward from 1997-98...................... $ 131,227
Open-ended appropriations...........c.cc.ccceeviivieiiieiiiecieeeeee 30,986
Supplemental appropriations.................cc..ccoee i, 161,008
Total adjustments..............cccovmrnvverinnniinncnecninnn. $ 323,221
L ]
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State of South Carolina

Appropriations
Adjusted Intrafund To Be Lapsed
Appropriations Expenditures Transfer Carried Forward Appropriations
$ 33,657 $ 29,823 $ — $ 3,834 $ —
44,434 39,532 — 4,510 392
175,550 140,334 — 33,097 2,119
2,412,228 2,371,366 — 40,862 —
880,106 846,468 — 33,638 —
132,676 124,930 - 7,746 —
543,014 510,513 — 32,501 —
137,523 121,143 — 16,176 204
58,763 56,245 — 2,518 —
579 571 — 8 —
152,392 147,283 — - 5,108
233,204 233,004 — 200 —
16,000 16,000 — — —
4,820,126 4,637,212 —_ 175,090 7,824
91,766 — 91,766 — —
$ 4,911,892 $ 4,637,212 $ 91,766 $ 175,090 $ 7,824

Photograph is not available
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State of South Carolina

General Fund Reserve Activity

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Article III, Section 36, of the South Carolina
Constitution establishes requirements relating to the
General Fund Reserve, a reserve primarily designed
to prevent Budgetary General Fund deticits. On
November 4, 19§8, a Constitutional amendment was
passed, which permanently changed the funding
requirement for the Reserve to three percent of the
Budgetary General Fund revenue of the latest
completed fiscal year.

If amounts are withdrawn from the Reserve, the
State Constitution establishes a schedule for
restoring the Reserve to full funding within three
years. )

Key amounts (dollars in thousands) for the
General Fund Reserve for the last ten fiscal years
are:

Actual
Start-of- End-of-
Fiscal Year Ended Year End-of-Year Full-Funding Year %
June 30 Balance Deposits Withdrawals Balance Amounts Funded®
1990 $ 87,999 $ — $ - $ 87,999 $ 94114 94%
1991 87,999 6,115 (60,687) 33,427 98,843 34%
1992 33,427 4,729 (38,156) — 99,163 0%
1993 — 66,832 — 66,832 100,248 67%
1994 66,832 43,346 — 110,178 110,178 100%
1995 110,178 10,557 — 120,735 120,735 100%
1996 120,735 6,271 — 127,006 127,006 100%
1997 127,006 3,374 — 130,380 130,380 100%
1998 130,380 —_ — 130,380 137,650 95%
1999 130,380 7,270 — 137,650 145,371 95% ¢

aEquals 3% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year.
bEquals (End-of-Year Balance/Full Funding Amount) x 100.
°As required by Part IV of the 1999-2000 Supplemental Appropriations Act, $7.721 million was transferred to

the Reserve on September 1, 1999, to provide full funding.
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State of South Carolina

Funds Earmarked for Public Education

BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Part I, Section 72, of the 1998-1999
Appropriation Act and Sections 12-21-1130,
1£33-30, 12-33-50, 61-4-250, 61-6-4260, and
61-6-4270 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
require that the State's portion of those Budgetary
General Fund revenues shown below be expended
only to support the specific public education
agencies listed below (including debt service on

capital improvement bonds applicable to those
agencies) and for other school purposes. These
legal requirements are considered to be satisfied if
the expenditures from Budgetary General Funds and
Capital Reserve Funds for these particular agencies
and for other school purposes exceed the State's
portion of the specified revenues.

Gross budgetary-basis revenues:

Retail sales tax (4%) and excise tax—casual sales.................................... $ 1,889,615

Alcoholic liquors tax--60% portion..............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e, 20,850

Beer and wine tax--penalties and fines.................cocciiiiiiii e 321

Soft drinks taX........oiiniii 15,508

Budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation..........cccccccuu.ce... 1,926,294
Total budgetary-basis revenues earmarked for public

education (95.5% of budgetary-basis revenues

available for appropriation)......ccc.cccvecieeerrerrrrrererreireereeeaneseeerenee 1,839,611 ?
Budgetary-basis expenditures:

Department of EQUCAtION..............ooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 1,570,958

State Board of Technical and Comprehensive Education............................. 164,492

Educational Television COmMmMISSION.............cc.cceiiiiiiiiiiiiniceecees 19,939

Wil Lou Gray Opportunity SChool............cooovviiiiiiiiiiiic e 3,341

School for the Deaf and Blind.............c..coooeviiiiiiiiiiii e 12,144

John De La Howe SChOOL..........cccciiiiiiiii e, 4131

Debt senice on capital improvement bonds applicable to

AbOVE AgENCIES.....c.. it 22,585

Other SChool PUIPOSES.. ...t 18,445 b
Total budgetary-basis expenditures for public education.............c.c......... 1,816,035
Excess (deficiency) of budgetary-basis expenditures over

revenues earmarked for public education..............ccoveviiiiiiiiinnnennennnn: $ (23,576)

*Title 6, Chapter 27 of the South Carolina Code of Laws is known as the State Aid to Subdivisions Act. That Act requires the
State to appropriate not less than four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the latest completed fiscal year’s total budgetary
General Fund revenues to local governments. Accordingly, the State’s portion of the above revenues is ninety-five and one-
half percent (95.5%) of the budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation;

*The Other School Purposes expenditure category includes: (1) a State supplement to school districts to help pay the district
contribution toward public school employee benefits, (2) State expenditures for the Palmetto Unified School District,
(3) State expenditures for the Department of Juvenile Justice’s education program, (4) State expenditures for the Governor’s
Office Division of Education and (5) Capital Reserve Appropriations for the Budget and Control Board Office of

Information Resources to expend on school technology.
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State of South Carolina
“

Expenditures by Function

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Function 1990 1991 1992 1993
General governmentb .................................. $ 314764 $§ 251692 $ 234092 $ 247,452
Education .......cooooveviiiiiii 270,237 262,697 241,230 254,464
Individual and family services®.................... 1,811,417 2,097,614 2,489,321 2,682,162

Health and environment™®........................ — — _ —

Social Services®.......ooovvveeiiee e — — — —

Administration of justice.............................. 282,580 300,250 304,488 312,961
Resources and economic development...... 128,101 132,970 128,059 131,021
Transportation.............ccooeevveiiiiiiiiiiiee . 265,443 274,895 274,957 290,740
Miscellaneous...........ccccoceeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiinniinnnn, 30 — — —
Capital outlay®............cccooeveeiiiiceceen. 25,854 25,166 22,819 24,572
Debt service:

Principal retirement.................................. 62,482 66,715 94,538 104,316

Interest and fiscal charges........................ 47,902 50,825 53,911 53,316
Intergovernmental..................ccccceeiinnn, 1,969,425 2,007,557 2,033,486 2,096,679

Total expenditures............cccoocerrrrineennne $ 5178,235 §$ 5470,381 $ 5,876,901 $ 6,197,683

a8 General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds.

5 Until July 1, 1990, General Government expenditures included premiums for retiree health and dental insurance for all functional areas. Since July 1,
1990, the total premium cost has been allocated among the various functional areas. This resulted in a decrease in General Government expenditures
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991.

Beginning July 1, 1993, Individual and Family Services expenditures were divided into two new functional expenditure categories--Health and
Environment expenditures and Social Services expenditures. Prior years were not restated for this change.

Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and Human
Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external transactions in the
Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change.

Until July 1, 1993, all highway construction projects were included as Capital Project expenditures. Since July 1, 1993, these projects have been
recorded in the Special Revenue Funds.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

State of South Carolina

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
$ 399,456 352,015 330,519 351,156 352,065 355,558
293,158 322,219 379,984 326,103 318,558 355,927
2,166,088 2,320,642 2,946,457 3,032,995 3,121,887 3,443,809
678,772 697,958 709,747 700,442 662,912 648,689
405,503 457,008 488,425 543,456 592,556 632,872
138,937 139,635 165,302 150,131 160,242 159,546
214,574 203,837 218,366 230,384 281,021 303,824
391,848 385,698 398,776 436,798 396,801 453,708
82,602 88,765 82,997 97,728 110,076 90,786
49,107 48,796 50,574 53,493 51,132 55,193
2,157,866 2,358,823 2,636,440 2,805,584 3,032,018 3,262,640
$ 6977911 §$ 7,37539% $ 8,397,587 $ 8,728,270 $ 9,079,268 $ 9,762,552
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State of South Carolina
L

Revenues by Source

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Sources 1990 1991 1992 1993

Taxes:

Individual income..............cccoveeeininnen e $ 1,361,839 $ 1,377,825 $ 1,386,724 $ 1,481,592

Retail sales and use....................c.o....... 1,464,989 1,463,941 1,515,223 1,628,766

Other.........oooeeeeiieiee e 918,270 914,729 911,036 983,546
Licenses, fees, and permits...................... 163,202 198,235 218,726 300,699
Interest and other investment

INCOM. ...t 82,954 77,602 55,634 44,702
Federal...............ooo i, 1,650,917 1,821,552 2,140,272 2,228,180
Departmental services®..............c.coco....... 111,985 118,209 137,112 153,781
Contributions .........cooviriii e, 31,812 54,337 81,232 101,242
Fines and penalties..............ccccocivvvieeinnn, 31,034 31,643 43,610 44 182
Other..........ooeeiiiee e, 37,775 32,045 43,552 52,796

Total revenues..........cccerereerceececenseeannes $ 5854777 $ 6,090,118 $ 6,533,121 $ 7,019,486

* General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds.
® Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and

Human Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external
transactions in the Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change.
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30

State of South Carolina

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
1,619,030 $ 1,646,375 1,809,287 1,927,600 $ 2,103,799 § 2,282,509
1,756,157 1,892,801 2,034,484 2,141,864 2,304,004 2,521,264

999,077 1,059,846 1,149,342 1,163,889 1,190,605 1,274,366
307,939 255,570 243,502 258,960 281,242 290,530
48,596 82,412 98,728 113,199 130,155 122,002
2,582,498 2,787,132 2,907,661 3,087,312 3,213,004 3,445,858
161,375 215,485 535,117 533,395 540,047 539,863
82,507 89,797 106,606 115,739 155,137 192,852
51,926 54,881 55,340 58,170 61,744 69,862
53,195 59,716 73,639 70,424 81,067 80,220
7,562,300 $ 8,144,015 9,013,706 9,470,552 $ 10,060,804 $ 10,819,326
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State of South Carolina

Income and Sales Tax Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Ended

June 30
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998

1999

Individual Corporate
Income Income
Tax Tax
3-7% 5%
275-7% 5%
2.50-7% 5%
250-7% 5%
250-7% 5%
2.50-7% 5%
250-7% 5%
2.50-7% 5%
250-7% 5%
250-7% 5%

®Excludes the 2% accommodations tax and the local option sales tax.

Source: Department of Revenue.

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR
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Retail
Sales
Tax®

5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%
5%

5%



State of South Carolina

—

Net General Obligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Debt Payable Net General
Gross From Higher Net General Bonded
Fiscal Bonded Education Bonded Debt
Year Ended Population® Debt® Funds Debt* Per
June 30 (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) {Thousands) Capita
1990 3,499 $ 807,911 $ 28,071 $ 779,840 $ 222.88
1991 3,559 828,650 28,560 800,090 224.81
1992 3,599 876,305 44,570 831,735 23110
1993 3,635 884,025 43,230 840,795 231.31
1994 3,667 929,571 40,420 889,151 242 47
1995 3,699 898,047 44,345 853,702 230.79
1996 3,737 1,007,394 41,900 965,494 258.36
1997 3,788 1,052,173 85,365 966,808 255.23
1998 3,836 1,036,642 84,465 952,177 248.22
1999 3,887 1,218,872 78,305 1,140,567 293.43

a Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board.

b Includes general obligation bonds payable and general obligation bond anticipation notes of both the General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group and the Higher Education Funds and notes payable in the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group.

c
Net general bonded debt is the gross general bonded debt less the general obligation debt payable not expected to
be repaid through general governmental resources (e.g., the debt payable from Higher Education Funds).

Note: Assessed value data is not presented because the State of South Carolina does not receive property tax
revenue.

171



State of South Carolina

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

Section 59-107-90 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws states that the maximum amount of annual
debt service on institution bonds for each institution
shall not exceed ninety percent of the sums received
from tuition fees for the preceding fiscal year.

Section 57-11-240 of the South Carolina Code
of Laws and Article X, Section 13 of the South
Carolina Constitution state that highway bonds may
be issued if such bonds are additionally secured by a
pledge of revenues designated by’ the General
Assembly for State highway Eurposes from taxes or
licenses imposed for using the public highways of
the State. The maximum annual debt service on all
highway bonds shall not exceed fifteen percent of

the proceeds received from the designated revenues
for the fiscal year next preceding.

Furthermore, Section 11-1%-430 states: "The
issuance of general obligation bonds of the State
must be limited so that t%le maximum annual debt
service on all general obligation bonds of the State
(excluding highway bonds, State institution bonds,
tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation notes)
may not exceed five percent of the general revenues
of the State for the fiscal year next preceding
(excluding revenues which are authorized to be
pledged for State highway bonds and State
institution bonds)."

INSTITUTION BONDS

Prior Year 90% Maximum
Institution Revenues Computation Debt Service Margin

The Citadel................cooooe . $ 488 $ 439 206 % 233
Clemson University......................... 86,641 77,977 1,542 76,435
Coastal Carolina University............... 21,368 19,231 343 18,888
University of South Carolina.............. 6,597 5,937 4,361 1,576
Winthrop University.......................... 660 594 406 188
Medical Uniwersity of South Carolina.. 7,603 6,843 1,453 5,390
Greenville Technical College............. 14,401 12,961 124 12,837
Midlands Technical College.............. 13,353 12,018 832 11,186
Central Carolina Technical College.... 3,426 3,083 202 2,881
Tri-County Technical College............ 835 752 735 17
Trident Technical College................. 10,608 9,547 413 9,134

LI 37 | L $ 165980 $ 149,382 10,617 $ 138,765

HIGHWAY BONDS

1997-1998 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for highway bonds.................c..cccconni $ 79,147
1997-1998 other revenues pledged for highway bonds................cccooeiiiiiiiiiii e 393,623
1897-1998 revenues pledged for highway bondS................ooiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 472,770
15% of 1997-1998 revenues pledged for highway bonds.................cooiiiiiiiinninn e 70,915
Less: maximum annual debt senice for highway bonds @ ..., 32,590
Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1999-highway bonds........c.c.ccccvneeriiinccirrcnrnnnreccesseeeenne $ 38,325

® As of June 30, 1999, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Continued on Next Page
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State of South Carolina

Computation of Legal Debt Margin (Continued)

June 30, 1999
(Expressed in Thousands)

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (EXCLUDING INSTITUTION AND HIGHWAY BONDS)

1997-1998 Budgetary General FUNA reVBNUES .............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin e $ 4,845,701
Less: 1997-1998 Budgetary General Fund revenues pledged for

RIGhWEY DONAS ... . e 79,147
Less: 1997-1998 transfers for institution bond debt senice recorded as

Budgetary General FUNG FEVBNUES............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it e e e e 10,437
1997-1998 net Budgetary General Fund reVenUES...............ccciiiiiiiiiiiniiiiii e, 4,756,117
5% of 1997-1998 net Budgetary General Fund revenues................cccooeiiiiiiiii 237,806
Less: maximum annual debt senice for general obligation bonds

excluding institution and highway bonds 2 ... 137,252

Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1999—general obligation bonds
excluding institution and highway bonds..............ccccciiiiiiin $ 100,554

@ As of June 30, 1999, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001.

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures
for General Obligation Debt to Total

General Governmental Expenditures®

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Ratio of
Year , Total General . Debt Service to

Ended Debt Governmental General Governmental

June 30 Principal Interest Service Expenditures Expenditures

1990 $ 62,482 $ 47902 $ 110,384 $ 5,178,235 2.13%
1991 66,715 50,825 117,540 5,470,381 2.15%
1992 94,538 53,911 148,449 5,876,901 2.53%
1993 104,316 53,316 157,632 6,197,683 2.54%
1994 82,602 49,107 131,709 6,977,911 1.89%
1995 88,765 48,796 137,561 7,375,396 1.87%
1996 82,997 50,574 133,571 8,397,587 1.59%
1997 97,728 53,493 151,221 8,728,270 1.73%
1998 110,076 51,132 161,208 9,079,268 1.78%
1999 90,786 55,193 145,979 9,762,552 1.50%

2 General Governmental Expenditures include the General and Special Revenue Funds.
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State of South Carolina

Revenue Bond Coverage—Enterprise Funds *

L.ast Ten Fiscal Years
(Dollars in Thousands)

SOUTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY °

Fiscal
Year
Ended
June 30

1990 $

1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999

Gross
Revenues

71,017
73,984
68,431
64,465
53,871
52,576
51,109
50,520
52,825
47,643

Principal
Proceeds

45,028
44,896
103,495
94,666
116,082
44,228
55,527
47,254
62,732
68,045

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY °*

Fiscal
Year
Ended
June 30

1990 $

1891
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999

Gross
Revenues

24,312
22,969
32,411
35,697
35,207
41,164
44,597
45,130
44,708
45,159

Principal
Proceeds

15,249
18,087
23,163
28,402
32,965
36,715
47,735
43,907
43,402
70,490

Direct
Operating
Expenses”

5,853
5,265
5,314
5,797
5,703
6,611
6,093
6,273
6,608
6,863

Direct
Operating
Expenses”

4,663
8,320
9,025
11,299
6,450
7,641
7,108
7,479
8,252
10,454

Net Revenue
Available for

Debt Service

110,192
113,615
166,612
153,334
164,250

90,193
100,543

91,501
108,949
108,825

Net Revenue
Available for

Debt Service

34,898
32,736
46,549
52,800
61,722
70,238
85,224
81,558
79,858
105,195

® Computations are based on data provided by the authorities. There may be classification differences between this data and data found elsewhere

in this report.

® Excludes depreciation, amortization, and interest expense.

°These entities use bond proceeds to make loans to non-governmental parties. Accordingly, principal proceeds received are included as a
revenue in the calculation of the Net Revenue Available for Debt Service.

“In years prior to 1994, the South Carolina Education Assistance Authority Fund included the Student Loan Corporation. Previous years have not

been restated.
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State of South Carolina

e

Debt Service Requirements

Coverage
Principal Interest Total Ratio
$ 10,010 $ 56,661 $ 66,671 1.65
10,025 59,359 69,384 1.64
11,325 59,468 70,793 235
43,103 49,503 92,606 1.66
81,965 39,405 121,370 1.35
11,715 35,307 47,022 1.92
9,880 34,492 44,372 227
11,070 33,588 44658 2.05
11,645 33,629 45,274 241
41,330 31,258 72,588 1.50
Debt Service Requirements
Coverage
Principal Interest Total Ratio

$ 11,440 $ 11,864 $ 23,304 1.50
17,665 12,419 30,084 1.09
21,320 14,284 35,604 1.31
22,480 17,507 39,987 1.32
24,895 19,199 44,094 1.40
34,795 21,469 - 56,264 1.25
32,155 23,563 55,718 1.53
29,395 21,971 51,366 1.59
47,515 20,275 67,790 1.18
1,270 18,350 19,620 5.36

Photograph is not available
in web version of CAFR

Chester County Courthouse

i —
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State of South Carolina

Demographic Statistics

Last Ten Years
Median
Per Capita Age® School Unemployment
Population® Income® (Years) Enroliment® Rate®
at Year Ended at at at
Year June 30 December 31 June 30 June 30 December 31
1989 3,444,000 $ 13,884 31.4 678,050 4.6%
1990 3,498,982 15,106 31.7 677,356 5.2%
1991 3,558,707 15,482 322 681,717 6.5%
1992 3,599,351 16,467 326 685,744 6.7%
1993 3,634,842 17,242 329 688,513 7.3%
1994 3,666,760 18,072 333 692,515 5.2%
1995 3,699,305 18,789 33.7 701,140 5.5%
1996 3,736,947 19,651 34.1 699,058 5.8%
1997 3,788,119 20,508 34.5 708,751 3.7%
1998 3,835,962 21,309 35.0 718,969 3.9%
1999 3,886,500 d 354 720,855 d
Sources:

#Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board

®South Carolina Department of Education

°South Carolina Employment Security Commission

INot yet available
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State of South Carolina

Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits

Last Ten Years
(Dollars in Millions)
Nonresidential Residential
Construction Construction® Property Value®
Thousands of Number of Bank Nonresidential Residential
Square Feet at Units at Value at Deposits at at at
Year December 31 December 31 December31 December 31 June 30 June 30
1988 23,121 25563 § 1,438 $ 26,022 $ 34,127 $ 31,241
1989 18,866 20,530 1,252 27,849 34,936 33,869
1990 18,525 22,454 1,475 29,091 37,079 38,852
1991 17,272 19,309 1,372 29,528 39,089 41,220
1992 15,052 20,853 1,585 30,224 41,104 45,926
1993 15,840 21,186 1,662 31,005 43,084 50,963
1994 20,369 23,670 1,898 30,475 44,204 54,118
1995 22,345 22,400 1,826 33,035 45,334 57,987
1996 25,816 28,281 2,402 30,032 46,864 60,977
1997 31,397 27,984 2,430 23,515 48,409 63,905
1998 23,763 31,070 2,821 24,729 d d
1999 c c c c d d

® The residential construction statistics exclude mobile home permits.
> Property taxes do not represent a source of revenue for the State.
° Not yet available.

d
Due to legislation requiring that tax assessments be based on the prior year's property value, neither the 1998 nor
1999 information is yet available.

Sources: Board of Economic Advisors, State Budget and Control Board; Department of Revenue; University of South
Carolina, College of Business Administration, Division of Research.
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State of South Carolina
§

Largest Manufacturing Companies®
December 31, 1998

Number of Plants Number of Employees
Name in South Carolina in South Carolina
Westinghouse Electric Corporation............. 3 13,036
Springs Industries, Incorporated.................. 13 6,767
Milliken & Company..............cccccvvvvveeeeannnnn. 26 6,683
Michelin Tire Corporation................ccc........ 7 6,327
WestPoint Stevens......................cccc.o 7 4,778
Robert Bosch GmbH..................cccovvveeeen. 6 4,727
AB Electrolux Sweden................................ 2 3,200
Sealed Air Corporation....................ccoeue.. 4 3,191
Hoechst AG.......cccooevveieieiececcee e, 4 3,041
Greenwood Mills, Incorporated.................... 7 2,686
KEMET Corporation..........................co.o..... 4 2,631
Gold Kist Incorporated................cc.oco.ee.. 3 2,559
Galey & Lord Industries, Incorporated......... 6 2,451
Ryobi North America, Incorporated............. 2 2,431
E. I. du Pont de Nemours and Company..... 3 2,377
Ingersoll-Rand Company.................cocuuee.... 4 2,338
AlliedSignal, Incorporated........................... 6 2,326
General Electric Company.......................... 2 2,325
Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corporation......... 4 2,225
International Paper................ccocovviieeeecennnn. 8 2,223

®Based on number of employees. This list includes all companies with 2,200 or more employees.
Source: 1999-2000 South Carolina Industrial Directory.

“
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State of South Carolina

#

Miscellaneous Statistics
December 31, 1998 (Except as Noted)

Date of ratification--U. S. CONSHLUtION. ............ccoeoviiriiiie i, 17882
FOrm of QOVEIMMENL.........coiiiiiiiiiiee it Legislative-Executive-Judicial
Miles OF State NIGAWAYS............covvereerieeeeseeee et 64,806°
Land area (SQUATe MUIES)............cocvrrireuriiirercieieiriricie et s s 30,111°

State police protection:
Police and sheriff agENCIES.............cccoiiicciiiiiii i 298¢

Total number of SWOIN OffiCEIS. ......ooneciie et g9,779¢

Higher education (universities, colleges, and
technical education centers).

NUMDEF Of CAMPUSES. ... .coiiiiiiiriiiiii ittt e 61°¢

NUMDET Of STUAENTS. ... ..ttt et 161,473°
Recreation:

Number of State parks and historical Sites..............cooi 53f

ATEE OF SEALE PATKS........o...ovveeeveeeeeeeiveessiee et 80,902 acres'

ATEa OF StAtE fOTESES. .....c.ooieiiiieeieee ettt eb et 71,922 acres?®
State employees--all funds (at June 30,1998).............cocoiiiiiii 68,972"
Sources:

21999 Legislative Manual

®Department of Transportation

“Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board
IState Law Enforcement Division

®Commission on Higher Education

‘Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism

Forestry Commission

h"Office of State Budget, State Budget and Control Board

L S
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State of South Carolina

Courthouses—Additional Information

(Arranged Alphabetically by County Name)

Abbeville County Courthouse (page 36)

The Abbeville County Courthouse was built just
after the turn of the century, at rou%hl the same
time as the Abbeville Opera House, which is located
next door on Court Square.

Aiken County Judicial Center (page 5)

Originally constructed in 1881, the Aiken County
Courthouse has undergone two major renovations as
well as several minor ones. _ Recent major
renovations were required after fires in 1977 and
1981 damaged the structure. The Aiken County
Judicial Center was dedicated on January 18, 1987.

Allendale County Courthouse (page 113)

This photograph shows the Allendale County
Courthouse just prior to May 18, 1998, when a fire
set by an arsonist destroyed the interior of the

building. The building is currently being
reconstructed.

Anderson County Courthouse (page 158)

Construction of the new Anderson Coun
Courthouse was completed in September 1991. The
new courthouse is a mixture of historical details
used in the old courthouse, such as the tile roof, and
modern features, such as the arched framework
outside the entrance.

Bamberg County Courthouse (page 32)

The Bamberg County Courthouse was built in 1897.
The original courthouse was moved to a different
site and completely renovated in 1950.

Barnwell County Courthouse (page 151)

Construction on the Barnwell County Courthouse
began in October 1878. The present building is
located on the orxgll)nal five-acre site deeded for a
courthouse in 1800 by Benjamin Odom.

Beaufort County Courthouse (page 140)

Completed in January 1991, the Beaufort County
Courthouse_is located_in the historic downtown
district of Beaufort. The building is part of the
Beaufort County multi-government Center.

Berkeley County Courthouse (page 5)

The Berkeley County Courthouse was built in 1896
at a cost of approximately $4,500. The plans called
for a two-story building of good, hard, well-burned
brick, a tin_roof, and a porfico built of wood_ with

alvanized iron columns. The first case was tried in
General Sessions Court on June7, 1897, and
involved a man charged with hog theft. =~ An
addition that more than doubled the original size of
the building was completed in 1991.

Calhoun County Courthouse (page 33)

The Calhoun, County Courthouse, a two-story
Geor%lan Revival style building, was completed in
May 1914. The courthouse was_ listed on the
National Register of Historic Places in July 1981.

Charleston County Courthouse (page 159)

The Charleston County Courthouse, built in 1792,
includes some exterior and first floor walls that date
back to the orlémal_1753 Provincial Statehouse of
the Colony of Carolina. The building is located at
what is known as the Four Corners of Law in
downtown Charleston. Today, the structure is
undergoing a multi-million dollar restoration to
return’it to its 1792 period. Pictured is a rendition
of the building as it will appear after the restoration
is completed.” It will become the cornerstone and
symbolic center of a new Judicial Center Complex
that is under construction, The adjacent Judicial
Center, slated for completion in 2001, will include
fourteen courtroom sets.

Cherokee County Courthouse (page 112)

The Cherokee County Courthouse, located on East
Floyd Baker Boulevard in Gaffney, South Carolina
was erected in 1927. The building constructed o
ﬁramte with interior walls and floors, of marble,

ouses a courtroom on its third floor with a seating
capacity of 300. The stairs leading from floor to
floor are gray marble. Few renovafions have been
done over the years; however, there are plans to
renovate the first floor and add an elevator to the
building. A future addition may be added to the rear
of the building to accommodate offices needed due
to rapid growth in Cherokee County.

Chester County Courthouse (page 175)

Edward Brickell White of Charleston, whose work
was C%\reatly influenced bﬁ Robert Mllls, designed
the Chester County Courthouse, which was built in
1852. Additions in 1896 and 1928 included a three-
story rear wing and a rotunda. An elevator tower
that” was added to the rear wing in 1994
complements the original design of the building.

Chesterfield County Courthouse (page 27)

South Carolina’s first secession meeting was held
on November 19, 1860, at the Chesterfield County
Courthouse. Sherman and his troops torched the
county courthouse in March 1865, and all records
were destroyed. In 1884 during Reconstruction, a
new courthouse was built. e two-story brick
building has a large cupola and a tall mansard roof
in_the then-fashionable Empire mode; this mansard,
with its iron crestm% still dominates the main
streetscape of Chesterfield. This facility, the “Olde
Chesterfield County Courthouse” is currentgg closed
for renovations. When completed, the building will
?nce again house all of Chesterfield County’s court
unctions.
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State of South Carolina

Courthouses—Additional Information

(Arranged Alphabetically by County Name)

Clarendon County Courthouse (page 8)

The first Clarendon County Courthouse, erected in
the 1850°s for $18,000, was destroyed in the Civil
War by General Potter’s Raiders. The present
Georgian-style courthouse, built in 1908-1909, is
situated on” an entire city block. After a 1970
renovation, Hurricane Hu%.o damaged the buildin
and destroyed the beautiful grounds in 1989,
Through the efforts of the Manning Council of
Gardend Clubs, the grounds were completely
restored.

Colleton County Courthouse (page 180)

The Colleton County Courthouse, completed in the
fall of 1822, is in the Greek Revival style. Robert
Mills,is credited with the design of the  Walterboro
building. The courthouse is brick, which is stuccoed
to represent stone. Two curving stairways with
ironwork railings lead to the second-floor portico,
which rests on an arched foundation. Four Doric
columns and two square pilasters su;fBort the
massive, undecorated entablature. In 1939 two
large wings were added to the original structure.

Darlington County Courthouse (page 110)

The present Darlington County Courthouse was
built in 1964. Previously, four other Darlington
County Courthouses occupied the site. wOQ
courthouses were lost to fires in 1806 and 1866, and
twg flglgiequent rebuildings were completed in 1873
an .

Dillon County Courthouse (page 118)

The cornerstone for the Dillon County Courthouse
was laid on October 30, 1911. The two-story brick
and stone structure was of fireproof construction
throughout, mcludmg the ample vaults adjacent to
the office of each official. The building was heated

y steam and contained every modern_convenience
available at that time. The total cost of the building
was $100,000. When completed, the impressive
structure was one of which the county could be
proud. Shaded b¥) lofty trees on the surrounding
green lawn, this building still serves as Dillon’s
courthouse. (Photo by Benton Henry)

Dorchester County Courthouse (page 164)

The Dorchester County Courthouse, located in St.
George, was_ constructed in 1964 in the Greek
Revival architectural style. The building now
houses both (_lud.lc.lal and county administrative
offices. The administrative functions will move to a
different facility in 2001, and the courthouse will be

5%%5blshed as” a state-of-the-art court facility in

Edgefield County Courthouse (page 154)

The Edﬁgﬁeld County Courthouse was completed in
1839. Throughout its hlstorg, this courthouse has
seen numerous Edgefiel County citizens

distinguish themselves in law and politics. United
States” Senator Strom Thurmond, three sittin
federal judges, and a resident circuit judge all haﬁ
from Edgefield Count%/. Ten governors and five
lieutenant governors of South Carolina have called
Edgefield County home.

Fairfield County Courthouse (page 130)

The Fairfield County Courthouse, located in
Winnsboro, was designied by Robert Mills and built
in 1822 by William™ McCreight. Alterations and
additions were made in 1844.” The courthouse was
renovated in 1939 with the addition of two rear
wings and the flying staircase in front. The building
hou?)gs records “dating back as far as the middle
s.

Florence County City/County Complex
(page 170)

The Florence County City/County Complex was
erected by the joint” participation” of the City of
Florence and the County of Florence in 1972, It
reﬁresented the realization of a vision by leaders
who believed that the facilities for the
governmental,  financial, judicial, and law
enforcement functions of the city and county
govemment should be brought together in an effort
o serve the public good ~ efficiently and
economically.

Georgetown County Courthouse (page 161)

The Georgetown County Courthouse was
constructed in 1823-1824 t0 replace the previous
courthouse, which had been damaged by two
hurricanes. Robert Mills based his design ‘of the
courthouse on the style of Palladio, a_sixteenth-
century Italian architect. A modern Mills scholar
has_déscribed the Georgetown County Courthouse
as “the most sophisticated of his South Carolina
courthouses.” It was enlarged in 1853, and the first
and second entrances appear to have been
embellished at that time.

Greenville County Courthouse (page 158)

The interior of the Greenville County 1940’s courts
facility was completely renovated while the exterior
of the original building was preserved. In order to

reserve the historic environment and atmosphere of
he original courthouse, the design of a later
addition was planned to blend with and complement
the original structure.

Greenwood County Courthouse (page 130)

The Greenwood County Courthouse was completed
in 1966 and has served as a combined courthouse
and county administration building. The current
building replaced a brick courthouse that was
constructed at the turn of the century, shortly after
Greenwood County was created from the éastern
portion of Abbeville County.

L
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State of South Carolina

Courthouses—Additional Information

(Arranged Alphabetically by County Name)

Hampton County Courthouse (page 32)

The two-story brick structure has served as the
county’s courthouse since 1878 when Hampton
Coun% was established.  The courthouse was
remodeled and enlarged in 1925. During that
renovation, the original double curved stair leading
to the second floor portico was removed as were the
eight interior chimneys.

Horry County Courthouse (page 8)

The Horry County Courthouse was built in 1908 and
underwent renovations in_ 1937 and 1964. = The
courthouse is included in Conway’s historic_district
and has been outwardly preserved to reflect its
original appearance.

Jasper County Courthouse (page 36)

The Jasper County Courthouse was built in 1915,
The Georgian Revival style structure has a hip roof
and projecting rectangular bays on the north and
south sides. A two-story pedimented portico with a
relief sculpture is supported by four Ionic columns.

Kershaw County Courthouse (page 153)

The Kershaw County Courthouse was dedicated in
1968 and currently houses most county functions.
The facility, the county’s fifth such structure, is best
known by the Lafayetfe Cedar gracing its courtyard.
The old”red cedar is so named because it” was
planted when General Lafayette was a guest on the

property.

Lancaster County Courthouse (Inside Front
Cover)

Robert Mills designed the Lancaster County
Courthouse, built "in 1828, Mills studied
architecture under Thomas Jefferson for two years,
and lived in his home, deriving much of his
k.nowled%iz_ from Jefferson’s extensive architecture
library. Like Jefferson, he tended to shun English
influences, instead favoring classical Italian lines—
as is evident in the courthouse with its Palladian
style of architecture.  Since the courthouse’s
completion, architecture students have come from
across the United States to study its Palladian
window, considered one of the finesf in the country.

Laurens County Courthouse (page 131)

The Laurens County Courthouse is just one of the
historic Greek Revival bu.lldm%_s in Laurens City
Square. The central portion of the building was
constructed between 1838 and 1840. In 1858, the
courthouse was enlarged and completed as
orlgmalg{ designed by the architect. In 1911, when
the_buil 112? was remodeled, the two outside wings
and the dome were added. The most recent
renovations took place in the early 1970’s.

Lee County Courthouse (page 112)

The Lee County Court House, built in 1909, is of
the Renaissance architectural style. The building
retained the same architectural “style after it was
renovated and enlarged in 1974. The Lee County
Court House, listed on the National Register of
Historic Places, continues to serve the citizens of the
county.

Lexington County Courthouse (page 165)

The present courthouse is Lexington Coun;?"s. sixth
such building. Constructed in 1939 and dedicated
on January 15,1940, it rei)laced an old brick
courthouse, erected in 1882, which had become
antiquated and too small for the growing county.

Marion County Courthouse (Front Cover)

The Marion County Courthouse is_the third such
structure in Marion (previously Liberty) County.
The building, which exhibits_the classical Revival
architectural style, is made of brick and stucco and
has the appearance of stone. The courthouse
features curving double_ staircases of intricately
filigreed iron with the identity of the craftsman
(Hayward Barlette, Baltimore) woven _into, the
scrolls_and curlicues decorating each individual
step. Wrought iron railing edges the porches on
both levels. The old hitching post still stands to the
left of the courthouse. The building was completely
renovated in 1986 to_ _house the county
administrative offices and offices of the circuit court

judge.

Marlboro County Courthouse (page 180)

Located in Bennettsville, Marlboro County’s present
courthouse is the fourth building erected to house
the county offices. Built in the late 1800’s, the
Victorian ‘courthouse remains today behind the red
brick fagade, which was added in the 1950°s.

McCormick County Courthouse (page 4)

The McCormick County Courthouse was designed
by G. Lloyd Preacher & Company and was erected
in 1923. Cyrus McCormick, inventor of the reaper,
donated the land for the courthouse and the
township of McCormick.

Newberry County Courthouse (page 26)

This classical Revival building was completed in
1908 at a cost of $50,000. = Frank Milburn of
Columbia designed the red brick building to feature
three massive [lzortlcos of Ionic columns with terra
cotta details. The courthouse is still in use today,
along with an addition, constructed in 1938, and"a
new annex across the street.
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Oconee County Courthouse (page 154)

On Februar¥l 5, 1868, the Walhalla Town Council

anproved the location of the Oconee County
ourthouse. The courthouse was demolished in
955 and was rebuilt at a cost of $403,000. The
resent  Courthouse @ was  dedicated on
ovember 5, 1956.

Orangeburg County Courthouse (page 110)

The present courthouse is the fifth such building in
Orangeburg County since 1768. The present
structure was erecfed in 1927. The following is
inscribed on two cornerstones on  the buil %11%:
“Built 1826—Destroyed 1865—Rebuilt 1875.” The
second stone reads: “‘Relocated and erected 1927.”
Extensive renovation to this building was begun in
January 1978, and the dedication ceremony was
held on March 9, 1980.

Pickens County Courthouse (Inside Back
Cover)

The Opresent Pickens County Courthouse was built in
1960. The ,bulldlng was_completely renovated and
expanded in 1997. e spacious three-story
building is constructed of oversized brick in the
Williamsburg_architectural design. The structure
features a roof of Vermont slate and a copper cupola
that is a replica of the 1894 courthouse dome.

Richland County Judicial Center (page 152)

The Richland County Judicial Center was built to
relieve overcrowding in the old fac1113'. The
building was dedicated on October 14, 1980.

Saluda County Courthouse (page 9)

The current Saluda County Courthouse is the second
to serve the county’s citizens._ This beautiful Greek
Revival structure”was built in 1917 to replace a
simple wooden building that had been constructed
shortl¥ after Saluda was created as a county from
part of the old Edgefield District in 1895.

Spartanburg Judicial  Center

(page 140)

The present Sgartanbu[g County Courthouse cost
approximately $1.7 million and was occupied

County
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beginning in May 1958.
renovated from 1990 to 1993, and the courthouse
was renamed the Judicial Center after those
renovations were completed. The Judicial Center,
occupying 115,500 square feet, houses all of the
judicial départments except for the Sheriff’s Office.

The building was

Sumter County Courthouse (page 118)

The Sumter County Courthouse, reflecting a
Romanesque Revival design, features large Doric
columns. The courthouse i1s a historic structure
reminiscent of the turn of the century. Located on
Main Street in Sumter, the courthouse was built in
1907 and remodeled in 1964.

Union County Courthouse (page 119)

The present and third courthouse was built of brick
and stone in 1911 at a cost of $75,000. The
gre_vnpus old stone building became part of the new

uilding’s _foundation. e courthouse was
gat_temed after one of Robert Mills’ designs and was

uilt of rough native stone blocks, cement, and
bricks. Four Gothic columns, vaulted ceilings, stone
floors, and overall simplicity make this building a
thing of beauty.

Williamsburg County Courthouse (Back
Cover)

Williamsburg County is the home of one of the most
beautiful and historic courthouses  designed by
Robert Mills. The courthouse, originally built in
1823, was one of the first fireproof buildings in
South Carolina.

York County Courthouse (page 164)

The York County Courthouse has occupied its site
since 1785, when the county was created and York
was selected as the county seat. Robert Mills, in his
Statistics of South Carolina, published in 1826, has
the followgn% to say of Yorkville (as York was
known until 1916) and_the new courthouse: “The
new courthouse just finished is an elegant structure,
built of stone and brick, and offices in the basement
story are made fireproof—the double flight of
6ran1te steps_ascending to a portico on_the Doric

rder—The building including the portico is 160
feet long and 43 feet wide.”
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